
71                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    

                NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

                                                                                                  (APRIL 30) (Week 18 of 2024) 

                                     
                                        Live streaming at:                                                  Agenda and Minutes available at:                                                              

                https://www.youtube.com/user/woodburycountyiowa                     www.woodburycountyiowa.gov 

            
                                                                     
      
 Daniel A. Bittinger II          Mark Nelson             Keith W. Radig        Jeremy Taylor             Matthew A. Ung                                               
           389-4405                         540-1259                     560-6542                     259-7910                        490-7852                               
dbittinger@woodburycountyiowa.gov        mnelson@woodburycountyiowa.gov          kradig@woodburycountyiowa.gov       jtaylor@woodburycountyiowa.gov       matthewung@woodburycountyiowa.gov            

 
You are hereby notified a meeting of the Woodbury County Board of Supervisors will be held April 30, 2024, at 
4:30 p.m.  in the Basement of the Courthouse, 620 Douglas Street, Sioux City, Iowa for the purpose of taking 
official action on the agenda items shown hereinafter and for such other business that may properly come before 
the Board.   
 
This is a formal meeting during which the Board may take official action on various items of business. Members 
of the public wishing to speak on an item must follow the participation rules adopted by the Board of Supervisors. 
 

1. Please silence cell phones and other devices while in the Boardroom. 
2. The Chair may recognize speakers on agenda items after initial discussion by the Board. 
3. Speakers will approach the microphone one at a time and give their name and address before their statement. 
4. Speakers will limit their remarks to three minutes on any one item and address their remarks to the Board. 
5. At the beginning of discussion on any item, the Chair may request statements in favor of an action be heard first 

followed by statements in opposition to the action.  The Chair may also request delegates provide statements on 
behalf of multiple speakers. 

6. Any concerns or questions which do not relate to a scheduled item on the agenda will be heard under the item 
“Citizen Concerns.” Please note the Board is legally prohibited from taking action on or engaging in deliberation on 
concerns not listed on the agenda, and in such cases the Chair will request further discussion take place after 
properly noticed. 

7. Public comment by electronic or telephonic means is prohibited except for a particular agenda item when approved 
by the Chair 24 hours before a meeting or by a majority of the board during a meeting for a subsequent meeting. 

 

AGENDA 

                                      
4:30 p.m.     Call Meeting to Order – Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag – Moment of Silence    
 
                    1.  Approval of the agenda                                                                                                  Action 
 

Consent Agenda 

 

Items 2 through 7 constitute a Consent Agenda of routine action items to be considered by one     

         motion.  Items pass unanimously unless a separate vote is requested by a Board Member. 

 

                    2.  Approval of the minutes of the April 23, 2024, meeting 

                         Approval of the minutes of the April 19, 2024 special meeting 

 

                    3.  Approval of claims  

 

                    4.  Human Resources – Melissa Thomas 

             Approval of Memorandum of Personnel Transactions 
                  

                    5.  Board Administration – Dennis Butler 

                         Set the public hearing for the FY24 Budget Amendment #1 for May 28, 2024 at 4:45 p.m. 

 

 

https://www.youtube.com/user/woodburycountyiowa
http://www.woodburycountyiowa.gov/
mailto:dbittinger@woodburycountyiowa.gov
mailto:kradig@woodburycountyiowa.gov
mailto:matthewung@woodburycountyiowa.gov


 

 

 

                   6.  Board of Supervisors 

                        Approval of resolution to appoint Patrick Gill as Representative of the Northwest 

                        Iowa Regional Housing Authority                 

                     

                   7.  Secondary Roads – Mark Nahra 

                        Approve the underground utility permit for Farr Technologies and Quick Broadband LLC 

                        and to direct the chair to sign the permit 

      

 End Consent Agenda 

 

                   8.  Secondary Roads – Mark Nahra 

                        a.  Approval to accept the dump truck quotes and return them to the county                    Action 

                             engineer for an award recommendation 

                        b.  Approval of letter of financial support for the federal aid grant application                    Action 

                             for the Southbridge Interchange project and direct chair to sign the letter 

 

4:35 p.m.   9.  Board Administration – Heather Van Sickle 

(Set time)        a.  Public hearing and sale of property parcel #894735276004 (aka 4103 Gordon Dr.)    Action   

4:36 p.m.        b.  Public hearing and sale of property parcel #894729440013 (aka 204 ½ Kansas St.)  Action 

(Set time) 

                 10.  Planning/Zoning – Daniel Priestley 

                        a.  Receive the final report and the Zoning Commission’s recommendation                     Action 

                             from their 4/22/24 meeting to approve the final plat of Yockey Farm Addition, 

                             a minor subdivision to Woodbury County, Iowa 

                        b.  Approval of resolution of the Yockey Farm Addition, a minor subdivision                    Action 

                             to Woodbury County 

4:40 p.m.        c.  Public hearing to consider Zoning Ordinance Text Amendments to the                       Action 

(Set time)             Floodplain Management Ordinance in the Zoning Ordinance Section 5.03 

                        d.  Approve the second reading of the Ordinance                                                             Action 

4:42 p.m.        e.   Conduct the second public hearing for the consideration of the proposed                  Action 

(Set time)              Woodbury County Comprehensive Plan 2040 

                        f.   Approve the second reading of the Comprehensive Plan                                            Action 

4:50 p.m.        g.  Public hearing to consider Zoning Ordinance Text Amendments for Utility-Scale       Action 

(Set time)             Energy Systems (US-SES) Conditional Use in the General Industrial (GI) Zoning 

                             District, including to add a new Section 5.08, amend the table of contents, and 

                             renumber the ordinance page numbers to accommodate the addition of the new 

                             section 

                        h.  Approve the second reading of the Ordinance                                                              Action 

 

                 11.  WCICC – John Malloy 

                        Approval to spend WCICC-IT FY25 CIP dollars                                                                Action 

 

                 12.  Building Services – Kenny Schmitz 

                        a.  Approval of FY2023 CIP in the amount of $127,933.84                                               Action 

                        b.  Approval of Sioux City Engineering Co. Change Orders #4, #5, &                              Action 

                             Final Contract Pay Application #13 in the amount of $238,712.24 

 

 

 



 

 

 

                 13.  Board of Supervisors – Matthew Ung 

                        Presentation of missing context related to Supervisor Taylor’s following items,       Information 

                        and the harmful impact caused by a lack of patience causing incomplete  

                        information being conveyed to the public about the Law Enforcement 

                        Center’s property insurance premium 

 

                 14.  Board of Supervisors – Jeremy Taylor 

                        a.  Approval to reallocate $170,000 from the county’s over-and-above                    Information 

                             contributions to repairs and maintenance not specified in the lease 

                             obligated as a “Maintenance Fund contribution” and $7,000 in reserves 

                             to pay for the insurance premium.  

                        b.  Approval to dedicate $177,000 in reserve funding to pay for the premium          Information 

                        c.  Receive recommendations for changes to the Law Enforcement Center            Information 

                             Authority Lease with the Woodbury County Board of Supervisors 

 

                 15.  Reports on Committee Meetings                                                                               Information 

    

                 16.  Citizen Concerns                                                                                                       Information  

 

                 17.  Board Concerns                                                                                                         Information     

 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
Subject to Additions/Deletions 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

CALENDAR OF EVENTS         

                                                                                                                                                                                                                             
 
WED., MAY 1      11:00 a.m.     Loess Hills Alliance Stewardship Meeting, Pisgah, Iowa 
 
                              1:00 p.m.     Loess Hills Alliance Executive Meeting  
 
                              4:45 p.m.    Veteran Affairs Meeting, Veteran Affairs Office, 1211 Tri-View Ave.    
 
THU., MAY 2       12:00 p.m.    SIMPCO Regional Policy & Legislative Affairs Committee Meeting, 6401 Gordon Drive 
                                
MON., MAY 6        6:00 p.m.    Board of Adjustment meeting, Courthouse Basement Boardroom 
                            
WED., MAY 8        7:30 a.m.    SIMPCO  Executive-Finance Committee Meeting, 6401 Gordon Drive  
 
                              8:05 a.m.    Woodbury County Information Communication Commission, First Floor Boardroom 
 
                            12:00 p.m.    District Board of Health Meeting, 1014 Nebraska St. 
 
                              6:30 p.m.    911 Service Board Meeting, Public Safety Center, Climbing Hill 
                          
THU., MAY 9       12:00 p.m.    SIMPCO Board of Directors, 6401 Gordon Drive. 
                              
                              4:00 p.m.    Conservation Board Meeting, Dorothy Pecaut Nature Center, Stone Park 
 
WED., MAY 15    12:00 p.m.    Siouxland Economic Development Corporation Meeting, 617 Pierce St., Ste. 202 
 

THU., MAY 16       4:30 p.m.    Community Action Agency of Siouxland Board Meeting, 2700 Leech Avenue   
 
FRI., MAY 17      12:00 p.m.    Siouxland Human Investment Partnership Board Meeting, 2540 Glenn Ave.                                                                                                 
                                                            
WED., MAY 22     2:30 p.m.    Rolling Hills Community Services Region Governance Board Meeting 
 
THU., MAY 23    10:00 a.m.   Siouxland Regional Transit Systems (SRTS) Board Meeting, SIMPCO Office, 6401 Gordon Dr 
 
                            11:15 a.m.   Western Iowa Community Improvement Regional Housing Trust Fund, Hybrid 
 
WED., May 29      5:00 p.m.    Zoning Commission Meeting, Courthouse Basement Boardroom 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                                
Woodbury County is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, the County will consider reasonable accommodations 
for qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages prospective employees and incumbents to discuss potential accommodations with the Employer. 
 
Federal and state laws prohibit employment and/or public accommodation discrimination on the basis of age, color, creed, disability, gender identity, national origin, 
pregnancy, race, religion, sex, sexual orientation or veteran’s status. If you believe you have been discriminated against, please contact the Iowa Civil Rights 
Commission at 800-457-4416 or Iowa Department of Transportation’s civil rights coordinator. If you need accommodations because of a disability to access the Iowa 
Department of Transportation’s services, contact the agency’s affirmative action officer at 800-262-0003.     



APRIL 23, 2024, SEVENTEENTH MEETING OF THE WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS  
 
The Board of Supervisors met on Tuesday, April 23, 2024, at 3:00 p.m.  Board members present were Nelson, Ung, Bittinger 
II, Radig, and Taylor.  Staff members present were Karen James, Board Administrative Assistant, Melissa Thomas, Human 
Resources Director, Joshua Widman, Assistant County Attorney, and Patrick Gill, Auditor/Clerk to the Board. 
 
Motion by Ung second by Nelson to go into closed session per Iowa Code Section 21.5(1)(c).  Carried 3-0 on a roll-call vote; 
Bittinger and Radig were not present. 
 
Motion by Ung second by Nelson to go out of closed session per Iowa Code Section 21.5(1)(c).  Carried 4-0 on a roll-call 
vote; Bittinger was not present. 
 
The regular meeting was called to order with the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag and a Moment of Silence. 
 
1.  Motion by Ung second by Nelson to approve the agenda for April 23, 2024.  Carried 5-0.  Copy filed. 
 

Chris McGowan, Siouxland Initiative, presented an award for involvement with the initiative. 
 
Motion by Taylor second by Radig to approve the following items by consent: 

 
2.  To approve minutes of the April 16, 2024 meeting.  Copy filed. 
  
3.  To approve the claims totaling $380,278.91.  Copy filed. 
 
4a. To approve the separation of Timothy Rodriquez, Civilian Jailer, County Sheriff Dept., effective 06-03-24. 

Resignation.; the separation of Sandra Williams, Courthouse Security, County Sheriff Dept., effective 04-23-24.  
Separation.; the separation of Rocky De Witt, Courthouse Security, County Sheriff Dept., effective 04-23-24.  
Separation.; the appointment of Sandy Marin-Romero, Civilian Jailer, County Sheriff Dept., effective 5-13-24, 
$23.97/hour.  Job Vacancy Posted 12-20-23.  Entry Level Salary: $23.97.; the appointment of Benjamin Lindgren, 
Civilian Jailer, County Sheriff Dept., effective 5-13-24, $23.97/hour.  Job Vacancy Posted 12-20-23.  Entry Level 
Salary:  $23.97/hour.; and the appointment of Sean Green, Civilian Jailer, County Sheriff Dept., effective 05-20-24, 
$23.97/hour.  Job Vacancy Posted 12-20-23.  Entry Level Salary:  $23.97/hour. Copy filed. 

 
4b. To approve and authorize the Chairperson to sign the Authorization to initiate the hiring process for Civilian Jailer, 

County Sheriff Dept.  CWA:  $23.97/hour.   Copy filed. 
 
5. To approve the items to be auctioned per Personal Property Disposition Policy.  Copy filed. 
 
6. To approve and authorize the Chairperson to sign a Resolution setting the public hearing and sale date for parcel 

#894726138004, 3220 11th St. 
 

RESOLUTION #13,715 
NOTICE OF PROPERTY SALE 

 
WHEREAS Woodbury County, Iowa was the owner under a tax deed of a certain parcel of real estate described as: 
 
Lots Four (4) Five (5) and Six (6) Block Twenty-Nine (29) Booges and Taylor Addition, City of Sioux City, Woodbury 
County, Iowa 
(3220 11th Street) 
 
NOW THEREFORE,  

 
BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of Woodbury County, Iowa as follows: 
 

 1.   That a public hearing on the aforesaid proposal shall be held on 
       the 7th Day of May, 2024 at 4:35 o’clock p.m. in the basement of the    
       Woodbury County Courthouse.  



April 23, 2024 Cont’d.                                                                                                                                                              Page 2 
 

 

 
2.   That said Board proposes to sell the said parcel of real estate at a 
      public auction to be held on the 7th Day of May, 2024, immediately 
      following the closing of the public hearing. 

 
3.   That said Board proposes to sell the said real estate to the highest 
       bidder at or above a total minimum bid of $120.00 plus recording fees.  

 
4.  That this resolution, preceded by the caption "Notice of Property Sale" 
     and except for this subparagraph 4 be published as notice of the 
     aforesaid proposal, hearing and sale.  
 
Dated this 23rd Day of April, 2024. 

 WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 Copy filed. 
 
7. To approve the permit to work in the right of way for City of Sioux City.  Copy filed. 
 
8.  To approve to set the public hearing for the FY 25 proposed budget for May 7, 2024 at 5:00 p.m.  Copy filed. 
 

Carried 5-0; Taylor abstained on the motion to approve the minutes of the previous meeting. 
 
9. There was a discussion of staff replacement to coordinate United Way Fundraising activities.  Copy filed. 
 
10a. Motion by Taylor second by Ung to receive the Zoning Commission recommendation for Zoning Ordinance Text 

Amendments to the Floodplain Management Ordinance from their 3/25/24 meeting.  Carried 5-0.  Copy filed. 
 
10b. A public hearing was held at 4:40 p.m. for consider text amendments to the Floodplain Management Ordinance 

Section 5.03.  The Chairperson called on anyone wishing to be heard. 
 
 Motion by Ung second by Radig to close the public hearing.  Carried 5-0. 
 
10c. Motion by Ung second by Taylor to approve the 1st Reading of the Ordinance.  Carried 5-0.  Copy filed. 
 
10d. Motion by Ung second by Nelson to receive the Zoning Commission final report and recommendation of the 

Woodbury County Comprehensive Plan 2040 from their 3/25/24 meeting.  Copy filed. 
 

Motion by Ung second by Taylor to receive a report from Leo Jochum.  Carried 5-0.  Copy filed. 
 
 Motion by Ung second by Taylor to receive corrections to the plan.  Carried 5-0.  Copy filed. 
 
10e. A public hearing was held at 4:42 p.m. for the consideration of the proposed Woodbury County Comprehensive 

Plan 2040.  The Chairperson called on anyone wishing to be heard. 
 
 Motion by Ung second by Taylor to close the public hearing.  Carried 5-0. 
 
10f. Motion by Ung second by Nelson to approve the 1st Reading of the Comprehensive Plan.  Carried 5-0.  Copy filed. 
 
10g. Motion by Ung second by Nelson to receive the Zoning Commission report and recommendation for Zoning 

Ordinance Text Amendments for Utility-Scale Solar Energy Systems (US-SES) Conditional Use from their 3/25/24 
meeting.  Carried 5-0.  Copy filed. 

 
10h. A public hearing was held at 4:45 p.m. to consider Zoning Ordinance Text Amendments for Utility-Scale Energy 

Systems (US-SES) Conditional Use in the General Industrial (GI) Zoning District, including to add a new Section 5.08, 
amend the table of contents, and renumber the ordinance page numbers to accommodate the addition of the new 
section.   The Chairperson called on anyone wishing to be heard. 



April 23, 2024 Cont’d.                                                                                                                                                              Page 3 
 

 

 
 Larry Fillipi, Anthon, and Robert Wilson addressed the Board on the report. 
 
 Motion by Ung second by Taylor to close the public hearing.  Carried 5-0. 
 
10i. Motion by Ung second by Bittinger to approve the 1st Reading of the Ordinance.  Carried 4-1; Radig was opposed.  

Copy filed. 
 
11a. Bid letting was held for Pavement Marking – 2024.  The bids are as follows: 
 
 Dakota Traffic Services, LLC, Lawton, IA  $153,900.00 
 Iowa Plains Signing, Slater, IA   $222,800.00 
 Vogel Traffic Services, Orange City, IA  $119,480.90 
 
 Motion by Radig second by Nelson to receive the bids and return them to County Engineer for recommendation.  

Carried 5-0.  Copy filed. 
 
11b. Motion by Radig second by Nelson to award the bid for Pavement Markings – 2024 to Vogel Traffic Services for 

$119,480.00.  Carried 5-0.  Copy filed. 
 
11c. Motion by Radig second by Ung to approve the final voucher for project #BROS-SWAP-C097(135)—FE-97 with 

Dixon Construction.  Carried 5-0.  Copy filed. 
 
11d. Motion by Radig second Nelson by to approve the final voucher for project #BROS-SEAP-6012(601)—FF-97 with 

Dixon Construction.  Carried 5-0.  Copy filed. 
 
11e. Bid letting was held for pickup truck.  The bids are as follows: 
 
 Jensen Dealerships, Le Mars, IA   $37,492.00 
 Jensen Dealerships, Le Mars, IA   $40,492.00 
 Knoepfler Chevrolet Co., Sioux City, IA  $38,006.00 
 Knoepfler Chevrolet Co., Sioux City, IA  $43,006.00 
 Knoepfler Chevrolet Co., Sioux City, IA  $36,687.00 
 Knoepfler Chevrolet Co., Sioux City, IA  $41,387.00 
 Woodhouse Auto, Blair, NE   $44,274.00 
 Woodhouse Auto, Blair NE   $48,274.00 
 Woodhouse Auto, Blair, NE   $44,658.00 
 Woodhouse Auto, Blair, NE   $48,658.00 
 
 Motion by Ung second by Bittinger to receive the bids and refer them to the County Engineer for recommendation.  

Carried 5-0.  Copy filed. 
 
11f. Bid letting was held for dump truck.  The bids are as follows: 
 
 Tandem Axle Truck 
 Cornhusker International, Sioux City, IA  $203,176.00 
 Istate Truck Center, Sioux City, IA   $270,059.00 
 Istate Truck Center, Sioux City, IA   $262,933.00 
 TEC Equipment, Omaha, NE   $240,632.00 
 
 Single Axle Truck 
 Cornhusker International, Sioux City, IA  $203,176.00 
 Istate Truck Center, Sioux City, IA   $209,126.00 
 Istate Truck Center, Sioux City, IA   $216,061.00 
 TEC Equipment, Omaha, NE   $192,467.00 
 



April 23, 2024 Cont’d.                                                                                                                                                              Page 4 
 

 

 Motion by Radig second by Ung to receive the bids and refer them to the County Engineer for recommendation.  
Carried 5-0.  Copy filed. 

 
11g. Motion by Radig second by Ung to approve the contract for project #CP-2024, CMP Culvert Supply for 2024 with 

Metal Culverts, Inc. for $105,657.80.  Carried 5-0.  Copy filed. 
 
12. There was a discussion regarding the cost of insurance and the County Maintenance & Repair Fund for the Law 

Enforcement facility.  Copy filed. 
 
13. Reports on committee meetings were heard. 
 
14.  There were no citizen concerns. 
  
15. Board concerns were heard. 
 
The Board adjourned the regular meeting until April 30, 2024. 
  
Meeting sign in sheet.  Copy filed. 
 



APRIL 19, 2024, SPECIAL MEETING OF THE WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

The Board of Supervisors met on Friday, April 19, 2024, at 2:30 p.m.  Board members present were Radig, Nelson, Ung, 
and Bittinger II; Taylor was absent.  Staff members present were Melissa Thomas, Human Resources Director and Patrick 
Gill, Auditor/Clerk to the Board. 
 
The meeting was called to order. 
 
A closed session was requested by the interviewee. 
 
Motion by Ung second by Bittinger to go into closed session per Iowa Code Section 21.5(1)(i).  Carried 4-0 on a roll call vote. 
 
Motion by Radig second by Ung to go out of closed session per Iowa Code Section 21.5(1)(i).  Carried 4-0 on a roll call vote. 
 
A closed session was requested by the interviewee. 
 
Motion by Ung second by Nelson to go into closed session per Iowa Code Section 21.5(1)(i).  Carried 4-0 on a roll call vote. 
 
Motion by Ung second by Nelson to go out of closed session per Iowa Code Section 21.5(1)(i).  Carried 4-0 on a roll call vote. 
 
A closed session was requested by the interviewee. 
 
Motion by Ung second by Bittinger to go into closed session per Iowa Code Section 21.5(1)(i).  Carried 4-0 on a roll call vote. 
 
Motion by Ung second by Bittinger to go out of closed session per Iowa Code Section 21.5(1)(i).  Carried 4-0 on a roll call vote. 
 
The Board adjourned the meeting. 
 





























WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________     Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________  

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:  ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED: 

   Approve Resolution   ☐        Approve Motion   ☐ Approve Ordinance    ☐  

Public Hearing   ☐      Other:  Informational  ☐      Attachments   ☐ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 

PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:    

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:  

Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016. 

04/26/2024 04/30/2024

Mark J. Nahra, Woodbury County Engineer

✔

Approve letter of financial support for federal grant application 

Woodbury County is applying for a Rural/INFRA grant from the US Department of Transportation to provide 
partial funding for the Southbridge Interchange Project.

While the county has sufficient TIF funding capability to fully fund the interchange, new federal aid grant 
programs provided by the BIL offer local governments the ability to apply for direct federal grants for 
infrastructure projects.   The county hired HNTB to prepare the grant application and it will be filed on May 3.

The grant, if the county is successful, will fund 60% of the interchange construction cost.  Based on the current 
project estimate, the grant application is for $12,893,895.  This, combined with the $2,030,000 allocated by the 
SIMPCO MPO for the project will fund approximately 69% of the total project cost.

Recommend that the Board sign the letter of financial support.

Motion to approve the letter of financial support for the federal aid grant application for the Southbridge 
Interchange project and direct the chair to sign the letter.



 

Woodbury County Board of Supervisors 
Courthouse • Room 104 

620 Douglas Street • Sioux City, Iowa 51101 
Telephone (712) 279-6525 • Fax (712) 279-6577 

MEMBERS 

 

DANIEL A. BITTINGER II 

SIOUX CITY 

 

KEITH W. RADIG 

SIOUX CITY 

JEREMY J. TAYLOR 

SIOUX CITY 

MATTHEW A. UNG 

SIOUX CITY 

MARK E. NELSON  

SIOUX CITY 

 

 

FINANCE / BUDGET DIRECTOR 

DENNIS BUTLER 

ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT 

KAREN JAMES 

EXECUTIVE SECRETARY / PUBLIC BIDDER 

HEATHER SATTERWHITE 

          April 30, 2024 
The Honorable Pete Buttigieg 
US Department of Transportation (USDOT) 
1200 New Jersey Ave, SE 
Washington, D.C. 20590 
 
Dear Secretary Buttigieg:  

The Woodbury County Board of Supervisors submits this letter of financial support for the I-29 

Southbridge Interchange Project and requests full and fair consideration for funding under the Nationally 

Significant Multimodal Freight & Highway Projects Program (INFRA) and Rural Surface Transportation 

Grant Program (Rural).   While Woodbury County is fully committed to funding the project through Tax 

Increment Financing, the grant, if awarded, allows the county to release the tax increment valuation 

backing the county bond issue for the project.  Releasing the tax increment will assist the county board’s 

effort to reduce countywide property taxes by spreading tax levies against the larger total property 

valuation inclusive of the increment that is no longer tied up by project bonding.    The county further 

commits to the ongoing maintenance of the project following completion, working in cooperation with 

the Iowa Department of Transportation. 

This Project will construct critical infrastructure for not only Woodbury County, but also the Iowa 

Department of Transportation, the Siouxland Interstate Metropolitan Planning Council (SIMPCO), the 

Cities of Sioux City and Sergeant Bluff, the adjacent rural communities, and the greater region. The 

Project will enhance supply chain movement to the region, Midwest and beyond via major river, rail, and 

freight industries with its connection to Port Neal and the Southbridge Industrial Area.   This project has 

been a priority for the county, our communities, and our local industries since 2005. 

As we continue the design of this project and proceed toward project letting, the county nearing the 

culmination of a multiyear effort to bring this project to fruition.    National Environmental Protection 

Agency (NEPA) documentation as a countersigned Environmental Assessment (EA) was prepared and 

signed in January 2020, with a Finding of No Significant Impact (FONSI) signed by the Federal Highway 

Administration (FHWA) in May 2020. FHWA signed the Interchange Justification Report (IJR) for the 

Project in September 2022. The Project is in final design, with a letting scheduled for January 2026. Given 



the level of design and strong, sustained support for the Project, upon receipt of grant funding, 

Woodbury County can expeditiously enter a grant agreement with the USDOT.  

The Project will provide needed access along this segment of I-29 and be a catalyst for economic 

development, relieving bottlenecks to freight movement in the network today and providing improved 

access to the Port Neal industrial area and the Missouri River to the west and to local and rural 

communities via Old US 75 to the east. The Project will improve safety, upgrading a passive at-grade 

railroad intersection to an active, signalized rail crossing and reducing instances of vehicles stopping on a 

very active rail corridor.  We believe the project is also the key to bringing new high-quality jobs to the 

area. It is the Board’s sincere hope that the new jobs that follow development in this area will be 

available to a broad range of people with or without educational attainment beyond a high-school 

diploma. 

This project is a priority for our community.  The Project has strong local, state, and regional support.  

The Board of Supervisors is fully in support this project and requests that Woodbury County’s grant 

application be given consideration for grant funding. 

  

Sincerely, 

Woodbury County Board of Supervisors 
 

 

____________________________________ 

Matthew Ung, Chair 
 

 

____________________________________ 

Daniel A. Bittinger, II, Member 
 

 

____________________________________ 

Mark Nelson, Member 
 

 

____________________________________ 

Keith Radig, Member 
 

 

____________________________________ 

Jeremy Taylor, Member 
 



















WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM

Date:    _________________         Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:       ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:   

ACTION REQUIRED:

   Approve Resolution         Approve Motion   Approve Ordinance

Public Hearing    Other:  Informational      Attachments    ✔

✔✔

A) Motion to receive the final report and the Zoning Commission's recommendation from their 4/22/24
meeting to approve the final plat of Yockey Farm Addition, a minor subdivision to Woodbury County,
Iowa.
B) Motion to accept and approve Yockey Farm Addition, a minor subdivision to Woodbury County,
Iowa.

Peggy Ann Yockey has filed for a two (2) lot minor subdivision on the properties identified as Parcel #874305300001 and Parcel 
#874306400002 and referenced above.  This subdivision is being completed to reconfigure the property lines and to establish two 
(2) lots.  This minor subdivision proposal has been properly noticed in the Sioux City Journal legals section on April 9, 2024  The 
neighbors within 1000 FT have been duly notified via a April 5, 2024 letter about the April 22, 2024 Zoning Commission public 
hearing.  Appropriate stakeholders including government agencies, utilities, and organizations have been notified and have been 
requested to comment.  The Woodbury County Engineer found the proposal in compliance with Iowa Code closure requirements 
and found that the lot(s) have adequate access.  This property is located in the Agricultural Preservation (AP) Zoning District and is 
not located in the Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA) – Zone X.  The City of Anthon waived their extraterritorial review authority 
with the approval of Resolution No. 2024-5.564  Based on the information received and the requirements set forth in the Zoning 
and Subdivision Ordinance, the proposal meets appropriate criteria for approval.  The Woodbury County Zoning Commission voted 
3-0 to recommend the acceptance and approval of the Yockey Farm Addition final plat to the Woodbury County Board of 
Supervisors following their public hearing on April 22, 2024.

PROPERTY DETAILS
Parcel(s): 874305300001 & 874306400002
Township/Range: T87N R43W for both parcels.
Section: Section 5 – 874305300001
Section 6 - 874306400002
Quarter: NWSW – 874305300001
NESE – 874306400002
Zoning District: Agricultural Preservation (AP)
Floodplain: Not in Floodplain – Zone X
Property Address: 2269 Lenox Ave., Anthon, IA 51004

The Supervisors will receive the Woodbury County Planning and Zoning (P&Z) Commission's recommendation and final
staff report on said plat and shall approve, approve with conditions, or disapprove the plat. The Board may table the matter
with the consent of the subdivider. Approval shall be in the form of a resolution to be certified as part of the final plat.

Daniel J. Priestley

4/30/244/25/24



FINANCIAL IMPACT:

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 
PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes ☐☐ No       ☐☐

RECOMMENDATION:    

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:   

Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016. 

A) Motion to receive the final report and the Zoning Commission's recommendation from their 4/22/24
meeting to approve the final plat of Yockey Farm Addition, a minor subdivision to Woodbury County, Iowa.

B) Motion to accept and approve Yockey Farm Addition, a minor subdivision to Woodbury County, Iowa.

Receive the final report and P&Z Commission's recommendation from their 4/22/24 meeting.

Approve the final plat and authorize the Chairman to sign the resolution.

0



1 

WOODBURY COUNTY PLANNING & ZONING 
620 Douglas Street, Sixth Floor, Sioux City, Iowa 51101 

712.279.6609 – 712.279.6530 (Fax) 

Daniel J. Priestley, MPA – Zoning Coordinator                                         Dawn Norton – Senor Clerk 
dpriestley@woodburycountyiowa.gov dnorton@woodburycountyiowa.gov 

 

FINAL REPORT – APRIL 25, 2024 
YOCKEY FARM ADDITION – MINOR SUBDIVISION PROPOSAL 

APPLICATION DETAILS 
Applicant(s)/Owner(s): Peggy A. Yockey 

Application Type: Minor Subdivision 

Name of Subdivision: Yockey Farm Addition 

Application Date: March 22, 2024 
Number of Lots: 2 

Total Acres: 12.99 

Extraterritorial 
Review: 

Waived – City of Anthon 

Legal Notice Date: April 9, 2024 

Neighbor(s) Notice 
Date: 

April 5, 2024 

Stakeholder(s) Notice 
Date: 

April 1, 2024 

Zoning Commission 
Public Hearing Date: 

April 22, 2024 

Board of Supervisors 
Agenda Date: 

April 30, 2024 

Attorney: Ryan Ross, 712-224-7585 

Surveyor: Terence Crawford, 712-
263-8118 

 

PROPERTY DETAILS 
Parcel(s): 874305300001 & 874306400002 

Township/Range: T87N R43W for both parcels. 

Section: Section 5 – 874305300001 
Section 6 - 874306400002 

Quarter: NWSW – 874305300001 
NESE – 874306400002 

Zoning District: Agricultural Preservation (AP) 

Floodplain: Not in Floodplain – Zone X 

Property 
Address: 

2269 Lenox Ave., Anthon, IA 
51004 

 

CONTENTS 
Summary, Aerial Map, Plat Excerpt, 
Recommendation, & Suggested Motion  

Legal Notification 

Neighbor(s) Notification 

Stakeholder(s) Comments 

Review Criteria / Applicant Responses  

Application 

Supporting Documentation 

 

SUMMARY 
Peggy Ann Yockey has filed for a two (2) lot minor subdivision on the properties identified as Parcel #874305300001 and Parcel #874306400002 
and referenced above.  This subdivision is being completed to reconfigure the property lines and to establish two (2) lots.  This minor subdivision 
proposal has been properly noticed in the Sioux City Journal legals section on April 9, 2024  The neighbors within 1000 FT have been duly notified 
via a April 5, 2024 letter about the April 22, 2024 Zoning Commission public hearing.  Appropriate stakeholders including government agencies, 
utilities, and organizations have been notified and have been requested to comment.  The Woodbury County Engineer found the proposal in 
compliance with Iowa Code closure requirements and found that the lot(s) have adequate access.  This property is located in the Agricultural 
Preservation (AP) Zoning District and is not located in the Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA) – Zone X.  The City of Anthon waived their 
extraterritorial review authority with the approval of Resolution No. 2024-5.564  Based on the information received and the requirements set forth in 
the Zoning and Subdivision Ordinance, the proposal meets appropriate criteria for approval.  The Woodbury County Zoning Commission voted 3-0 to 
recommend the acceptance and approval of the Yockey Farm Addition final plat to the Woodbury County Board of Supervisors following their public 
hearing on April 22, 2024. 

AERIAL MAP PLAT EXCEPRT 



2 

 

ZONING COMMISSION AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 
 



3 

 

 
ZONING COMMISSION DRAFT MINUTES – EXCERPT INVOLVING YOCKEY FARM ADDITION 

AGENDA ITEM (SEE BELOW) 

 
 



4 

 

APPLICATION 

 



(FOUND CM)

SEC. 5-87-43

SW1/4

NW CORNER

NE1/4 SE1/4

6-87-43

TOTAL   9.85 AC

ROAD    0.51 AC

NET       9.34 AC

S 88°29'20" E  1942.03'

(FOUND CM)

SEC. 5-87-43

SW1/4

SW CORNER

(FOUND 5/8" DIA.

SEC. 6-87-43

SE1/4

NW CORNER

IRON PIN

W/ORANGE

CAP #14709)

SE1/4

NORTH LINE

N

 

2

6

°

4

6

'

5

7

"

 

W

 

 

1

2

1

5

.

4

2

'

SW1/4

WEST LINE

33' R-O-W

L LENOX AVENUE

C

NW1/4 SW1/4

5-87-43

(FOUND 5/8" DIA. 

SEC. 5-87-43

SW1/4

NE CORNER

IRON PIN)

S 88°41'41" E  2390.04'

S 88°29'20" E  675.08'

S 88°41'41" E  324.44'

N

 

1

9

°

3

4

'
2

0

"

 

E

 

 

3

4

7

.

2

3

'

N

 

6

8

°

0

7

'
5

7

"

 

W

 

 

3

3

7

.

4

7

'

EASEMENT

30' WIDE ACCESS

S

 

1

8

°

5

1

'
3

9

"

 

W

 

 

4

7

0

.

0

7

'

31

M
AS

O
N 

AV
E

220TH ST

220TH ST

210TH ST
210TH ST

LE
NO

X 
AV

E

LENOX

AVE 235TH
ST

ANTHON

31 32 33

4
5

6

8 9

31

D38

L27

210TH ST

0' 100' 200'

YOCKEY FARM ADDITION

A MINOR SUBDIVISON TO WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA 

FINAL PLAT

SUBDIVISON

LOCATION

VICINITY MAP

TOTAL   3.14 AC

ROAD    0.35 AC

NET       2.79 AC

S 88°29'20" E  650.61'

S 88°29'20" E

24.47'

SW1/4

NORTH LINE

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

A parcel of land located in the NW1/4 SW1/4 of Section 5 and the NE1/4 SE1/4 of Section 6, all in

Township 87 North, Range 43 West of the 5th P.M., Woodbury County, Iowa described as follows:

Beginning at the NW Corner of the SW1/4 of Section 5-87-43, thence S 88°41'41" E 324.44 feet along

the North line of said SW1/4 to a point on the centerline of Lenox Avenue, thence S 18°51'39" W

560.78 feet along said centerline, thence Southwesterly 437.67 feet along said centerline along a

1937.21 foot radius curve concave Northwesterly with a long chord bearing S 25°20'00" W 436.74 feet,

thence S 31°48'20" W 158.19 feet along said centerline, thence N 26°46'57" W 1215.42 feet to a point

on the North line of the SE1/4 of Section 6-87-43, thence S 88°29'20" E 675.08 feet along said line to

the point of beginning.  Said parcel contains 12.99 acres including the presently established Lenox

Avenue right-of-way.

CLIENT:

PROJECT NO.:

APPROVED BY:

DATE:

LLLDRAWN BY:

DESCRIPTION:

REVIEWED BY:  TJG

1 OF 2

SHEETTEC

25023

PEGGY YOCKEY

10-23-2023 YOCKEY FARM ADDITION

WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA

FINAL PLAT

LOT 1

LOT 2

S

 

2

5

°

2

0

'
0

0

"

 

W

 

 

C

=

4

3

6

.

7

4

'
 

L

=

 

4

3

7

.

6

7

'

S

 

1

8

°

5

1

'
3

9

"

 

W

 

 

5

6

0

.

7

8

'

DATE OF SURVEY:  10-23-2023

                              EXP. DATE 12-31-25

                              IOWA LICENSE NO. 8893

     DATE                                 TERENCE E, CRAWFORD, P.E. & P.L.S.

S

 

3

1

°

4

8

'

2

0

"

 

W

 

 

1

5

8

.

1

9

'

5/8" DIA. X 18" IRON PIN

PROPERTY PIN FOUND

W/ORANGE CAP #14709

5/8" DIA. X 18" IRON PIN

R-O-W PIN FOUND

W/ORANGE CAP #14709

Location: 

INDEX LEGEND

Requestor:

Proprietor:

Surveyor:

Surveyor

Company:

Return To:

NW1/4 SW1/4 Section 5, Township 87 North, Range 43 West

Peggy Yockey

Terence E. Crawford, P.E. & P.L.S.

Sundquist Engineering, P.C.

Sundquist Enginnering, P.C.

P.O. Box 220, Denison, IA 51442

Peggy Ann Yockey

NE1/4 SE1/4 Section 6, Township 87 North, Range 43 West

County: Woodbury

CERTIFICATION:

I, TERENCE E. CRAWFORD, A DULY LICENSED LAND SURVEYOR UNDER THE PROVISIONS OF

THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF IOWA, HOLDING CERTIFICATE NO. 8893, DO HEREBY CERTIFY

THAT THE PLAT OF YOCKEY FARM ADDITION, A MINOR SUBDIVISION TO WOODBURY COUNTY,

IOWA, IS TRUE REPRESENTATION OF A SURVEY MADE BY ME OR UNDER MY DIRECT

SUPERVISION, AND THAT THE SAME IS LOCATED UPON AND COMPRISES THE WHOLE OF THE

ATTACHED DESCRIBED PROPERTY.

I DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THERE ARE CONTAINED IN SAID DESCRIPTION THE LOTS

DESCRIBED IN THE ADDITION PLATTED; THAT THE SAME ARE OF THE DIMENSIONS, NUMBERS,

NAMES AND LOCATIONS AS SHOWN ON SAID PLAT AND THAT IRON STAKES WERE DRIVEN AT

EACH CORNER OF EVERY LOT EXCEPT AS NOTED ON SAID PLAT.

SHEETS COVERED BY THIS SEAL:   2 SHEETS

NOTES:

ZONING DISTRICT:

AP -  AGRICULTURAL PRESERVATION

BULK REGULATIONS:

    MINIMUM LOT WIDTH:  200'

    MINIMUM LOT SIZE:  2 ACRES

    MINIMUM FRONT YARD:  100'

    SIDE YARDS:  10', 20' OR 50'

                            DEPENDING ON USE**

    MINIMUM REAR YARD:  50'

                            DEPENDING ON USE**

    MAXIMUM HEIGHT:  45'

    MAXIMUM STORIES:  NO LIMIT

**OTHER REGULATIONS APPLY.  SEE

SUBDIVISION ORDINANCES FOR DETAILS.

LOTS TO BE SERVED BY PRIVATE WELLS AND

SEPTIC SYSTEMS.

ELECTRICAL:  WOODBURY COUNTY REC

1495 HUMBOLT AVE.

MOVILLE, IOWA 51039

TELEPHONE:  LOTS PRESENTLY

NOT SERVED BY LANDLINE PHONE SERVICE

  OWNER & SUBDIVIDER:

       PEGGY ANN YOCKEY

       930 28TH STREET

       COUNCIL BLUFFS, IA 51501

  LAND SURVEYOR:

      TERENCE E. CRAWFORD, P.E. &  P.L.S.

      SUNDQUIST ENGINEERING, P.C.

      120 SOUTH MAIN STREET

      DENISON, IA 51442

ADJACENT OWNER:

MATTHEW C.T. PETERSEN &

ROMANZA E. PETERSEN

ADJACENT OWNER:

GOTHEIR MINK INC

ADJACENT OWNER:

PEGGY ANN YOCKEY

SCALE:                        1" = 100'

ADJACENT OWNER:

RICK D. LORENZEN &

NANCY O. LORENZEN

9

0

.

7

1

'

Subdivision: Yockey Farm Addition

5/8" DIA. X 18" IRON PIN

PROPERTY PIN SET

W/YELLOW CAP #8893

5/8" DIA. X 18" IRON PIN

R-O-W PIN SET

W/YELLOW CAP #8893

ADJACENT OWNER:

GOTHEIR MINK INC

Δ=12°56'41"

D=2°57'27"

T=219.77'

L=437.67'

E=12.43'

R=1937.21'

L CURVE DATA

C

NET

ACREAGE BREAKDOWN

TOTAL ROAD

2.51
2.16NW1/4 SW1/4

0.63NE1/4 SE1/4

NET

ACREAGE BREAKDOWN

TOTAL ROAD

LOT 1

0.63

LOT 2

1.37 0.99NW1/4 SW1/4 0.38

8.48 8.35NE1/4 SE1/4 0.13

0.35



CLIENT:

PROJECT NO.:

APPROVED BY:

DATE:

LLLDRAWN BY:

DESCRIPTION:

REVIEWED BY:  TEC

2 OF 2

SHEETTEC

25023

PEGGY YOCKEY

10-23-2023 YOCKEY FARM ADDITION

WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA

FINAL PLAT

DEDICATION

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

PEGGY ANN YOCKEY, THE OWNER OF THE REAL ESTATE DESCRIBED IN THE ATTACHED

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE, HAS IN THE PURSUANCE OF LAW, CAUSED SAID DESCRIBED REAL

ESTATE TO BE SURVEYED, STAKED AND PLATTED INTO LOTS, TOGETHER WITH AN

INGRESS/EGRESS EASEMENT FOR THE BENEFIT OF ADJACENT PROPERTY, AS IS

PARTICULARLY SHOWN AND SET FORTH IN THE ATTACHED PLAT AND SAID CERTIFICATE OF

TERENCE E. CRAWFORD, A LICENSED SURVEYOR WHO SURVEYED AND PLATTED THE REAL

ESTATE TO BE KNOWN AS YOCKEY FARM ADDITION, WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA, AND THAT THE

SAME IS PREPARED WITH THE FREE CONSENT AND IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE DESIRES OF THE

OWNER AND PROPRIETOR THEREOF.

EXECUTED AT _____________________, IOWA, THE _______ DAY OF ______________________, 2024

_______________________________

PEGGY ANN YOCKEY

STATE OF IOWA )

                    )SS

WOODBURY COUNTY )

ON THIS _______ DAY OF _______________, 2024, BEFORE ME, THE UNDERSIGNED, A NOTARY

PUBLIC IN AND FOR SAID STATE OF IOWA, PERSONALLY APPEARED PEGGY ANN YOCKEY, TO

ME PERSONALLY KNOWN, WHO BEING BY ME DULY SWORN, DID SAY THAT THE PERSON

IS THE OWNER AND ACKNOWLEDGED EXECUTION OF THE INSTRUMENT TO BE THE OWNER'S

VOLUNTARY ACT AND DEED.

____________________________________________________________________________

NOTARY PUBLIC IN AND FOR THE STATE OF

IOWA

TITLE OPINON

COUNTY AUDITOR AND RECORDER OF WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA

DEAR SIR/MADAM:

WE HAVE THIS DATE EXAMINED A COMPLETE ABSTRACT TO TITLE, PURSUANT TO IOWA CODE

SECTION 354.11(1)(c) TO PROPERTY WHICH INCLUDES IN ITS ENTIRETY, PROPERTY

DESCRIBED IN THE SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE ON THE PLAT OF:  YOCKEY FARM ADDITION, A MINOR

SUBDIVISION IN WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA LAST CERTIFIED BY ENGLESON ABSTRACT CO., INC.,

DATED __________________   ____, 2024 AT 8:59 A.M. AND FROM SAID ABSTRACT FIND GOOD AND

MERCHANTABLE TITLE TO SAID PREMISES VESTED IN PEGGY ANN YOCKEY, A SINGLE PERSON,

SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING, LIENS, LIMITATIONS AND EXCEPTIONS.

1. EASEMENT TO WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA FOR PUBLIC HIGHWAY, FILED ON DECEMBER 6, 1924 AS

   MISCELLANEOUS RECORD, NO. 99.

2. ALL CERTIFIED REAL ESTATE TAXES AND SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS DUE AND PAYABLE HAVE BEEN PAID.

    REAL ESTATE TAXES AND SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS NOT CERTIFIED ARE A LIEN IN AN UNDETERMINED

    AMOUNT.

DATED:___________________________   _______, 2024

___________________________________

RYAN C. ROSS

ATTORNEY AT LAW

CERTIFICATE OF CITY OF ANTHON, IOWA

THE CITY COUNCIL OF ANTHON, IOWA, PURSUANT TO AUTHORITY GRANTED IN IOWA CODE SECTION

354.9, WAIVED THE CITY'S REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF THE FINAL PLAT OF YOCKEY FARM ADDITION, AS

WOULD OTHERWISE BE REQUIRED BY THE CITY'S CODE OF ORDINANCES, WITH THE ADOPTION OF

RESOLUTION NO. _______ON THIS DAY OF ____________________________, 2024

PASSED: _________________ _________________________________________

LISA PETERSON, MAYOR

APPROVED: _________________ _________________________________________

ATTEST:  ANITA BRANDT

 AUDITOR'S APPROVAL OF SUBDIVISION NAME

THE COUNTY AUDITOR HEREBY ACCEPTS AND APPROVES THE NAME OR TITLE OF THE  ATTACHED

SUBDIVISION PLAT AS REQUIRED BY IOWA CODE SECTION 354.6(2).

DATE______________________________________,2024

                                             ________________________________________________________________

                                             PATRICK F. GILL, AUDITOR AND RECORDER, WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA

                                             BY:  DIANE SWOBODA PETERSON, DEPUTY

COUNTY ENGINEERS CERTIFICATE

I, MARK NAHRA, P.E., THE COUNTY ENGINEER OF WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA, DO

HEREBY CERTIFY THAT I HAVE REVIEWED THE ATTACHED PLAT AND HAVE

MATHEMATICALLY COMPUTED THE ERROR OF CLOSURE OF THE PLAT PERIMETER

AND OF THE LOTS CONTAINED THEREIN, AND FIND THAT SAID PLAT CONFORMS WITH

THE CLOSURE REQUIREMENTS OF THE WOODBURY COUNTY SUBDIVISION

ORDINANCE FOR THE UNINCORPORATED AREA OF WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA

DATED: _________________

       _________________________________________

       MARK NAHRA, P.E.

       WOODBURY COUNTY ENGINEER

YOCKEY FARM ADDITION

A MINOR SUBDIVISON TO WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA 

FINAL PLAT

CERTIFICATE OF WOODBURY COUNTY ZONING COMMISSION

WE DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT WE ARE THE CHAIR AND THE COORDINATOR OF THE

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION, WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA, AND WE FURTHER

CERTIFY THAT THE SAID ZONING COMMISSION DID TAKE UNDER ADVISEMENT THE

ATTACHED PLAT AND THAT SAID ZONING COMMISSION DID ON THE _______ DAY OF

__________________, 2024 RECOMMEND TO THE WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF

SUPERVISORS THE ACCEPTANCE AND APPROVAL OF SAID SUBDIVISION.

DATED: ________________________________

       _________________________________________

       CHRISTINE ZELLMER ZANT, CHAIR

       WOODBURY COUNTY ZONING COMMISSION

       _________________________________________

        DANIEL J. PRIESTLEY

        PLANNING AND ZONING COORDINATOR

        WOODBURY COUNTY ZONING COMMISSION

TREASURERS CERTIFICATE OF TAXES AND SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS

I, THE UNDERSIGNED, TREASURER OF WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA, DO HEREBY

CERTIFY THAT THE LAND DESCRIBED IN THE ATTACHED AND FOREGOING

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE IS FREE FROM CERTIFIED TAXES AND CERTIFIED SPECIAL

ASSESSMENTS.

DATED: _________________

       _________________________________________

       TINA M. BERTRAND, TREASURER

       WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA

CERTIFICATE OF COUNTY ASSESSOR

I, JULIE CONOLLY, HEREBY CERTIFY THAT ON THE _______ DAY OF ____________________,

2024, A COPY OF THIS PLAT WAS FILED IN THE COUNTY ASSESSOR'S OFFICE.

DATED: _________________

       _________________________________________

         JULIE CONOLLY

         COUNTY ASSESSOR

AUDITOR AND RECORDER'S CERTIFICATE OF RECORDING

STATE OF IOWA )

                                                    )SS

WOODBURY COUNTY )

DOCKET NO.__________________________ FILED FOR

RECORD, THIS ________ DAY OF ________________, 2024 AT __________O'CLOCK___M.

RECORDED IN PLAT ENVELOPE ______________________ INDEXED AND DELIVERED TO THE

COUNTY AUDITOR OF WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA.

DATED: _________________

       __________________________________________________________________

        PATRICK F. GILL, AUDITOR AND RECORDER, WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA

        BY:  DIANE SWOBODA PETERSON, DEPUTY

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS RESOLUTION

RESOLUTION NUMBER:________________________

RESOLUTION ACCEPTING AND APPROVING YOCKEY FARM ADDITION, A MINOR SUBDIVISION

TO WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA.

WHEREAS, THE OWNER AND PROPRIETOR DID ON THE _______ DAY OF

___________________, 2024, FILE WITH THE WOODBURY COUNTY ZONING

COMMISSION A CERTAIN PLAT DESIGNATED AS YOCKEY FARM ADDITION, A MINOR

SUBDIVISION TO WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA; AND

WHEREAS, IT APPEARS THAT SAID PLAT CONFORMS WITH ALL OF THE PROVISIONS OF

THE CODE OF THE STATE OF IOWA AND ORDINANCES OF WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA,

WITH REFERENCE TO THE FILING OF SAME; AND

WHEREAS, THE ZONING COMMISSION OF WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA HAS

RECOMMENDED THE ACCEPTANCE AND APPROVAL OF SAID PLAT; AND

WHEREAS, THE COUNTY ENGINEER OF WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA HAS

RECOMMENDED THE ACCEPTANCE AND APPROVAL OF SAID PLAT.

NOW THEREFORE, BE, AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE WOODBURY COUNTY

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, WOODBURY COUNTY, STATE OF IOWA, YOCKEY FARM

ADDITION, A MINOR SUBDIVISION TO WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA BE, AND THE SAME

IS HEREBY ACCEPTED AND APPROVED, AND THE CHAIRPERSON AND SECRETARY

OF THE WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, WOODBURY COUNTY, STATE

OF IOWA, ARE HEREBY DIRECTED TO FURNISH TO THE OWNER AND PROPRIETOR A

CERTIFIED COPY OF THIS RESOLUTION AS REQUIRED BY LAW.

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS _____ DAY OF _____________________, 2024

_________________________________________

MATTHEW UNG

CHAIRPERSON OF BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA

ATTEST: _______________________________________

                     PATRICK F. GILL, SECRETARY

                     BY:  MICHELLE K. SKAFF, DEPUTY



7 

 

PLANNING AND ZONING STAFF – REVIEW CRITERIA (SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE) 

The County’s Zoning and Subdivision Ordinances require certain actions from County staff and the Planning and Zoning Commission. 
Per these requirements, Planning and Zoning staff: 

 shall review a subdivision application for completeness and for approval of a final plat by ensuring it is submitted in 
accordance with the standards for a subdivision plat per Iowa Code. 

 Staff reviewed the subdivision application, deemed it complete, and verified the final plat’s conformance to the County’s Zoning 
Ordinance, Subdivision Ordinance, and the Code of Iowa, all as required by law. 

 shall accept payment of applicable fees, and distribute copies of the final plat to the Planning & Zoning Commission, the 
appropriate county departments and public utilities; and 

 Staff received the application fee and the account is paid-in-full.  Staff also distributed copies of the application, final plat, and other 
materials to all relevant stakeholders as required. 

 shall coordinate with the County Engineer who shall review the final plat to determine conformance with the engineering design 
standards of these regulations and to verify accuracy of the legal descriptions and survey data; and 

 Staff have received written confirmation that the County Engineer has reviewed and determined that te final plat conforms to the 
engineering and design standards of these regulations, and he has verified the accuracy of the legal descriptions and survey data. 

 shall review the final plat to determine conformance with the design standards of these regulations and with the required form 
of the plat and related documents; and 

 Staff verified that the final plat conforms to the design standards of these regulations, as well as the required form of the final plat. 

 

 shall assure conformance with the goals and objectives of the County’s General Plan, the CED staff may make 
recommendations for conditions for approval including use restrictions required to preserve and improve the peace, safety, 
health, welfare, comfort, and convenience of the future residents of the subdivision and neighboring properties. 

 Staff attest to the final plat conforming to the goals and objectives of the county plan.  Staff recommends approval of the f inal plat. 

 

                 

 
ZONING COMMISSION – REVIEW CRITERIA (SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE) 

The County’s Zoning and Subdivision Ordinances require certain actions from County staff and the Planning and Zoning Commission. 
Per these requirements, the Planning and Zoning Commission: 

 shall conduct a public hearing on a final plat for a minor subdivision. Notice of the date, time and location of the hearing will be 
mailed to the owners of all property within 1,000 feet for the subject property not less than four nor more than twenty days prior 
to the date of the hearing; and 

 Staff have ensured that the legal requirements have been met for publicly noticing this public hearing, all as required by law. Staff have 
also ensured the notice requirement for adjacent landowners within 1000 FT have also been met.  

 shall review the final plat and the staff reports and other information presented to determine whether the plat conforms to the 
ordinances, general plan and other policies of the county; and 

 Staff have compiled, reviewed, and analyzed all relevant materials to determine whether the plat conforms to the ordinances, general 
plan, and other policies of the County, or not. Staff provided this information in a “Staff Report” format and made them avai lable to the 
Commission well in advance of the required public hearing. The Commission also held a public hearing to review, analyze, and discuss 
the final plat and other relevant information. 

 may recommend specific conditions for approval including use restrictions required to preserve and improve the peace, safety, 
health, welfare, comfort, and convenience of the future residents of the subdivision and neighboring properties; and 

 Staff does not recommend any specific conditions for this final plat. However, specific conditions (if any) may be recommended by the 
Commission. 

 shall forward a report of its finding and a recommendation to the Board of Supervisors. The recommendation shall be in the 
form of a resolution to be certified as part of the final plat materials. A copy of the report and the resolution shall also be 
forwarded to the property owner, the subdivider and the land surveyor for the subdivision. 

 During its required public hearing on the final plat, the Board of Supervisors will receive the final staff report and the Commission's 
recommendation on said plat and shall approve, approve with conditions, or disapprove the plat. The Supervisors may table the matter 
with the consent of the subdivider. Approval shall be in the form of a resolution to be certified as part of the final plat. Staff will coordinate 
with the subdivider and land surveyor to ensure all copies and recordings are submitted and received, all as required by law.  

 



8 

 

EXTRATERRITORAL REVIEW 
The following document to be recorded in the Woodbury County Recorder’s office as attachments with the final plat 

 



9 

 



10 

 



11 

 

 
 
 



12 

 

LEGAL NOTIFICATION 

 



13 

 

PROPERTY OWNER(S) NOTIFICATION 

Total Property Owners within 1000 FT via Certified Abstractor’s 
Listing: 

6 

Notification Letter Date: April 5, 2024 

Public Hearing Board: Zoning Commission 

Public Hearing Date: April 22, 2024, 5:00 PM 

Phone Inquiries: 0 

Written Inquiries: 0 

The names of the property owners are listed below.   

When more comments are received after the printing of this packet, they will be provided at the meeting.  
 

 
 

PROPERTY OWNER(S) MAILING ADDRESS COMMENTS 
Peggy A. Yockey 930 28th Ave. Council Bluffs IA 51501 No comments. 

Gothier Mink, Inc. 601 W. Main St. Anthon IA 51004-8239 No comments. 
Matthew Lee Berning 2287 Lennox Ave. Anthon IA 51004 No comments. 

Rick D. Lorenzen & Nancy O. 
Lorenzen 2255 Lennox Ave. Anthon IA 51004-8121 

No comments. 

Matthew C.T. Petersen & 
Romanza E. Petersen 2227 Lennox Ave. Anthon IA 51004 

No comments. 

St. Joseph Roman Catholic 
Church PO Box 285 Anthon IA 51004-0285 

No comments. 

 

 

STAKEHOLDER COMMENTS 
911 COMMUNICATIONS CENTER: No comments. 

CITY OF ANTHON: No comments. 

FIBERCOMM: No comments. 

IOWA DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES (IDNR): No comments. 

IOWA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (IDOT): No comments. 

LOESS HILLS NATIONAL SCENIC BYWAY: No comments. 

LOESS HILLS PROGRAM: No comments. 

LONGLINES: No comments. 

LUMEN: No comments. 

MAGELLAN PIPELINE: No comments. 

MILLER TOWNSHIP: No comments. 

MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY (Electrical Division): I have reviewed the following proposed minor subdivision for MEC electric.  We have no conflicts.  The 
developer should be made aware that any requested relocation or extension of distribution facilities is 
subject to a customer contribution.  Thanks Dan, Have a great week! – Casey Meinen, 4/1/24 

MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY (Gas Division): No conflicts for MEC “Gas”. – Tyler Ahlquist, 4/1/24 

NATURAL RESOURCES CONSERVATION SERVICES (NRCS): No comments. 

NORTHERN NATURAL GAS: No comments. 

NORTHWEST IOWA POWER COOPERATIVE (NIPCO): Have reviewed this zoning request.  NIPCO has no issues with this request. – Jeff Zettel, 4/5/24. 

NUSTAR PIPELINE: No concerns from NuStar. – Matt McGee, 4/1/24 

SIOUXLAND DISTRICT HEALTH DEPARTMENT: No comments. 

WIATEL: No comments. 

WINNEBAGO TRIBE: No comments. 

WOODBURY COUNTY ASSESSOR: No comments. 

WOODBURY COUNTY CONSERVATION: No comments. 

WOODBURY COUNTY EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT: No comments. 

WOODBURY COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES: No comments. 

WOODBURY COUNTY ENGINEER: SEE REVIEW MEMO BELOW 

WOODBURY COUNTY RECORDER: Looks good to me. – Diane Swoboda Peterson, 4/1/24 

WOODBURY COUNTY RURAL ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE (REC): No comments. 

WOODBURY COUNTY SHERIFF: No comments. 

WOODBURY COUNTY SOIL AND WATER CONSERVATION 
DISTRICT: 

The WCSWCD does not have any comments regarding this proposal. – Neil Stockfleth, 4/3/24. 

WOODBURY COUNTY TREASURER: Taxes are paid in full.  No other comments. – Tina Bertrand, 4/1/24 
 

 



14 

 

 

See subsequent emails that confirm the closure error has been 

corrected. 



15 

 

 



16 

 

 
 

PLAT MAP EXCERPT 

 
 



17 

 

TITLE OPINION 

 



18 

 

PARCEL REPORT(S) 

  



19 

 

 



20 

 

ZONING MAP 

 



21 

 

SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA (SFHA) MAP 

 



22 

 

DRAFT - SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA (SFHA) MAP 

 
 

 

BASE FLOOD ELEVATION DATA 
Base Flood Elevation Data (BFE) is not required as the area requested to be subdivided is not within the Special Flood 
Hazard Area. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



23 

 

ELEVATION MAP 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



24 

 

SOIL MAP(S) 

 



25 

 

SOIL REPORT(S) 

 



26 

 

 
 



WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM

Date:    _________________         Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:       ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:   

ACTION REQUIRED:

   Approve Resolution         Approve Motion   Approve Ordinance

Public Hearing    Other:  Informational      Attachments    ✔

✔

✔

✔

A) Public hearing to consider zoning ordinance text amendments to the Floodplain Management
Ordinance in the Zoning Ordinance Section 5.03. B) Approve the second reading of the Ordinance.

On March 25, 2024, the Woodbury County Zoning Commission voted to recommend an ordinance amending the text of the 
Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance to amend portions of Section 5.03 Floodplain Management Ordinance.  The purpose of the 
proposed amendments are to bring the county's floodplain regulations into compliance with federal and state regulations in 
anticipation of the new floodplain maps that will go into effect in Woodbury County on July 17, 2024.  This action is required so the 
county may continue its good standing in the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP).  

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE TEXT OF THE WOODBURY COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE WITH REVISED LANGUAGE 
TO MEET THE MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS FOR ACCEPTANCE IN THE NATIONAL FLOOD INSURANCE PROGRAM FOR 
COUNTIES WHICH HAVE A DETAILED FLOOD INSURANCE STUDY (FIS) ISSUED BY THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY 
MANAGEMENT AGENCY (FEMA).

Daniel Priestley

4/30/24 4:404/25/24



FINANCIAL IMPACT:

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 
PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes ☐☐ No       ☐☐

RECOMMENDATION:    

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:   

Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016. 

A) Public hearing to consider zoning ordinance text amendments to the Floodplain Management Ordinance
in the Zoning Ordinance Section 5.03.

B) Approve the second reading of the Ordinance.

Open and close the public hearing (Set Time - 4:40 PM)

Conduct and approve the first reading of the Ordinance.

The third and final reading of the ordinance has been scheduled for Tuesday, May 7, 2024 at 4:40 PM. 

0





WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA

ORDINANCE NO. ___

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE TEXT OF THE WOODBURY COUNTY ZONING 
ORDINANCE WITH REVISED LANGUAGE TO MEET THE MINIMUM 
REQUIREMENTS FOR ACCEPTANCE IN THE NATIONAL FLOOD INSURANCE 
PROGRAM FOR COUNTIES WHICH HAVE A DETAILED FLOOD INSURANCE 
STUDY (FIS) ISSUED BY THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY 
(FEMA).

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA THAT THE BELOW ZONING ORDINANCE LANGUAGE 
AMENDMENTS BE MADE:

Amendment #1 – Section 5.03.1 AA

On page 59, to repeal the following language from Section 5.03.1 AA:

AA.  New Factory-Built Home Park Or Subdivision - A factory-built home park or 
subdivision for which the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on which the 
factory-built homes are to be affixed (including at a minimum, the installation of utilities, 
the construction of streets, and either final site grading or the pouring of concrete pads) 
is completed on or after the effective date of the effective date of the first floodplain 
management regulations adopted by the community.

On page 59, to replace Section 5.03.1 AA with the following:

AA. New Factory-Built Home Park Or Subdivision - A factory-built home park or 
subdivision for which the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on which the 
factory-built homes are to be affixed (including at a minimum, the installation of utilities, 
the construction of streets, and either final site grading or the pouring of concrete pads) 
is completed on or after the effective date of the first floodplain management regulations 
adopted by the community.

Amendment #2 – Section 5.03.3 B

On page 62, to repeal the following language from Section 5.03.3 B:

B. Establishment of Official Floodplain Zoning Map.  The Flood Insurance Rate Map 
(FIRM) for Woodbury County and Incorporated Areas, dated March 2, 2015, which were 
prepared as part of the Flood Insurance Study for Woodbury County, is (are) hereby 
adopted by reference and declared to be the Official Floodplain Zoning Map.  The 
Woodbury County Flood Insurance Study is hereby adopted by reference and is made a 
part of this ordinance for the purpose of administering floodplain management 
regulations.



On page 62, to replace Section 5.03.3 B with the following:

B.  Establishment of Official Floodplain Zoning Map.  The Flood Insurance Rate Map 
(FIRM) for Woodbury County and Incorporated Areas, dated 7-17-2024, which was 
prepared as part of the Flood Insurance Study for Woodbury County, is (are) hereby 
adopted by reference and declared to be the Official Floodplain Zoning Map. The 
Woodbury County Flood Insurance Study is hereby adopted by reference and is made a 
part of this ordinance for the purpose of administering floodplain management 
regulations.

Amendment #3 – Section 5.03.10 B(4)

On page 72, to repeal the following language from Section 5.03.10 B(4):

(4)  In cases where the variance involves a lower level of flood protection for buildings 
than what is ordinarily required by this Ordinance, the applicant shall be notified in 
writing over the signature of the Administrator that:  (i) the issuance of a variance will 
result in increased premium rates for flood insurance up to amounts as high as $25 for 
$100 of insurance coverage and (ii) such construction increases risks to life and 
property.

On page 72, to replace Section 5.03.10 B(4) with the following:

(4)  In cases where the variance involves a lower level of flood protection for structures 
than what is ordinarily required by this Ordinance, the applicant shall be notified in 
writing over the signature of the Administrator that: (i) the issuance of a variance will 
result in increased premium rates for flood insurance up to amounts as high as $25 for 
$100 of insurance coverage and (ii) such construction increases risks to life and 
property.

Amendment #4 – Section 5.03.10 C(2)

On page 73, to repeal the following language from Section 5.03.10 C(2):

(2) Decisions.  The Board shall arrive at a decision on an Appeal or Variance within a 
reasonable time.  In passing upon an Appeal, the Board may, so long as such action is in 
conformity with the provisions of this ordinance, reverse or affirm, wholly or in part, or 
modify the order, requirement, decision, or determination appealed from, and it shall 
make its decision, in writing, setting forth the findings of fact and the reasons for its 
decision.  In granting a Variance, the Board shall consider such factors as contained in 
this section and all other relevant sections of this ordinance and may prescribe such 
conditions as contained in subsection (b) below.

On page 73, to replace Section 5.03.10 C(2) with the following:

(2) Decisions.  The Board shall arrive at a decision on an Appeal or Variance within a 
reasonable time.  In passing upon an Appeal, the Board may, so long as such action is in 
conformity with the provisions of this ordinance, reverse or affirm, wholly or in part, or 
modify the order, requirement, decision, or determination appealed from, and it shall 



make its decision, in writing, setting forth the findings of fact and the reasons for its 
decision.  In granting a Variance, the Board shall consider such factors as contained in 
this section and all other relevant sections of this ordinance and may prescribe such 
conditions as contained in 5.03-10 C(2)(b).

Effective Date

This Ordinance shall be in effect on July 17, 2024.

ADOPTED AND PASSED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF WOODBURY 
COUNTY, IOWA

Dated this _____ day of _______, 2024.

THE WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

__________________
Matthew Ung, Chairman

__________________
Daniel Bittinger II, Vice-Chairman

__________________
Mark Nelson

__________________
Keith Radig

__________________
Jeremy Taylor

ATTEST:

________________________________
Patrick F. Gill, Woodbury County Auditor

Adoption Timeline:
Public Hearing and 1st Reading: ______________
Public Hearing and 2nd Reading: ______________
Public Hearing and 3rd Reading: ______________
Adopted: ______________
Published: ______________
Effective: ______________



AFFIDAVIT OF PUBLICATION
#363135- Public Hearing - Floodplain Management

The undersigned, being first duly sworn on oath, states that Iowa Information Media Group, a corporation duly

organized and existing under the laws of the State of Iowa, with its principal place of business in Sheldon,

Iowa, the publisher of newspapers of general circulation as identified below, and printed and published in the

city of Moville, Woodbury, Iowa, and that a legal notice, a printed copy of which is attached as Exhibit “A” and

made part of this affidavit, was printed and published in the publication(s) and editions dated as follows:

Daniel Priestly
Woodbury Co. Community & Economic Development
620 Douglas St. 6th Floor
Sioux City, IA  51101
dpriestley@woodburycountyiowa.gov

4/18/24 $79.61The Record

THIS IS NOT AN INVOICE

Myrna Wagner
Management, The Record

363135

Subscribed and sworn to before me by said
Myrna Wagner this 18th day of April, 2024

Lori Wiersma
Notary Public in and for State of Iowa



Dianne’s Dance
Moville, Iowa 

DiannesDance.com
Tap  Jazz  Clog

Page 15Thursday, April 18, 2024

CLASSIFIEDS

HELP WANTED
Truck Driver

Must have current 
health card & CDL. 
Casey Jackson 

Trucking
712-490-1207

• STORAGE RENTALS• CONTAINER RENTAL

FOR SALE 
OR FOR RENT
Storage Containers/
Shipping Containers

Two sizes - 8x20 or 8x40
Call 712-490-1207

SELF STORAGE 
UNITS

LAWTON LOCKUPS
Joe or Linda

(712) 944-5746

• HELP WANTED

• BULL SALE

• CUSTOM BALING

• AUCTION

• FOR RENT

• DANCE LESSONS

NOW HIRING
LAWTON PRONTO

is looking for 
PART-TIME CASHIERS

Weeknights and 
Weekends

$13.50/hour to start
Please apply in person at

91 Cedar Street
Lawton, IA

• WANTED

• PUBLIC NOTICE

• PUBLIC NOTICE

APT. FOR RENT
Pierson 

Housing Corporation
407 Hilcrest

307 Front 
and 701 First 
Pierson, Iowa

On-site laundry facilities
Stove & Fridge furnished
Some Utilities furnished

No Pets 
and No Smoking!

1-Bedroom $375
2-Bedroom $425

For More Info:
Murphy Realty & Mgmt, Inc. 
PO Box 476
Algona, IA 50511
515-295-2927

For Rent
Anthon Apartments

Anthon, Iowa
One Bedroom Apt.

On-site laundry facilities
Stove & Fridge included
Some Utilities Furnished

To view apt. contact:
Deb O'Connell at 

712-373-5647 
or 

Murphy Realty & 
Mgmt., Inc.
PO box 476This institution is an Equal 

Opportunity provider

WANTED: Looking for crop 
ground to rent. Call 712-253-
2914

Weaver 
Ranches

Private Treaty

2024 Bull 
 Sale
BULLS

(Small Down Payment)
  •  Red Angus 
 •  Black Angus 

•  Purebreds  
•  Composites

ALL BULLS KEPT TILL 
JUNE 15 AND FULLY 

GUARANTEED
712-490-8669

www.weaveranches.com

At the feedlot 5 miles 
east of Moville on D22

3152 160th Street
Moville IA  51039

BRIAN D. 
WEAVER

CLASSIFIED ADS WORK! 
Call 712-873-3141

• HOUSE FOR SALE

Plymouth County Recorder’s Office is looking 
for an individual to fill a Full-Time Clerical position.  

For job description and application, please visit 
our website at 

www.plymouthcountyiowa.gov 
(Job Openings).

Please mail or drop off application and resume to:
Plymouth County Recorder

215 4th Ave SE
Le Mars, IA 51031

Applications accepted until April 24, 2024

Maple Valley-
Anthon Oto

MAPLE VALLEY-ANTHON OTO 
COMMUNITY SCHOOL BUDGET 
HEARING AND BOARD MEETING 

Date: Monday, April 8th, 2024 
Time: 7:00 PM 
Place: Middle School Library, 

Anthon Iowa  
Present: Wimmer, Kennedy, 

Streck, Hamann, and Schram
Others:  9 guests
AGENDA: 
I. Opening of Meeting 
A. Call to Order 
B. Roll Call and Declaration of 

Quorum 
C. FIRST BUDGET HEARING of 

Proposed Budget for FY 2025 
President Wimmer called the 

meeting and budget hearing to order 
and declared a quorum at 7:00 PM

II. Communications 
A. Public Forum 
1. School Safety Grant Planning 

for 2024-2025 – our district received 
a $200,000 safety grant that will be 
used for  a new communications sys-
tem, updated security cameras, and 
updated safety entrances.  Mr. 
Thelander reviewed the timeline for 
this.

B. Correspondence   - none
III. Consent Agenda 
Hamann moved and Kennedy 

seconded to approve the consent 
agenda.  5 ayes.  Motion carried.

General $154,328.25: 
Management $1.078.41; PPEL 
$1,884: Activity $22,586.52; Hot 
Lunch $68,616.84; Infrastructure 
$55,616.84; Extra & Hourly Pay 
$142,074.43

IV. Action Items 
A. Employee Resignations/

Contract Modifications/Hiring – 
Streck moved and Schram seconded 
to approve the resignations of Corey 
Dose (Head Girls’ Basketball Coach), 
and David Seieroe (Elementary 
Guidance); and to approve the hiring 
of Paige Landwehr (Head Girls’ 
Basketball), Karly Kafton (Assistant 
Softball), Taylor Berg (Head 
Volleyball), Zack Scott (Assistant 
Football), and Kolby Nutt (Assistant 
Football).  5 ayes.  Motion carried.

B. Approval of Fall Coaching 
Contracts for 24-25 – Kennedy 
moved and Hamann seconded to 
approve the 24-25 fall coaches as 
presented.  5 ayes.  Motion carried.

C. Board Policy Review – 
Hamann moved and Schram second-
ed to approve policies 505.1, 505.2, 
505.3, 505.4, 505.6, and 505.7 as 
presented.  Policy 505.5 will be 
reviewed next month.  5 ayes.  Motion 
carried.

D. Classified Staff Handbook 
24-25 – Schram moved and Kennedy 
seconded to approve the classified 
staff handbook as presented.  5 ayes.  
Motion carried.

E. 2022-2023 Audit – 
Klingensmith reviewed the 22-23 
audit with the board.  The auditors 
found no items of concern.  Hamann 
moved and Streck seconded to 
approve the 22-23 audit.  5 ayes.  
Motion carried.

V. Discussion Items 
A. Registration Fees for 2024-

2025 School Year 
VI. Reports 
A. Principal Reports 
B. Superintendent’s Report 
VII. Future Agenda Item 

Requests 
A. Appoint Child Abuse 

Investigators and Designated Person 
for Asbestos 

B. Certified Staff Handbooks 
C. Student Handbooks 
VIII. Announcements 
A. Next Meeting – 2nd Budget 

Hearing, Monday, April 22, 2024, 7:00 
PM – in Mapleton 

B. Next Regular Meeting- 
Monday, May 8, 2024, 7:00 PM - in 
Mapleton 

IX. Adjourn – President Wimmer 
adjourned the meeting at 8:04.  The 
board continued in exempt session 
until 9:01 PM

MVAO Board President – 
Wimmer

MVAO Board Secretary -- 
Klingensmith

MVAO BOARD BILLS 4/8/24
GENERAL FUND
ADMIRE, TANA 

REIMBURSEMENT.......... 167.50
A L E S C H ,  J A M I E 

REIMBURSEMENT............ 24.68
AMAZON.COM BUSINESS 

ACCOUNT SUPPLIES.. 1,267.62
ARNOLD MOTOR SUPPLY  

SUPPLIES........................ 133.95
B A L D W I N ,  J O D Y 

REIMBURSEMENT............ 91.10
BOMGAARS SUPPLIES .... 1,152.60
BOOK SYSTEMS, INC. LIBRARY 

MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

...................................... 2,835.00
BRENNER’S SUPPLIES ....... 219.00
BULLWINKLE’S ICE CREAM 

RENTALS DESSERT THEATRE
......................................... 350.00

BURKE ENGINEERING SALES 
COMPANY SUPPLIES..... 104.00

BUSINESS PROFESSIONALS OF 
AMERICA REGISTRATION
......................................... 125.00

CENEX FLEETCARD FUEL 
CHARGES........................ 424.07

CENTURYLINK PHONE ....... 415.28
CITY OF ANTHON, ANTHON CITY 

HALL UTILITIES............ 6,254.82
CITY OF MAPLETON 

UTILITIES.................... 16,782.94
COLBERT’S MARKET 

SUPPLIES........................ 109.08
CORNHUSKER INTERNATIONAL 

TRUCKS BUS REPAIR..1,215.82
CORRECTIONVILLE BUILDING 

CENTER SUPPLIES.......... 36.53
CORRECTIONVILLE BUILDING 

CENTER SUPPLIES............ 7.55
CROGHAN,  BRENDA 

REIMBURSEMENT............ 29.74
DANBURY REVIEW 

PUBLISHING.................... 550.42
DECKER EQUIPMENT 

SUPPLIES........................ 809.35
DICK BLICK SUPPLIES.......... 76.18
FACTS EDUCATION SOLUTIONS, 

LLC SERVICES................ 740.44
FIRST SECURITY BANK CHANGE 

BAG.................................. 200.00
FIRST UNUM LIFE INSURANCE 

COMPANY INSURANCE..534.78
GREAT PLAINS ZOO 

FIELD TRIP...................... 178.50
HAMMAN, AMY 

REIMBURSEMENT............ 80.00
HANDKE,  K IMBERLY 

REIMBURSEMENT............ 92.22
HANSON, SAM 

REIMBURSEMENT.......... 198.00
HEALTHIEST YOU 

INSURANCE .................... 693.50
HENRY DOORLY ZOO FIELD 

TRIP ................................. 228.00
HOME DEPOT PRO INSTITUTIONAL 

SUPPLIES................... 10,654.67
INLAND TRUCK PARTS & SERVICE 

SERVICES .................... 2,292.49
INSTRUMENTALIST AWARDS LLC

SUPPLIES........................ 131.00
IOWA COMMUNICATIONS 

NETWORK INTERNET...... 28.03
IOWA READING ASSOCIATION 

SUPPLIES........................ 265.00
J.W. PEPPER & SONS, INC. 

SUPPLIES........................ 332.90
J A G E R ,  PAT R I C I A 

REIMBURSEMENT.......... 100.00
JAYMAR BUSINESS FORMS 

SUPPLIES.......................... 73.09
JESSEN AUTOMOTIVE 

SUPPLIES........................ 226.84
JOHNSON PROPANE INC 

PROPANE ..................... 2,625.00
JOSTENS YEARBOOK........... 37.36
JUNIOR LIBRARY GUILD 

SUPPLIES........................ 583.20
K E R N S ,  J E N N I F E R 

REIMBURSEMENT............ 12.50
K O VA R N A ,  D AV I D 

REIMBURSEMENT............ 35.00
LAUNCH PAD MUSEUM FIELD 

TRIP ................................. 180.00
LEFEBVRE, MICHAELA 

REIMBURSEMENT............ 65.00
MACS CHEVROLET PONTIAC 

SUPPLIES/SERVICES.. 1,149.47
MAPLE VALLEY ANTHON OTO 

ACTIVITY REIMBURSEMENT
...................................... 1,400.00

MAPLE VALLEY ANTHON OTO HOT 
LUNCH REIMBURSEMENT
......................................... 231.56

MAPLETON CASEY’S FUEL/
SUPPLIES..................... 1,063.47

MAPLETON COMMUNICATIONS 
INTERNET .................... 1,869.81

MAPLETON PRESS LEGAL 
PUBLISHING/RENEW ..... 344.28

MATHESON TRI GAS, INC 
SUPPLIES........................ 104.24

NEW COOP-UTE DIESEL..1,306.15
OFFICE OF AUDITOR OF STATE 

AUDIT............................... 625.00
QUILL CORPORATION 

SUPPLIES..................... 1,400.13
RESIDENCE INN CHICAGO 

TRAVEL BPA................. 1,075.40
SANITARY SERVICES 

GARBAGE........................ 421.30
SCHEER, CONSTANCE 

REIMBURSEMENT.......... 100.00
SCHOLASTIC BOOK FAIRS, INC. 

BOOKS.......................... 1,444.35
SCHOOL ADMINISTRATORS OF 

IOWA MEMBERSHIPS/
REGISTRATIONS ............ 200.00

S C H R A M ,  PA U L A 
REIMBURSEMENT.......... 168.02

SEXTON OIL CO. FUEL OIL/
FUEL ............................. 2,981.41

STOLL, JOHN REIMBURSE..170.10
STOLL, LANA REIMBURSE..382.70
T H E L A N D E R ,  J E F F 

REIMBURSEMENT............ 14.27
UHL, AMBER REIMBURSE .. 194.45
UNITED HEALTHCARE 

INSURANCE ............... 72,705.44
UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE 

POSTAGE ........................ 388.00
VERIZON BUSINESS SERVICES 

TELEPHONE.................... 140.05
VERIZON WIRELESS

TELEPHONE.................... 120.03
WEST MONONA COMM SCHOOL 

DISTRICT TUITION ...... 3,105.12
WESTERN IOWA TECH COMM 

COLLEGE POST SECONDARY 
ENROLLMENT.............. 5,848.00

WIMMER, JON 
REIMBURSEMENT.......... 166.00

WINSUPPLY COMMERCIAL 
CHARGE SUPPLIES .... 1,479.76

Fund Total: .................... 154,328.25

MANAGEMENT LEVY FUND
UNITED HEALTHCARE 

INSURANCE ................. 1,078.41
Fund Total: ........................ 1,078.41

PHYSICAL PLANT & EQUIP LEVY 
FUND

DANNCO, INC. 
EQUIPMENT................. 1,884.00

Fund Total: ........................ 1,884.00

STUDENT ACTIVITY FUND 
AMAZON.COM BUSINESS 

ACCOUNT SUPPLIES..... 435.23
ANDERSON’S PROM 

SUPPLIES........................ 223.35
B U R G E R ,  J A C O B 

REIMBURSEMENT.......... 323.00
BUSINESS PROFESSIONALS OF 

AMERICA REGISTRATION
......................................... 572.00

CHESTERMAN COMPANY 
CONCESSIONS............ 2,427.60

COLBERT’S MARKET 
SUPPLIES........................ 789.36

COUNTRY INN & SUITES DES 
MOINES TRAVEL.......... 1,196.16

DANNCO, INC SUPPLIES..1,537.85
DIRKSEN, KATHERINE 

REIMBURSEMENT.......... 416.26
GOLFBALLS.NET 

SUPPLIES........................ 661.03
GRAFFIX INC. dba WALL OF FAME 

SUPPLIES..................... 2,340.70
HOLST, LAURA 

REIMBURSEMENT.......... 863.00
HOMETOWN VARIETY 

SUPPLIES.......................... 16.96
IOWA GIRLS COACHES ASSOC. 

MEMBERSHIP ................. 525.00
IOWA HIGH SCHOOL ATHLETIC 

ASSOC. MEMBERSHIP... 132.00
IOWA QUIZ BOWL LEAGUE ENTRY 

FEES................................ 230.00
JOSTENS YEARBOOK........... 73.67
MASTERS OF MUSIC PROM 

SUPPLIES........................ 500.00
RESIDENCE INN CHICAGO 

TRAVEL......................... 2,150.80
RIDGE VIEW COMMUNITY 

SCHOOL ENTRY FEES... 170.00
SAM’S CLUB SUPPLIES ...... 732.84
SASS, ANGELA 

REIMBURSEMENT....... 1,157.20
S C H O L L ,  K AT H Y 

REIMBURSEMENT.......... 362.08
SIMPLIFASTER 

SUPPLIES..................... 1,349.00
S M E LT Z E R ,  B R I A N 

REIMBURSEMENT.......... 963.48
SONES, LINDA OFFICIAL .... 100.00
TROPHIES PLUS CONTRACT/VB 

MEDALS........................ 1,974.86
WIMMER, JON 

REIMBURSEMENT.......... 363.09
Fund Total: ...................... 22,586.52

SCHOOL NUTRITION FUND
B O G G S ,  S H E L L E Y 

REIMBURSEMENT............ 22.00
DFA DAIRY BRANDS 

SUPPLIES..................... 1,671.38
KEMPS SUPPLIES ............... 363.53
MAPLE VALLEY ANTHON OTO 

OPERATING REIMBURSEMENT
.................................... 45,405.64

MARTIN BROS. PKG. FOOD/
SUPPLIES................... 21,154.29

Fund Total: ...................... 68,616.84

INFRASTRUCTURE SALES TAX 
FUND 

AC & R SPECIALISTS 
REPAIRS.......................... 488.48

AHLERS & COONEY PC 
LEGAL.............................. 301.50

APPTEGY SOFTWARE ..... 6,450.00
FELD FIRE SERVICES......... 627.80
GORDON FLESCH COMPANY INC 

dba GFC COPIERS ...... 2,223.91
GRIFFITH PLUMBING 

SERVICES ....................... 210.00
INCONTROL ELECTRONICS 

SURVEILLANCE SYSTEM
...................................... 9,971.50

KOVARNA BROS dba GREEN WAY
SERVICES ....................... 400.00

NCH dba CHEMSEARCH 
SUPPLIES..................... 1,653.49

NRS, LLC dba MIDWEST 
CONSTRUCTION SERVICES
......................................... 510.50

RASMUSSEN MECHANICAL 
SERVICES SERVICE..14,365.02

RENTOKIL NORTH AMERICA, INC. 
dba SERVICES ................ 257.50

RICK’S COMPUTER SUPPORT/
HARDWARE/EQUIPMENT
.................................... 17,541.75

ROLLINS INC dba ORKIN, LLC 
SERVICES ....................... 600.00

TIMECLOCK PLUS TIMECLOCK 
SOFTWARE ....................... 92.21

Fund Total: ...................... 55,693.66
Published in The Record
Thursday, April 18, 2024
(#363155)

Notice Regarding 
Public Hearings
NOTICE REGARDING PUBLIC 

HEARINGS BEFORE THE 
WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS FOR THE 
CONSIDERATION OF ZONING 
ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENTS 
TO “SECTION 5.03 FLOODPLAIN 
MANAGEMENT ORDINANCE” IN 
THE WOODBURY COUNTY 
ZONING ORDINANCE

The Woodbury County Board of 
Supervisors will hold public hearings 
on the following item of business, 
hereafter described in detail, on 
Tuesday, April 23, 2024 at 4:40 PM, 
Tuesday, April 30, 2024 at 4:40 PM 
and Tuesday, May 7, 2024 at 4:40 
PM or as soon as possible thereafter 
as the matter may be considered.  
Pursuant to Iowa Code Section 
331.302, the second and third public 
hearings may be waived by the Board 
of Supervisors.

Said hearings shall be held at the 
Woodbury County Courthouse, 620 
Douglas Street, Sioux City, Iowa, in 
the Board of Supervisors’ meeting 
room in the basement of the court-
house.  Persons wanting to partici-
pate in the public hearings may 
attend in person during the meetings 
to comment.

Copies of said item may now be 
examined in the Woodbury County 
Auditor’s office in said Courthouse by 
any interested persons.  You may 
forward your written comments by 
mail or email to: Woodbury County 
Community and Economic 
Development, 6th Floor, Woodbury 
County Courthouse, 620 Douglas St., 
Sioux City, IA 51101; Emails should 
be sent to Daniel Priestley at: dpriest-
ley@woodburycountyiowa.gov.  Only 
signed comments will be considered 
and should be received no later than 
10:00 AM on Tue., Apr. 23, 2024.

All persons who wish to be heard 
in respect to this matter should 
appear to participate in the aforesaid 
hearing.

Item One (1)
SUMMARY OF ZONING 

ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 
TO SECTION 5.03: FLOODPLAIN 
MANAGEMENT ORDINANCE IN 
THE WOODBURY COUNTY 
ZONING ORDINANCE.  SUMMARY: 
A proposal to amend the text of the 
Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance 
to repeal and replace portions of 
Section 5.03: Floodplain Management 
Ordinance.  The proposal is to repeal 
and replace the following sections 
with updated content.  Amendment 
#1 - On page 59, to repeal and 
replace the text in Section 5.03.1 AA 
with the following:  AA.  New Factory-
Built Home Park Or Subdivision - A 

factory-built home park or subdivision 
for which the construction of facilities 
for servicing the lots on which the 
factory-built homes are to be affixed 
(including at a minimum, the installa-
tion of utilities, the construction of 
streets, and either final site grading or 
the pouring of concrete pads) is com-
pleted on or after the effective date of 
the first floodplain management regu-
lations adopted by the community.; 
Amendment #2 -  On page 62, to 
repeal and replace the text in Section 
5.03.3 B with the following:  B.  
Establishment of Official Floodplain 
Zoning Map.  The Flood Insurance 
Rate Map (FIRM) for Woodbury 
County and Incorporated Areas, 
dated 7-17-2024, which was pre-
pared as part of the Flood Insurance 
Study for Woodbury County, is (are) 
hereby adopted by reference and 
declared to be the Official Floodplain 
Zoning Map. The Woodbury County 
Flood Insurance Study is hereby 
adopted by reference and is made a 
part of this ordinance for the purpose 
of administering floodplain manage-
ment regulations.; Amendment #3 - 
On page 72, to repeal and replace 
the text in Section 5.03.10 B(4) with 
the following: (4)  In cases where the 
variance involves a lower level of 
flood protection for structures than 
what is ordinarily required by this 
Ordinance, the applicant shall be 
notified in writing over the signature 

of the Administrator that: (i) the issu-
ance of a variance will result in 
increased premium rates for flood 
insurance up to amounts as high as 
$25 for $100 of insurance coverage 
and (ii) such construction increases 
risks to life and property.; Amendment 
#4 - On page 73, to repeal and 
replace the text in Section 5.03.10 
C(2) with the following: (2) Decisions.  
The Board shall arrive at a decision 
on an Appeal or Variance within a 
reasonable time.  In passing upon an 
Appeal, the Board may, so long as 
such action is in conformity with the 
provisions of this ordinance, reverse 
or affirm, wholly or in part, or modify 
the order, requirement, decision, or 
determination appealed from, and it 
shall make its decision, in writing, 
setting forth the findings of fact and 
the reasons for its decision.  In grant-
ing a Variance, the Board shall con-
sider such factors as contained in this 
section and all other relevant sections 
of this ordinance and may prescribe 
such conditions as contained in 5.03-
10 C(2)(b).

EFFECTIVE DATE:  This 
Ordinance shall be in effect after its 
final passage, approval, and publica-
tion as provided by law.

Published in The Record
Thursday, April 18, 2024
(#363135)

Bid NOW - Online Only 
2005 Case IH 1200 Planter 

AuctionTime  
 Sat., April 20th - 4:00pm 

“A Night in Nashville”
Friends of Gehlen Ball 

Sat., April 20th - 4:00pm 
Chicago SCI - Chicago, IL

Fri., April 26th - April 27th 
SCI -  Boston, MA 

Sat., April 27th - 4:00pm 
SCI - Las Vegas, Nevada
Sat., May 4th - 4:00pm 

11th Annual Derby & 
Dreams Fundraiser  

Country Celebrations Sioux City, IA  
Sat., June 29th - 4:00pm 

SCI Arizona Chapter Tucson, AZ 
Sat., Aug. 10th - 4:00pm 

SCI - Phoenix, AZ 
Coming Soon 

Classic Cars, Tractors,  
Trailers, Harley Davidson 

Bikes, Ford F-350 and More 
BROCK AUCTION CO., INC. 

Le Mars (712) 548-4634  
“The Land Marketing Professionals 

for Over 100 Years”

GOD BLESS AMERICA

Custom Windrowing
& Baling

AJ JENSEN
712-870-0197

For Sale By Owner

Well cared for two-bedroom home 
with, one and a half bath, newer four 

season sun room addition, 
single car garage attached. 

205 South 2nd Ave., 
Anthon, Iowa.

Contact Rick Diamond

801-389-7834

$95,000.00

Teaching
• Full Time Voc Ag Teacher
• Full Time MS Reading Teacher
• Full TIme HS Science Teacher
• Full Time Elementary Guidance
Coaching & other
• MS Football Coach
• Asst Dance Coach
• HS Boys Track Coach
• Reg Route Bus Driver
• Asst. Technology
Applications available on the school website under Employment Opportunities

Woodbury Central School has 
the following openings for 
the 2024-25 school year:



WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM

Date:    _________________         Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:       ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:   

ACTION REQUIRED:

   Approve Resolution         Approve Motion   Approve Ordinance

Public Hearing    Other:  Informational      Attachments    ✔

✔✔

✔

A) Conduct the second public hearing for the consideration of the proposed Woodbury County 
Comprehensive Plan 2040.  B) Approve the second reading of the Comprehensive Plan.

On November 24, 2020, the Woodbury County Board of Supervisors voted to approve a contract with the Siouxland Interstate
Metropolitan Planning Council (SIMPCO) to facilitate a new Comprehensive Plan to update/replace the 2005 plan. By nature, a
comprehensive plan informs future directions, decisions, and policies through the analysis of current and past conditions. This
insight contributes to future economic strength, as well as improvements to quality of life, housing, transportation, and all other
aspects that support residents daily lives. In addition, this comprehensive plan devotes a chapter to disaster response, recovery,
and resiliency to ensure that Woodbury County uses foresight in planning and preparation for future pandemics and other natural
disasters. This project was funded by the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act of 2020. Some of the goals
of the CARES Act are to invest in future stability, growth, and opportunity and to develop a strong and resilient recovery. This
update coincided with the COVID-19 pandemic, which inevitably influenced the plan's contents and direction. Each chapter
addresses resiliency in county infrastructure, services, and land development. A new chapter is devoted specifically to Disaster
Response, Recovery, and Resiliency, addressing public safety, public health, and how they are both applicable to disasters of all
kinds.A Steering Committee was formed from County departments and provided background information and input needed to
undertake the public input efforts.

On March 25, 2024, the Woodbury County Zoning Commission voted to recommend the draft Woodbury County Comprehensive
Plan 2040 to the Board of Supervisors.

The proposed Woodbury County Comprehensive Plan 2040 is intended to serve as an advisory document that outlines the county's 
vision. The purpose of this comprehensive plan is to provide a current inventory of community services and resources and a 
thoughtful statement of the community's vision and goals for the future. The comprehensive plan includes analysis of the following 
planning topics: Housing, Economic Development, Transportation, Public Infrastructure and Utilities, Community Facilities and 
Services, Land Use and Natural Resources, and Disaster Response, Recovery and Resiliency. 

Daniel Priestley

4/30/24 4:424/25/24



FINANCIAL IMPACT:

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 
PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes ☐☐ No       ☐☐

RECOMMENDATION:    

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:   

Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016. 

A) Conduct the second public hearing for the consideration of the proposed Woodbury County 
Comprehensive Plan 2040.  

B) Approve the second reading of the Comprehensive Plan.

Open and close the public hearing (Set Time - 4:42 PM)

The third and final public hearing has been scheduled for Tuesday, May 7, 2024 at 4:42 PM.

0





RESOLUTION NUMBER _______

RESOLUTION TO APPROVE THE WOODBURY COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 2040

WHEREAS, Woodbury County residents and community members have provided detailed 
feedback on matters related to the future growth and prosperity of the Woodbury County 
community through a public input process; AND

WHEREAS, the Zoning Commission held a public hearing to discuss the plan and 
recommended approval of the Woodbury County Comprehensive Plan for 2040 by the Board 
of Supervisors; AND

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors has held three (3) public hearings to discuss the 
Comprehensive Plan; AND

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors has determined that the Comprehensive Plan meets the 
goals of providing a legal basis for land use regulation by analyzing existing conditions and 
developing growth goals and presenting a uni˪ed and compelling vision for the community 
which includes speci˪c actions necessary to ful˪ll that vision.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Supervisors of Woodbury County, Iowa, 
that the Woodbury County Comprehensive Plan for 2040 is hereby adopted.

SUPERVISOR____________ seconded the motion to adopt the resolution, and upon the 
question being put and roll being called, the following supervisors voted:

AYES:
NAYS:
ABSENT:

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS ___ DAY OF ______, 2024.

Matthew Ung, Chairperson, Board of Supervisors

ATTEST:

Patrick F. Gill, Woodbury County Auditor



Digital Access:
The proposed Woodbury County Comprehensive Plan 2040 may be accessed via the
Woodbury County website at the following links:

https://www.woodburycountyiowa.gov/community_economic_develo
pment/woodbury_county_comprehensive_plan_2040/

or

https://tinyurl.com/WoodburyCompPlan



AFFIDAVIT OF PUBLICATION
#363134- Public Hearing - Comprehensive Plan 2040

The undersigned, being first duly sworn on oath, states that Iowa Information Media Group, a corporation duly

organized and existing under the laws of the State of Iowa, with its principal place of business in Sheldon,

Iowa, the publisher of newspapers of general circulation as identified below, and printed and published in the

city of Moville, Woodbury, Iowa, and that a legal notice, a printed copy of which is attached as Exhibit “A” and

made part of this affidavit, was printed and published in the publication(s) and editions dated as follows:

Daniel Priestly
Woodbury Co. Community & Economic Development
620 Douglas St. 6th Floor
Sioux City, IA  51101
dpriestley@woodburycountyiowa.gov

4/18/24 $49.96The Record

THIS IS NOT AN INVOICE

Myrna Wagner
Management, The Record

363134

Subscribed and sworn to before me by said
Myrna Wagner this 18th day of April, 2024

Lori Wiersma
Notary Public in and for State of Iowa



Page 11

LEGAL NEWS
Thursday, April 18, 2024 THERecord

Correctionville 
City Council

ORDINANCE NO. 745-2024
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING 

THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF 
THE CITY OF CORRECTIONVILLE, 
IOWA, BY ADDING A NEW 
SECTION REGARDING NON-
PUBLIC WELLS

BE IT ENACTED by the City 
Council of the City of Correctionville, 
Iowa:

SECTION 1.  NEW SECTION.  
The Code of Ordinances of the City of 
Correctionville, Iowa, is amended by 
adding a new Section 90.19, entitled 
NON-PUBLIC WELLS, which is here-
by adopted to read as follows: 

90.19 NON-PUBLIC WELLS. 
Beginning with the effective date of 
this ordinance, no new non-public 
well or water system shall be installed 
where a public water supply system is 
reasonably accessible to the land-
owner.  The City shall make the deter-
mination of accessibility.  In the event 
the City determines the property is 
not accessible to the public water 
supply system, or if there is clear and 
convincing evidence that the accessi-
ble public water supply is inadequate 
to meet the needs of the landowner, 
than a variance from this section may 
be obtained from the City Council, if a 
well permit has been obtained pursu-
ant to state law or county ordinance.

SECTION 2.  REPEALER.  All 
ordinances or parts of ordinances in 
conflict with the provisions of this 
ordinance are hereby repealed.

SECTION 3.  SEVERABILITY 
CLAUSE.  If any section, provision, or 
part of this ordinance shall be 
adjudged invalid or unconstitutional, 
such adjudication shall not affect the 
validity of the ordinance as a whole or 
any section, provision, or part thereof 
not adjudged invalid or unconstitu-
tional.

SECTION 4.  WHEN EFFECTIVE.
This ordinance shall be in effect from 
and after its final passage, approval, 
and publication as provided by law.

Passed by the Council the 8th 
day of April, 2024, and approved this 
8th day of April, 2024.

/s/ Kenneth Bauer
Mayor, Kenneth Bauer

ATTEST: /s/ April Putzier
City Clerk, April Putzier

First Reading:  April 8, 2024
Second Reading: waived
Third Reading:  waived

Published in The Record
Thursday, April 18, 2024
(#363130)

Correctionville 
City Council

ORDINANCE NO. 746-2024 
An Ordinance amending 

Chapter 160, subsections 160.01 
through 160.09 of the City of 
Correctionville Code. 

Be it enacted by the City Council 
of Correctionville, Iowa. 

Section 1. Chapter 160, subsec-
tions 160.01 through 160.09 are 
amended to read as follows:

CHAPTER 160 FLOOD PLAIN 
MANAGEMENT

160.01 Definitions
160.02 Statutory Authority, 

Findings of Fact and Purpose
160.03 General Provisions
160.04 Administration
160.05 Establishment of 

Zoning (Overlay) Districts
160.06 Floodway Fringe 

(Overlay) District (FF)
160.07 General Floodplain 

(Overlay) District) (GF)
160.08 Appointment and 

Duties of Board of Adjustment
160.09 Nonconforming Uses
160.10 Penalties for Violation
160.11 Amendments
160.01 DEFINITIONS.  Unless 

specifically defined below, words or 
phrases used in this chapter shall be 
interpreted so as to give them the 
meaning they have in common usage 
and to give this chapter its most rea-
sonable application. 

1. “Appurtenant structure” means 
a structure which is on the same 
parcel of the property as the principal 
structure to be insured and the use of 
which is incidental to the use of the 
principal structure 

2. “Base flood” means the flood 
having one percent chance of being 
equaled or exceeded in any given 
year and is also commonly referred to 
as the “100-year flood.”

3. “Base flood elevation” (BFE) 
means the elevation floodwaters 
would reach at a particular site during 
the occurrence of a base flood event.

4. “Basement” means any 
enclosed area of a building which has 
its floor or lowest level below ground 
level (subgrade) on all sides.  Also 
see “lowest floor.” 

5. “Development” means any 
man-made change to improved or 
unimproved real estate, including (but 
not limited to) buildings or other struc-
tures, mining, dredging, filling, grad-
ing, paving, excavation, drilling oper-
ations or storage of equipment or 
materials.  “Development” does not 
include minor projects or routine 
maintenance of existing buildings and 
facilities, as defined in this section.  It 
also does not include gardening, 
plowing, and similar practices that do 
not involve filling or grading.

160.10  PENALTIES FOR 
VIOLATION.  Violations of the provi-
sions of this chapter or failure to 
comply with any of the requirements 
(including violations of conditions and 
safeguards established in connection 
with grants of variances) shall consti-
tute a misdemeanor.  Any person who 
violates this chapter or fails to comply 
with any of its requirements shall 
upon conviction thereof be fined not 
more than $500.00 or imprisoned for 
not more than 30 days.  Each day 
such violation continues shall be con-
sidered a separate offense.  Nothing 
herein contained prevent the City of 
Correctionville from taking such other 
lawful action as is necessary to pre-
vent or remedy violation. 

160.11  AMENDMENTS.  The 
regulations and standards set forth in 
this chapter may from time to time be 
amended, supplemented, changed, 
or repealed.  No amendment, supple-
ment, change, or modification shall 
be undertaken without prior approval 
of the Department of Natural 
Resources. 

Section 2.  Repealer.   All ordi-
nances or parts of ordinances in 
conflict with the provisions of this 
ordinance are hereby repealed.

Section 3.  Effective Date.   This 
ordinance shall be in effect from and 
after its final passage, approval and 
publication as provided by law.

First Reading:  April 8, 2024
Second Reading: waived
Third Reading:  waived
Passed and approved by the 

Council on the 8th day of April, 2024.
By: /s/ Ken Bauer
Ken Bauer, Mayor
City of Correctionville

Attest: /s/ April Putzier
April Putzier, City Clerk 
City of Correctionville

This is a summary of the 
Ordinance adopted by the City 
Council on April 8, 2024.  Anyone 
wishing to review the entire Ordinance 
may view a copy at the City Hall, 312 
Driftwood Street, Correctionville, 
Iowa 51016 between the hours of 
8:30 a.m. and 4:30 p.m.

Published in The Record
Thursday, April 18, 2024
(#363131)

Correctionville 
City Council

ORDINANCE NO. 747-2024
An Ordinance Amending 

Chapter 56.02, regarding License 
Fees.

Be it enacted by the City Council 
of the City of Correctionville, Iowa.

Section 1.  Section Modified:  
Chapter 56.02, of the Code of 
Ordinances of the City of 
Correctionville, Iowa is repealed and 
the following adopted in lieu thereof:

56.02  LICENSE FEES. The 
annual license fee is five dollars 
($5.00) for each spayed and neu-
tered dog or cat.  The annual license 
fee is ten dollars ($10.00) for each 
un-spayed or un-neutered dog or cat.  
All license fees shall become delin-
quent on the first day of March of the 
year in which they are due and a 
delinquent penalty of five dollars 
($5.00) per month shall be added to 
each unpaid license on and after said 
date.

Section 2.  Repealer:  All 
Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in 
conflict with the provisions of this 
Ordinance are hereby repealed.

Section 3.  Effective Date:  This 
Ordinance shall be in effect from and 
after its final passage, approval and 
publication as provided by law.

Passed by the City Council of the 
City of Correctionville, Iowa the 8thth 
day of April, 2024, and approved this 
8th day of April, 2024.

First Reading: April 8, 2024
Second Reading:  waived
Third Reading:  waived

By: /s/ Kenneth Bauer
Kenneth Bauer, Mayor

Attest: /s/ April Putzier
April Putzier, City Clerk 

Published in The Record
Thursday, April 18, 2024
(#363132)

Notice Regarding 
Public Hearings
NOTICE REGARDING PUBLIC 

HEARINGS BEFORE THE 
WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS FOR THE 
CONSIDERATION OF THE DRAFT 
“WOODBURY COUNTY 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 2040”

The Woodbury County Board of 
Supervisors will hold public hearings 
on the following item of business, 
hereafter described in detail, on 
Tuesday, April 23, 2024 at 4:42 PM, 
Tuesday, April 30, 2024 at 4:42 PM 
and Tuesday, May 7, 2024 at 4:42 
PM or as soon as possible thereafter 
as the matter may be considered.  

Said hearings shall be held at the 
Woodbury County Courthouse, 620 
Douglas Street, Sioux City, Iowa, in 
the Board of Supervisors’ meeting 
room in the basement of the court-
house.  Persons wanting to partici-
pate in the public hearings may 
attend in person during the meetings 
to comment.

Copies of said item may now be 
examined in the Woodbury County 
Auditor’s office in said Courthouse by 
any interested persons.  A digital 
copy may also be accessed online at: 
h t t p s : / / t i n y u r l . c o m /
WoodburyCompPlan.   The digital 
version may also be accessed online 
at: https://www.woodburycountyiowa.
gov/community_economic_develop-
ment/woodbury_county_comprehen-
sive_plan_2040/

You may forward your written 
comments by mail or email to: 
Woodbury County Community and 
Economic Development, 6th Floor, 
Woodbury County Courthouse, 620 
Douglas St., Sioux City, IA 51101; 
Emails should be sent to Daniel 
Priestley at: dpriestley@woodbury-
countyiowa.gov.  Only signed com-
ments will be considered and should 
be received no later than 10:00 AM 
on Tue., Apr. 23, 2024.

All persons who wish to be heard 
in respect to this matter should 
appear to participate in the aforesaid 
hearing.

Item One (1)
WOODBURY COUNTY 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 2040 - 
SUMMARY: To consider a compre-
hensive plan pursuant to Iowa Code 
Chapter 335.5.  The proposed 
Woodbury County Comprehensive 
Plan 2040 is intended to serve as an 
advisory document that outlines the 
county’s vision. The purpose of this 
comprehensive plan is to provide a 
current inventory of community ser-
vices and resources and a thoughtful 
statement of the community’s vision 
and goals for the future. The compre-
hensive plan includes analysis of the 
following planning topics: Housing, 
Economic Development, 
Transportation, Public Infrastructure 
and Utilities, Community Facilities 
and Services, Land Use and Natural 
Resources, and Disaster Response, 
Recovery and Resiliency.  

The draft copy is available for 
inspection online at: https://tinyurl.
com/WoodburyCompPlan.  The digi-
tal version may also be accessed 
online at: https://www.woodburycoun-
tyiowa.gov/community_economic_
development/woodbury_county_
comprehensive_plan_2040/

Published in The Record
Thursday, April 18, 2024
(#363134)

Notice Regarding 
Public Hearings
NOTICE REGARDING PUBLIC 

HEARINGS BEFORE THE 
WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS FOR THE 
CONSIDERATION OF ZONING 
ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENTS 
TO ADDRESS THE REGULATIONS 
FOR “UTILITY-SCALE SOLAR 
ENERGY SYSTEMS (US-SES) 
CONDITIONAL USE” IN THE 
GENERAL INDUSTRIAL (GI) 
ZONING DISTRICT

The Woodbury County Board of 
Supervisors will hold public hearings 
on the following item of business, 
hereafter described in detail, on 
Tuesday, April 23, 2024 at 4:45 PM, 
Tuesday, April 30, 2024 at 4:50 PM 
and Tuesday, May 7, 2024 at 4:45 
PM or as soon as possible thereafter 
as the matter may be considered.  
Pursuant to Iowa Code Section 
331.302, the second and third public 
hearings may be waived by the Board 
of Supervisors.

Said hearings shall be held at the 
Woodbury County Courthouse, 620 
Douglas Street, Sioux City, Iowa, in 
the Board of Supervisors’ meeting 
room in the basement of the court-
house.  Persons wanting to partici-
pate in the public hearings may 
attend in person during the meetings 
to comment.

Copies of said item may now be 
examined in the Woodbury County 
Auditor’s office in said Courthouse by 
any interested persons.  You may 
forward your written comments by 
mail or email to: Woodbury County 
Community and Economic 
Development, 6th Floor, Woodbury 
County Courthouse, 620 Douglas St., 
Sioux City, IA 51101; Emails should 
be sent to Daniel Priestley at: dpriest-
ley@woodburycountyiowa.gov.  Only 
signed comments will be considered 
and should be received no later than 
10:00 AM on Tue., Apr. 23, 2024.

All persons who wish to be heard 
in respect to this matter should 
appear to participate in the aforesaid 
hearing.

Item One (1)
SUMMARY OF ZONING 

ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENTS 
FOR PROPOSED UTILITY-SCALE 
SOLAR ENERGY SYSTEMS 
(US-SES) CONDITIONAL USE IN 
THE WOODBURY COUNTY 
ZONING ORDINANCE.

SUMMARY: Amendment #1 – 
To add “Section 5.08. Utility-Scale 
Solar Energy Systems (US-SES) 
Conditional Use…83” on Page iii of 
the Woodbury County Zoning 
Ordinance in the “Table of Contents” 
under the “ARTICLE 5 
SUPPLEMENTAL REQUIREMENTS” 
heading after Section 5.07. Special 
Event – RAGBRAI and Special Event 
– RAGBRAI with Alcohol…81.”

SUMMARY: Amendment #2 – 
To add a new section to the Woodbury 
County Zoning Ordinance beginning 

on page 83 entitled “Section 5.08: 
Utility-Scale Solar Energy Systems 
(US-SES) Conditional Use” to regu-
late the conditional use permitting of 
“Utility-Scale Solar Energy Systems” 
within the General Industrial (GI) 
Zoning District.  The purpose of this 
Section is to regulate the construc-
tion, installation, and operation of 
Utility-Scale Solar Energy Systems 
(US-SES) in Woodbury County, in a 
manner that promotes economic 
development, protects property val-
ues, and ensures the protection of 
health, safety, and welfare while also 
avoiding adverse impacts to import-
ant areas such as agricultural lands, 
conservation lands, and other sensi-
tive lands.  This Ordinance and its 
provisions shall not apply to those 
properties or projects occurring within 
the incorporated cities of Woodbury 
County.  The ordinance sets the 
requirements for the conditional use 
permitting of the US-SES including 
subsections that include Applicability, 
Conditional Use Permit (CUP), 
Application Materials, Requirements, 
Permitting Process, US-SES Building 
Permit Requirement, Woodbury 
County Road Use and Repair 
Agreement, Woodbury County Public 
Drainage System Protection 
Agreement, Operation and 
Maintenance Plan, Decommissioning, 
Abandonment, Financial Security, 
and Site Restoration Plan, Soil 
Erosion and Sediment Control Plan, 
Emergency Response Plan, Future 
Operators, Enforcement, Penalty, 
Severability, and Effective Date.

SUMMARY: Amendment #3 –
Following the addition of Section 
5.08, to appropriately renumber the 
subsequent page numbers for the 
“ARTICLE 6. DEFINITIONS” and 
Section 6.01: Construction of Terms. 
and Section 6.02: Definitions and to 
appropriately change the page num-
bers in the Table of Contents on page 
iii to the correct page numbers.

ENFORCEMENT PROVISIONS:
Section 5.08
16. Enforcement
A. Violations 
(1) It shall be unlawful to locate, 

erect, construct, reconstruct, alter, 
repair, convert, or maintain any build-
ing, land, or structure, or use any 
land, building or sign in violation of 
any regulation in, or any provisions 
of, this Section, or any amendment or 
supplement thereto, lawfully adopted 
by the County Board of Supervisors; 
or to fail to comply with any require-
ment or condition imposed by the 
Board of Adjustment. 

(2) Any person, firm or corpora-
tion found to be in violation of any 
provision of this Section shall be 
served written notice by the Zoning 
Director or designee stating the 
nature of the violation and providing a 
reasonable time limit for the satisfac-
tory correction thereof. Such person 
shall, within the period of time stated 
in the notice, take all necessary 
action to correct the violation and 
shall permanently cease such viola-
tion. 

(3) Each day during which the 
violation continues shall be a sepa-
rate violation. 

(4) A Notice of Violation may be 
served as a first attempt to gain com-
pliance. If compliance is not met with 
the sending of a Notice of Violation 
then a Citation shall be served on the 
property owner. The offender shall be 
provided a reasonable time, (not to 
exceed) thirty (30) days in which to 
correct the violation. A violation which 
occurs for a short period of time is 
observed and there is no other rea-
sonable means for ensuring compli-
ance, be served a citation immediate-
ly upon observation of a violation. 

(5)  If the violation is not correct-
ed, Woodbury County may seek such 
remedies, civil or criminal as are 
authorized by law.

17. Penalty
A. The Zoning Director or desig-

nee may assess the maximum civil 
penalty per day for each violation 
allowed upon each violation, as out-
lined in the Woodbury County Zoning 
Ordinance that continues to exist.

B. Remedies
(1) If work is being done in viola-

tion of any provision of this Section 
and continues beyond the date of 
notice and the work is not being done 
to correct a violation, an immediate 
stop-work order shall be issued by 
the Zoning Director. Such order shall 
be given to the owner of the property, 
the authorized agent(s), or the per-
son or persons in charge of the activ-
ity on the property and shall be post-
ed upon the property. The stop work 
order shall state the conditions under 
which work may be resumed.

(2) Violations by an individual or 
property owner will prohibit any addi-
tional permits for that property or 
other properties to be issued unless 
said permits will remedy abatement 
of the violation. Stop work orders will 
be placed on any work on other prop-
erty in which the violator is operating 
or owns.

(3) If the Zoning Director deter-
mines that a violation is an immediate 
threat to public safety or welfare and 
the property owner or operator has 
failed to take corrective action within 
the time period stated in the notice 
provided, Woodbury County may 
take such remedial action as is nec-
essary to protect the public safety or 
welfare. Such remedial action may 
include entering the property where a 
violation is present, correcting the 
violation, and placing a lien on the 
property to secure payment and reim-
bursement of any and all expenses 
incurred by Woodbury County to cor-
rect such violation.

(4) Woodbury County may seek 
other such remedies, civil or criminal 
as are authorized by law.

EFFECTIVE DATE:
This Ordinance shall be in effect 

after its final passage, approval, and 
publication as provided by law.

Published in The Record
Thursday, April 18, 2024
(#363136)

Bronson City 
Council

AN ORDINANCE FIXING AND 
ADOPTING AMENDED SOLID 
WASTE COLLECTION RATES IN 
THE CITY OF BRONSON.

City Code Section 6-1.13 is here-
by amended increasing the per 
receptacle charge by two dollars and 
fifty cents per month per container as 
follows:

6-1.13 SCHEDULE OF FEES. 
There shall be collected by the city for 
its services in collecting garbage and 
rubbish, the following mandatory 
charges collected monthly following 
the period for which the charge is due 
from each property which has a dwell-
ing or commercial structure thereon 
unless exempted. The charge shall 
be paid by the property owner unless 
the occupant shall have paid the 
charge within three (3) months of due 
date.

Landfill fee for either a single 
large container or a single small con-

tainer shall be $6.00 per month. For 
any household with more than one 
container the fee shall be $6.00 per 
month times the number of contain-
ers.

The per receptacle costs:
Single receptacle Standard size: 

$14.50 per month. Single receptacle 
Large size: $16.50 per month.

Any combination of Standard and 
Large receptacles shall be charged 
as multiples of the above rates for the 
periods of time such services are 
required.

First Reading: February 13, 2024
Second Reading: March 12, 2024
Third Reading: April 9, 2024

MAYOR
/s/ Jason Garnand
Jason Garnand, Mayor

ATTEST: CITY CLERK
/s/ Lindy Jessen
Lindy Jenssen, City Clerk

Published in The Record
Thursday, April 18, 2024
(#363144)

(#363133)

Subscribe to The Record for $36 per yearSubscribe to The Record for $36 per year
Woodbury, Plymouth or Cherokee 

Counties • Single Issue Price: $1.50

Get The Record at the 
click of a mouse at

www.movillerecord.com



WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM

Date:    _________________         Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:       ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:   

ACTION REQUIRED:

   Approve Resolution         Approve Motion   Approve Ordinance

Public Hearing    Other:  Informational      Attachments    ✔

✔

✔

✔

A) Public hearing to consider Zoning Ordinance Text Amendments for Utility-Scale Solar Energy Systems (US-SES) Conditional 
Use in the General Industrial (GI) Zoning District, including to add a new Section 5.08, amend the table of contents, and 
renumber the ordinance page numbers to accommodate the addition of the new section. B) Approve the second reading of the 
Ordinance.

Over five months ago, the Zoning Commission began an intricate process to address the direction given to them by the Board of
Supervisors (BoS) on August 8, 2023 and again on September 25, 2023 for a new proposed utility-scale solar ordinance. After
eight public meetings including two works sessions, and six public hearings of collecting comments from Woodbury County
residents and other stakeholders, the Zoning Commission has approved a recommendation to the BoS to address the permitting
requirements for Utility-Scale Solar Energy Systems (US-SES) in the unincorporated areas of Woodbury County at the March 25,
2024 meeting. The recommendation was approved with a 4-1 vote.

The Commission recommends for US-SES to continue to be regulated with a conditional use permit application within General
Industrial (GI) Zoning District only. The recommendation includes a process that involves the Zoning Commission, Board of
Adjustment, and the Board of Supervisors. The Commissioners are tasked to review the conditional use permit application, the
Board of Adjustment would consider the application for possible approval, and the Board of Supervisors would consider the building
permit application(s) and associated agreements. The recommendation contains additional requirements including a road use
agreement, a public drainage system protection agreement, an operation and maintenance plan, decommissioning, soil erosion and
sediment control, emergency response, enforcement and other requirements governing the application process including a one (1)
mile public notification area.

For further context regarding the Commission's proceedings, access to meeting information including agendas, backup materials,
minutes, and audio are available through the Woodbury County website at: https://www.woodburycountyiowa.gov/committees/
zoning_commission/. The Commission met for either a public hearing or work session on the following dates: September 11, 2023,
September 25, 2023, October 16, 2023 (Work Session), October 23, 2023, November 27, 2023, January 17, 2024 (Work Session),
January 22, 2024, and March 25, 2024.

Please refer to the draft copy of the Zoning Commission minutes from March 25, 2023 for further details about the Commission's
recommendation.

A recommendation from the Woodbury County Zoning Commission from March 25, 2024 to address the regulation of Utility-Scale 
Solar Energy Systems (US-SES) in the unincorporated areas of Woodbury County with proposed Zoning Ordinance Text 
Amendments for the addition of a new section to the Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance entitled "Section 5.08: Utility-Scale Solar 
Energy Systems (US-SES) Conditional Use."  This new section includes regulations for the conditional use permitting of US-SES in 
the General Industrial (GI) Zoning District.  Other amendments include additions to the Table of Contents and adjustments to page 
number locations throughout the Zoning Ordinance.

Daniel Priestley

4/30/24 4:504/25/24



FINANCIAL IMPACT:

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 
PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes ☐☐ No       ☐☐

RECOMMENDATION:    

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:   

Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016. 

A) Public hearing to consider Zoning Ordinance Text Amendments for Utility-Scale Solar Energy Systems (US-SES) Conditional 
Use in the General Industrial (GI) Zoning District, including to add a new Section 5.08, amend the table of contents, and renumber 
the ordinance page numbers to accommodate the addition of the new section. 

B) Approve the second reading of the Ordinance.

Open and close the public hearing (Set Time - 4:50 PM)

Conduct and approve the first reading of the Ordinance.

The third and final public hearing and reading of the Ordinance has been scheduled for Tuesday, May 7, 
2024 at 4:45 PM.

0





WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA

ORDINANCE NO. ___

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE TEXT OF THE WOODBURY COUNTY ZONING 
ORDINANCE TO AMEND PORTIONS OF: THE TABLE OF CONTENTS; TO ADD A 
NEW SECTION ENTITLED SECTION 5.08: UTILITY-SCALE SOLAR ENERGY 
SYSTEMS (US-SES) CONDITIONAL USE; AND TO INCLUDE THE RENUMBERING 
OF PAGE NUMBERS.

WHEREAS, WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA DESIRES TO REGULATE ALL UTILITY-
SCALE SOLAR ENERGY SYSTEMS WITHIN THE UNINCORPORATED AREAS OF 
WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA; AND

WHEREAS, THE WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS DESIRES TO 
REGULATE THE CONSTRUCTION, INSTALLATION, AND OPERATION OF UTILITY-
SCALE ENERGY SYSTEMS IN A MANNER THAT PROMOTES ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT, PROTECTS PROPERTY VALUES, AND ENSURES THE 
PROTECTION OF THE HEALTH, SAFETY AND WELFARE OF ALL INHABITANTS OF 
WOODBURY COUNTY WHILE ALSO AVOIDING ADVERSE AND DETRIMENTAL 
IMPACTS TO RURAL RESIDENTS, THEIR ECONOMIES, UNSIGHTLINESS ON 
AGRICULTURAL LANDS, CONSERVATION LANDS AND OTHER SENSITIVE 
LANDS; AND

WHEREAS, IN ADDITION TO HOME RULE AUTHORITY, THE WOODBURY 
COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS IS EMPOWERED TO REGULATE THE 
ORDERLY DEVELOPMENT AND PROPER USE OF SOLAR ENERGY BY 
ESTABLISHING CERTAIN PROCEDURES FOR OBTAINING ACCESS TO SOLAR 
ENERGY UNDER CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF IOWA CODE CHAPTER 564A; AND

WHEREAS, THE WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS HAS TAKEN 
INTO CONSIDERATION THE THOUGHTS, BELIEFS, SUGGESTIONS AND VIEWS 
OF WOODBURY COUNTY CITIZENS AND RESIDENTS IN THE DEVELOPMENT OF 
THIS ORDINANCE.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA THAT THE BELOW ZONING ORDINANCE 
LANGUAGE AMENDMENTS BE MADE:

Amendment #1 –

In the Table of Contents, on page iii: To add “Section 5.08: Utility-Scale Solar Energy 
Systems (US-SES) Conditional Use” under the Article 5, Supplemental Requirements 
category ….... 83.



In the Table of Contents, on page iii: To repeal and replace “Section 6.01: Construction 
of Terms …….... 83” with “Section 6.01: Construction of Terms ….. 97”.

In the Table of Contents, on page iii: To repeal and replace “Section 6.02: Definitions 
…….... 83” with “Section 6.02: Definitions ….. 97”.

Amendment #2 –

Following the addition of Section 5.08: Utility-Scale Solar Energy Systems (US-SES) 
Conditional Use, to appropriately renumber the subsequent page numbers for ARTICLE 
6. DEFINITIONS, Section 6.01: Construction of Terms, and Section 6.02: Definitions.

To repeal and replace the start page of “Article 6. Definitions” from page 83 to page 97. 
 
To repeal and replace the start page of “Section 6.01: Construction of Terms” from page 
83 to page 97. 
 
To repeal and replace the start page of “Section 6.02: Definitions” from page 83 to page 
97. 
 
Amendment #3 –

Beginning on page 83, to add the following section to be known as Section 5.08: Utility-
Scale Solar Energy Systems (US-SES) Conditional Use.

Section 5.08: Utility-Scale Solar Energy Systems (US-SES) Conditional Use

1. Statement of Intent.  The purpose of this Section is to regulate the construction, 
installation, and operation of Utility-Scale Solar Energy Systems (US-SES) in 
Woodbury County, in a manner that promotes economic development, protects 
property values, and ensures the protection of health, safety, and welfare while 
also avoiding adverse impacts to important areas such as agricultural lands, 
conservation lands, and other sensitive lands. 

If this Section conflicts with any other provision of the Woodbury County Zoning 
Ordinance, this Section shall control.

2. Definitions.  For use in this Section, certain terms or words used herein shall be 
interpreted or defined as follows:

A. Applicant. The person or entity submitting the application under this 
Section, which is normally expected to be the owner or operator of a US-
SES, or the owner of the US-SES development.

B. Conditional Use Permit (CUP). A use that is allowed in conformance 
with the regulations of the zoning district in which it is located, if and only 
if, approved by the Board of Adjustment as provided in subsection 2.02-9.  



A CUP issued by the Woodbury County Board of Adjustment is required 
before associated building permit(s) can be issued in unincorporated 
Woodbury County. 

C. Concentrating Solar Power Systems. A system that generates solar 
power by using mirrors, lenses, or similar reflecting surfaces to 
concentrate sunlight collected over large areas onto smaller focal areas.  
Concentrating solar power systems are prohibited.

D. Feeder Circuits/Lines. A power line or network of lines used as a 
collection system that carries energy produced by a solar energy system 
to an interconnection point like a substation.  Feeder circuits are most 
often placed underground.

E. Glare/Glint. Light reflected off of a surface.

F. Ground-Mounted System.  A system where a rack(s) of panels is 
mounted on concrete posts or poles anchored in the ground and are wired 
or plumbed to an adjacent home or structure.

G. Interconnection. Link between a generator of electricity and the electric 
grid.  Interconnection typically requires connection via infrastructure such 
as power lines and a substation, as well as a legal agreement for the 
project to be connected to the grid.

H. Module. An individual unit comprised of multiple photovoltaic (PV) cells, 
with multiple modules used in a solar energy system.

I. Mounting. The method of anchoring solar energy system modules to the 
ground or a building.

J. Non-Participating Landowner.  A landowner who has not signed a 
binding agreement with the Applicant/Developer/Owner of the US-SES 
project.

K. Occupied Residence.  A building designed for, and occupied on a regular 
basis (50% or more of the year, and is currently occupied or has been 
occupied in the last two years) as an abode.

L. Operator. The entity or individual that operates a US-SES.

M. Owner. The entity or entities with an equity interest in the US-SES, 
including their respective successors and assigns.  Owner does not mean 
the landowner from whom a lease, easement, or other property right is 
acquired for locating the US-SES unless the landowner has an equity 
interest in the US-SES.  



N. Participating Landowner.  A landowner under lease, easement or other 
binding property agreement with the applicant, developer, or owner of the 
US-SES.

O. Photovoltaic (PV) Cells. Semiconductors which generate electricity 
whenever light strikes them; generally grouped on panels.

P. Project Area. The geographic area encompassing all components of a 
US-SES project, including border fencing.

Q. Property Line. The legal boundary between separately owned real estate 
parcels, and between privately owned parcels and public owned land or 
public right of way.

R. Setback. The minimum distance from a certain object, structure or point 
to the edge of any part or component of the US-SES.

S. Solar Array. Equipment used for private or utility scale solar energy 
systems. Can be mounted on primary or accessory structures, on a 
racking system affixed to the ground, or integrated as a mechanical or 
structural component of a structure.

T. Solar Collector. A device, structure or part of a device or structure for 
which the primary purpose is to transform solar radiant energy into 
thermal, mechanical, chemical, or electrical energy.

U. Solar Easement. An easement created to protect a solar project from 
encroachment by adjacent properties which would shade panels.  See 
Iowa Code 564A.

V. Solar Energy.  Radiant energy received from the sun that can be 
collected in the form of heat or light by a solar collector.

W. Solar Energy Systems, Private. An energy system that converts solar 
energy to usable thermal, mechanical, chemical, or electrical energy 
primarily for immediate onsite use that already has an existing principal 
use on the same parcel. Solar Energy Systems, Private shall be allowed 
only as a non-utility scale accessory use to a permitted principal use. 
Surplus energy sold back to a utility must comply with all applicable laws 
including but not limited to Section 199, Chapter 15.11(5) of Iowa 
Administrative Code, and all requirements of the Iowa Utilities Board. 
Systems can be mounted on primary or accessory structures, on a 
racking system affixed to the ground, or integrated as a mechanical or 
structural component of a structure.



X. Solar Energy Systems, Utility Scale (US-SES). An energy system, 
commonly referred to as a “solar farm”, which converts solar energy to 
useable thermal, mechanical, chemical, or electrical energy primarily for 
transmission through the electrical grid for offsite use or wholesale and/or 
retail sale. Systems can be mounted on primary or accessory structures, 
on a racking system affixed to the ground, or integrated as a mechanical 
or structural component of a structure. Utility scale solar energy systems 
do not include concentrating solar power (CSP) systems.  

Y. Solar Panel. 1) A grouping of photovoltaic cells used to generate 
electricity directly from sunlight.  A grouping of these panels is called an 
array. 2) A panel circulating water or other liquid through tubes to collect, 
transfer and store the sun’s heat for domestic hot water and building 
heat.

Z. Solar Storage Battery. A device that stores energy from the sun and 
makes it available in an electrical form.

AA. Solar Storage Unit. A component of a solar energy device that is used 
to store solar-generated electricity or heat for later use.

BB. Substation. A facility that converts electricity produced by a generator 
like a solar energy system to a higher voltage, allowing for 
interconnection to high-voltage transmission lines.

CC. System Height. The height of a solar energy system, usually referring to 
ground mounted systems.  Total system height is the measurement from 
the ground to the top of the mounting or modules associated with a 
system.  

DD. Transmission lines. Power lines used to carry electricity from collection 
systems or substations over long distances.

3. Applicability.  Section 5.08 applies to US-SES within unincorporated Woodbury 
County. It shall be unlawful to construct, erect, install, alter, locate, or operate 
any US-SES within unincorporated Woodbury County, without first obtaining a 
Conditional Use Permit from the Woodbury County Board of Adjustment.

At all times, US-SES shall comply with the terms of the Conditional Use Permit, 
the agreements and plans associated with the Conditional Use Permit, and the 
Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance. 

4. Conditional Use Permit (CUP).  US-SES shall require a Conditional Use Permit 
within the General Industrial (GI) Zoning District.  US-SES is prohibited in all 
other Zoning Districts in Woodbury County.  This use shall be subject to the 
procedures and standards included in this Ordinance. Concentrating solar power 
systems are prohibited.



5. Application Materials.  In addition to all submittal requirements of a conditional 
use application, the application for a US-SES installation shall include the 
following information on the site plan or in narrative form, supplied by the utility 
scale installation owner, operator or contractor installing the structures:

A. The name and address of the applicant, as well as the proposed owners 
or operators of the project, including the contact information (name, 
address, telephone and email) of their authorized representatives.  The 
application shall designate the entity who requests the Conditional Use 
Permit.

B. A certified abstractor listing of the names and mailing addresses of all 
owners of real property lying within one (1) mile from the subject property 
shall be provided with the application.  

C. Legal descriptions of all properties, leased and/or owned, identified to be 
part of the project area.

D. Location and size of existing and proposed structures.

E. Location and layout of vehicle parking, loading and queuing areas, street 
accesses, and driveways.

F. Number, location and spacing of solar panels/arrays.

G. Planned location of underground or overhead electric lines.

H. Project development timeline which indicates how the applicant will inform 
adjacent property owners and interested stakeholders in the community.

I. Pre-construction survey of nearby roads that may be impacted by 
construction of the facility.

J. Flood hazard area designations

K. Interconnection Agreement.

L. Operation and Maintenance Plan.

M. Decommissioning Plan.

N. Soil Erosion and Sediment Control Plan

O. Setback analysis showing the minimum setback requirements, or any 
agreed on greater setback provisions, are met by the project.



P. Emergency Response Plan

Q. Such other information as the Zoning Director may require to determine 
compliance with the provisions of this Ordinance.

6. Requirements.  US-SES are subject to the following requirements:

A. No application for a US-SES Conditional Use Permit shall be granted without first 
submitting all required information and documentation, and paying all associated 
fees to the County.

B. Setbacks.  The Zoning District Dimensional Standards of Section 3.04 
shall apply.

C. Height. A solar panel shall be no less than two (2) feet (Twenty-Four 
inches) off the ground.  A solar panel shall not exceed twenty (20) feet in 
height above grade at maximum tilt of the solar panel(s).

D. Screening. Project shall provide vegetative screening for all residences 
within 200 feet of the project boundaries.  

(1) Applicant shall submit a screening plan for each residence within 
200 feet of the project boundaries.

(2) Screening may be waived by the owner of a residence.  Waiver 
must be in writing and recorded.

(3) Screening may be waived by the Board of Adjustment upon 
submission of a viewshed study from the applicant demonstrating 
that the project is not within the viewshed of the dwelling due to 
topography, existing vegetation, or other factors.  The point of 
reference used in the viewshed study shall be as close to the 
dwelling as possible. 

(4) Any vegetative screening within the project boundaries shall be 
maintained throughout the life of the project by the project owner.  
Any screening on the dwelling property shall be maintained by the 
project owner for no less than twelve months.  

(5) Deciduous trees shall have a minimum caliper of 1.5” when 
planted, shall be at least six (6) feet tall within three (3) years of 
installation, and shall have a minimum mature height of twelve 
(12) feet.

(6) Screening plans shall use no less than two varieties of tree.



E. Utility connections. Reasonable efforts shall be made to place all utility 
connections from the solar installation underground, depending on 
appropriate soil conditions, shape and topography of the site, distance to 
the connection, or other conditions or requirements.

F. Glare minimization. All solar panels must be constructed to minimize 
glare or reflection onto adjacent properties and adjacent roadways and 
must not interfere with traffic, including air traffic, or create a safety 
hazard.

G. Appurtenant structures. All appurtenant structures shall be subject to 
bulk and height regulations of structures in the underlying zoning district. 

H. Floodplain considerations. Utility scale solar installations are considered 
to be maximum damage potential structures and facilities for purposes of 
the floodplain district regulations. 

I. Fencing/security. A security fence must be installed along all exterior 
sides of the utility scale solar installation and be equipped with a minimum 
of one gate and locking mechanism on the primary access side. Security 
fences, gates and warning signs must be maintained in good condition 
until the US-SES installation is dismantled and removed from the site. 

J. Compliance with local, state and federal regulations. US-SES 
installations shall comply with applicable local, state and federal 
regulations.

K. Submittal Requirements. In addition to the requirements in Section 
2.02.9, the applicant shall submit all required materials contained in this 
Section at the time of the application for a Conditional Use Permit.

7. Permitting Process.  In addition to the items required for a conditional use 
permit application in subsection 2.02-9. C, the process for a US-SES conditional 
use permit shall include the following:

A. Application for approval of a permit to construct a US-SES shall be submitted 
to the Zoning Director on a permit application form provided by the Zoning 
Director and must include any additional information determined by the 
Zoning Director as necessary to demonstrate compliance with all applicable 
codes and requirements, along with the application fee, as established by 
resolution of the Board of Supervisors.

B. As conditions for approval, the following agreements must be executed with 
Woodbury County:

(1) Decommissioning, Abandonment, Financial Security, and Site 
Restoration Plan



(2) Woodbury County Road Use and Repair Agreement
(3) Woodbury County Public Drainage System Protection Agreement

C. Distribution.  The Zoning Director shall distribute copies of the application 
materials to the Planning and Zoning Commission and to the appropriate 
County departments, and public utilities for comment.

D. Staff Review.  The appropriate county departments shall review the 
application and prepare reports of their findings and comments to the 
Planning and Zoning Commission prior to the review.

(1) To assure conformance with the goals and objectives of the county’s 
comprehensive plan, the Zoning Director may make recommendations 
for conditions for approval including use restrictions required to 
preserve and improve the peace, safety, health, welfare, comfort, and 
convenience of the future residents of the subdivision and neighboring 
properties.

E. All US-SES permit applications shall require review by the Woodbury County 
Planning and Zoning Commission and approval by the Woodbury County 
Board of Adjustment following the standards and procedures for Conditional 
Uses as outlined in Section 2.02-9 of the Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance 
and shall follow the same schedule for submitting applications.

F. Expiration. A Conditional Use Permit issued by the Board of Adjustment for a 
US-SES shall expire at the end of one (1) year from issuance if a US-SES 
building permit has not been obtained from the Board of Supervisors as 
provided in subsection 5.08-8. After expiration, a new US-SES conditional 
use permit application would have to be filed and approved prior to 
application for a US-SES building permit.

8. US-SES Building Permit Requirement.  In addition to the requirements of the 
Conditional Use Permit, each US-SES project must obtain an approved US-SES 
Building Permit from the Board of Supervisors prior to the start of any 
construction.  An approved US-SES Building Permit shall be valid for one (1) 
year from the date of its issuance.  The Zoning Department will supply a US-SES 
Building Permit application form to be used by any person or entity seeking to 
construct a US-SES project.  The application shall contain:

A. The name and address of the applicant, as well as the proposed owners 
or operators of the project, including the contact information (name, 
address, telephone and email) of their authorized representatives.  The 
application shall designate the entity who will be the permit holder of the 
US-SES Building Permit.



B. A Final Development Plan for the project, which shall contain aerial 
images of the entire proposed project area, showing the proposed location 
of the solar arrays, private access roads, feeder lines, substations and all 
other components of the project.  The Plan shall show property lines and 
setback distances, as well as all public roads and public drainage district 
facilities (i.e. – ditches and underground tiles) in the project area.  The 
Plan shall also identify any wind turbines, communication antennae, and 
airports (including private airstrips) located within five (5) miles of the 
project area; city boundaries within two (2) miles; and all lakes, permanent 
water courses and Public Conservation Areas within three (3) miles of the 
project area boundaries. In providing the above information, the Plan shall 
use a GPS coordinate system that is compatible with the County’s 
geographical information and data systems.  The Plan shall also include a 
mailing address for the owner of each communication antenna identified.

C. Project details, including the name of the project, the final number of 
arrays, generating capacity, and all the requirements of the Conditional 
Use Permit application as included in this Section.  

D. Approval.  Approval of the US-SES building permit by the Board of 
Supervisors shall be based upon findings that the proposed use of the site 
and the proposed location and dimensions of the structure(s) on the 
subject parcel(s) of real property comply with the zoning provisions of this 
ordinance, the conditions of the Conditional Use Permit and that no longer 
than one year has passed since the issuance of the Conditional Use 
Permit.  The Board of Supervisors must also ensure that agreements and 
plans as outlined in this Section are in place as part of the building permit 
issuance process.

E. Denial.  If a building permit application is denied, the application shall be 
returned to the applicant with a written explanation of the reasons for the 
denial.

F. Expiration.  A building permit shall expire and become void if the 
construction or change in use of the property has not commenced within 
one year after issuance.  If necessary, additional one-year renewals may 
be approved at the sole discretion of the Board of Supervisors.  

9. Woodbury County Road Use and Repair Agreement

A. Roads. Applicants shall adhere to the Woodbury County Road Use and 
Repair Agreement, and in doing so, shall identify all roads to be used for 
the purpose of transporting solar components, substation parts, cement, 
and/or equipment for construction, operation or maintenance of the solar 
installation and obtain applicable weight and size permits from the 
impacted road authority prior to construction.



B. Existing Road Conditions. Applicants shall conduct a pre-construction 
survey, in coordination with the impacted local road authorities to 
determine existing conditions of roads identified pursuant to Section 6.1.  
The survey shall include photographs or video and written documentation 
of the condition of the identified road facilities.  The applicant is 
responsible for on-going road maintenance and dust control measures 
identified by the County Engineer during all phases of construction.

10. Woodbury County Public Drainage System Protection Agreement

A. Applicants shall adhere to the Woodbury County Public Drainage System 
Protection Agreement, and in doing so, shall be responsible for immediate 
repair of damage to public drainage systems stemming from construction, 
operation or maintenance of the US-SES (where required).

11. Operation and Maintenance Plan. The applicant shall submit a plan for the 
operation and maintenance of the solar installation including all necessary 
services, frequency of service, preventative maintenance measures, and 
monitoring. The operation and maintenance plan should include at a minimum:

A. Preventative maintenance practices and schedules for all on-site 
equipment including but not limited to: inverters, panels, equipment pads, 
tracking systems, transformers, access entrances, internal roads, gates, 
fencing, security systems, stormwater management installations.

B. Annual reporting and verification to the Zoning Director on the status or 
changes to ongoing service schedule.

C. Schedule of all other monthly, annual, or semiannual reporting 
requirements for other submittals including: agricultural impact mitigation 
plan, decommissioning plan, and vegetation management plan.

D. Noise. No operating solar energy equipment shall produce noise 
exceeding any of the following limitations, with the exception of initial 
construction and routine maintenance. Adequate setbacks and effective 
noise mitigating equipment shall be used to comply with these limitations:

(1) An hourly average noise level of fifty-five (55) dBA during the day 
(between sunrise and sunset), and an hourly average noise level 
of fifty (50) dBA at night (between sunset and sunrise), as 
measured at the occupied dwelling of any adjacent property 
containing an existing residential structure. If the ambient sound 
pressure level exceeds 55 dBA during the day or 50 dBA at night, 
the standard shall be the ambient Leq (equivalent continuous 
sound pressure level) plus 5 dBA.



(2) A baseline noise evaluation shall be completed by a board 
certified professional by the Institute of Noise Control Engineering 
(INCE), or an appropriately licensed Professional Engineer (PE) 
prior to construction of the proposed solar site.

(3) A post-construction noise evaluation shall be performed by a 
third-party board certified professional by the Institute of Noise 
Control Engineering (INCE), or an appropriately licensed 
Professional Engineer (PE) following commencement of 
commercial operation of the project to verify compliance with the 
County's standards.

(4) The owner(s) of adjacent properties within 500 feet may 
voluntarily agree, by written and recorded waiver, to a higher 
noise level.

E. Issue resolution protocols. Contact information for responsible party to 
address issues that may arise (damaged equipment causing excessive 
noise, etc.).

F. Disposal/recycling plan for damaged or obsolete facility equipment or 
hazardous waste. No storage of inoperable or obsolete equipment shall be 
allowed to remain on-site. Site operator shall be responsible for the 
cleanup of debris related to storm damage.

G. Cleaning chemicals and solvents. During operation of the proposed 
installation, all chemicals or solvents used to clean photovoltaic panels 
should be low in volatile organic compounds and the operator should use 
recyclable or biodegradable products to the extent possible. Any on-site 
storage of chemicals or solvents shall be referenced.

H. Maintenance, repair, or replacement of facility. Maintenance shall include, 
but not be limited to, painting, structural repairs, and integrity of security 
measures. Site access shall be maintained to a level acceptable to 
emergency response officials. Any retrofit, replacement or refurbishment 
of equipment shall adhere to all applicable local, state and federal 
requirements.

I. Repowering. Proposals to replace more than twenty five percent (25%) of 
the panels in a facility within a twelve (12) month period will be required to 
submit a new Conditional Use Permit application based on the 
requirements in this ordinance for review and approval. A repowering 
event does not include replacement of panels in previously approved 
locations due to weather damage, equipment failure, or a force majeure 
event. 



(1) The plan shall include updated information for some or all or the 
reports and plans required by this section, as determined 
necessary by the Zoning Director. 

(2) The Board of Adjustment shall review and approve, conditionally 
approve, or deny the repowering plan as per the requirements of 
Sections 2.02.9 and 5.08.

12. Decommissioning, Abandonment, Financial Security, and Site Restoration 
Plan.

A. The application must include a decommissioning plan that describes the 
following: 

(1) The anticipated life of the utility scale solar installation. 

(2) The anticipated manner in which the project will be 
decommissioned, including plans to recycle components and 
dispose of any hazardous materials. 

(3) The anticipated site restoration activities. 

(4) The estimated decommissioning costs in current dollars. 

(5) The method for ensuring that funds will be available for 
decommissioning and restoration of the site. 

B. Decommissioning cost considerations. The applicant shall provide the 
estimated cost of decommissioning, excluding the salvage value, should 
be presented from both the solar applicant and from an independent third-
party engineer, at the recommendation of the Woodbury County Engineer, 
at the expense of the applicant.

(1) Removal of any hazardous materials at the facility, as determined 
by a Toxic Characteristic Leaching Procedure (TCLP) or other 
similar test approved by Woodbury County and as described in 
the facility's Operations and Maintenance Plan. TCLP testing shall 
be performed prior to any ground disturbance at the project site. 

(2) Salvage value shall not be included in the cost estimate. 

(3) The estimated decommissioning cost must be updated every 5 
years of the project using the same process as the initial 
decommissioning cost process. 

C. Site restoration activities. Restoration activities shall include, but not be 
limited to, the following: 



(1) Removal of all components and equipment. 

(2) Soil in project area shall be decompacted and seeded with a 
cover crop, unless otherwise specified in the approved vegetation 
plan and/or agricultural impact mitigation plan. 

(3) For any part of the energy project on leased property, the plan 
may incorporate agreements with the landowner regarding 
leaving access roads, fences, gates or repurposed buildings in 
place or regarding restoration of agricultural crops or forest 
resource land. Any use of remaining structures must be in 
conformance with the regulations in effect at that time.

D. Performance agreement and proof of financial surety. At the time of 
permitting, the applicant, facility owner, or site operator shall provide a 
Performance Agreement and accompanying financial surety instrument to 
cover the cost of decommissioning in accordance with the following: 

(1) Decommissioning funds shall be required in an amount of 125% 
of the most recent estimated decommissioning total cost paid for 
by the project owner/developer.  The decommissioning funds 
shall remain in place until one (1) year after the last day of 
decommissioning unless sooner released by the Woodbury 
County Board of Supervisors

(2) Decommissioning funds shall be maintained in the form of a 
performance bond, surety bond, escrow account, bank letter of 
credit, stable parent company guarantee, or other form of financial 
assurance as approved by the Woodbury County Board of 
Supervisors. Any financial document evidencing the maintenance 
of the decommissioning funds shall include provisions for 
releasing the funds to the County or a contractor hired by the 
County in the event decommissioning is not timely completed as 
outlined herein.

(3) Prior to any ground disturbance, grading or construction activity 
on the site, one-hundred twenty-five percent (125%) of total 
estimated decommissioning costs shall be provided by any of the 
means listed above. 

(4) Financial surety shall be maintained for the life of the project. 

(5) Proof of recertification of the financial surety instrument must be 
submitted to the County annually.  The county shall be notified 
immediately if the financial security instrument is cancelled, 
lapses, or otherwise is no longer in effect.  



(6) Every five (5) years, the facility owner or operator shall retain an 
independent Licensed Iowa Engineer approved by the County to 
re-estimate the total cost of decommissioning and attest that the 
value of the financial surety instrument is appropriate. This report 
shall be filed with the County and shall incorporate any new 
industry information learned since the last cost determination. 

(7) The required amount of the decommissioning fund shall match 
the re-estimated cost of decommissioning. Within ninety (90) days 
of filing the re-estimation report with the County, the facility owner 
or operator shall cause the fund balance of the financial surety 
instrument to be adjusted to ensure that it matches 125% of the 
re-estimated decommissioning cost.

E. Commencement of site decommissioning. Decommissioning of the site 
shall commence at the time identified in the project decommissioning plan 
or performance agreement, or when the facility is determined to have 
been abandoned. 

(1) Decommissioning shall be completed in accordance with the 
approved decommissioning plan. 

(2) The landowner or tenant shall notify the Zoning Director both 
when the project is discontinued and when decommissioning is 
complete. 

(3) Third-party verification, as well as County verification of 
completed decommissioning will be required before the financial 
surety may be released. 

(4) The facility will be considered abandoned or out of commission in 
the following circumstances: 

1. Upon termination or expiration of the solar farm 
leases/easements; or

2. After one year without production, storage of energy, or use 
as a backup facility; or

3. Failure to comply with the terms of the Conditional Use 
Permit after written notice of infractions from the County and 
a period of no less than 90 days to allow the operator to 
bring the US-SES into compliance.

4. Exceptions could be made for: 

a. A force majeure event that has occurred or is 
occurring, which will prevent the facility from resuming 



operation within 12 months. 

b. If the facility is in the process of being repowered. 

c. The project is pending completion of construction of 
the facility due to a backlog of cases or service 
requests in the MISO queue. 

d. A situation in which the project owner can provide 
evidence to the Woodbury County Board of 
Supervisors, that the facility's period of continuous 
inactivity is due to circumstances beyond the project 
owners control and that the facility has not been 
abandoned.

e. Appeal of the notice of abandonment from the county 
within a set time of the project owner's receipt of the 
notice in which the project owner explains the reasons 
for operational difficulty and provides a timeframe for 
corrective action that the county deems reasonable.

13. Soil Erosion and Sediment Control Plan. A grading plan shall be submitted 
and shall include all proposed changes to the landscape of the site (e.g., 
clearing, grading, topographic changes, tree removal, etc.).  The plan shall be 
accompanied with the following documentation:

A. Erosion and Sediment Control 

(1) The applicant agrees to conduct all roadwork and other site 
development work in compliance with a national pollutant 
discharge elimination system (NPDES) permit as required by the 
state department of natural resources and comply with 
requirements as detailed by local jurisdictional authorities during 
the plan submittal. If subject to NPDES requirements, the 
applicant must submit the permit for review and comment, and an 
erosion and sediment control plan before beginning construction. 
The plan must include both general 'best management practices' 
for temporary erosion and sediment control both during and after 
construction and permanent drainage and erosion control 
measures to prevent damage to local roads or adjacent areas and 
to prevent sediment-laden run-off into waterways. 

B. Stormwater Management Plan 

(1) For the purposes of pollutant removal, stormwater rate and runoff 
management, flood reduction and associated impacts, the 
applicant shall provide a detailed analysis of pre- and post-



development stormwater runoff rates for review by local 
jurisdictional authorities.

14. Emergency Response Plan

A. The applicant shall submit an emergency response plan prior to any 
ground disturbance at the project site detailing the planned response 
actions that will be taken by the solar facility operator, including any 
battery energy storage systems in the event of an emergency situation. 
These actions are intended to minimize health risks to personnel and 
people in the surrounding community, as well as minimize adverse 
impacts to the environment. 

(1) The plan shall include, but is not limited to, a detailed narrative of 
response procedures and the facility representatives responsible 
for management of the following plausible contingencies that 
could occur at the facility: natural disaster/severe weather, fire, 
security incident, capacity/transmission, environmental, chemical, 
pipeline (if applicable), and medical. It shall include procedures for 
a site evacuation, designated egress routes and emergency 
staging areas. 

(2) The plan shall include a standalone section detailing the 
emergency response protocols specific to battery energy storage 
areas (if applicable). 

(3) The plan shall be developed in coordination with local first 
responders, Woodbury County Emergency Management & 
Siouxland District Health personnel.

15.Future Operators

A. Future operators, successors, assignees, or heirs of an US-SES are 
subject to all conditions of the Conditional Use Permit, its associated 
agreements and plans, and this Ordinance. The holder of a US-SES 
Conditional Use Permit  shall notify the County at least 90 days prior of the 
intent to sell or transfer or change operators of the US-SES.

16. Enforcement 

A. Violations 

(1) It shall be unlawful to locate, erect, construct, reconstruct, alter, 
repair, convert, or maintain any building, land, or structure, or use 
any land, building or sign in violation of any regulation in, or any 
provisions of, this Section, or any amendment or supplement 



thereto, lawfully adopted by the County Board of Supervisors; or 
to fail to comply with any requirement or condition imposed by the 
Board of Adjustment. 

(2) Any person, firm or corporation found to be in violation of any 
provision of this Section shall be served written notice by the 
Zoning Director or designee stating the nature of the violation and 
providing a reasonable time limit for the satisfactory correction 
thereof. Such person shall, within the period of time stated in the 
notice, take all necessary action to correct the violation and shall 
permanently cease such violation. 

(3) Each day during which the violation continues shall be a separate 
violation. 

(4) A Notice of Violation may be served as a first attempt to gain 
compliance. If compliance is not met with the sending of a Notice 
of Violation then a Citation shall be served on the property owner. 
The offender shall be provided a reasonable time, (not to exceed) 
thirty (30) days in which to correct the violation. A violation which 
occurs for a short period of time is observed and there is no other 
reasonable means for ensuring compliance, be served a citation 
immediately upon observation of a violation. 

(5) If the violation is not corrected, Woodbury County may seek such 
remedies, civil or criminal as are authorized by law.

17.Penalty

A. The Zoning Director or designee may assess the maximum civil penalty 
per day for each violation allowed upon each violation, as outlined in the 
Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance that continues to exist.

B. Remedies
(1) If work is being done in violation of any provision of this Section 

and continues beyond the date of notice and the work is not being 
done to correct a violation, an immediate stop-work order shall be 
issued by the Zoning Director. Such order shall be given to the 
owner of the property, the authorized agent(s), or the person or 
persons in charge of the activity on the property and shall be 
posted upon the property. The stop work order shall state the 
conditions under which work may be resumed.

(2) Violations by an individual or property owner will prohibit any 
additional permits for that property or other properties to be 



issued unless said permits will remedy abatement of the violation. 
Stop work orders will be placed on any work on other property in 
which the violator is operating or owns.

(3) If the Zoning Director determines that a violation is an immediate 
threat to public safety or welfare and the property owner or 
operator has failed to take corrective action within the time period 
stated in the notice provided, Woodbury County may take such 
remedial action as is necessary to protect the public safety or 
welfare. Such remedial action may include entering the property 
where a violation is present, correcting the violation, and placing a 
lien on the property to secure payment and reimbursement of any 
and all expenses incurred by Woodbury County to correct such 
violation.

(4) Woodbury County may seek other such remedies, civil or criminal 
as are authorized by law.

Severability

Should any section or provisions of this Ordinance be declared by the courts to be 
invalid or unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the validity of the Ordinance as 
a whole, or any part thereof other than the part so declared to be invalid or 
unconstitutional.

Effective Date

This Ordinance shall be in effect after its final passage, approval, and publication as 
provided by law.



Passed and adopted by the Woodbury County, Iowa Board of Supervisors on this ____ 
day of ___________________, 20___.

THE WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

________________________
Matthew Ung, Chairman

________________________
Daniel Bittinger II, Vice-Chairman

________________________
Mark Nelson

Attest: ________________________
Keith Radig

________________________________ ________________________
Patrick F. Gill, Woodbury County Auditor Jeremy Taylor

Adoption Timeline:
Date of Public Hearing and First Reading____________ 
Date of Public Hearing and Second Reading____________
Date of Public Hearing and Third Reading____________
Date of Adoption_____________
Published/Effective Date____________



AFFIDAVIT OF PUBLICATION
#363136- Public Hearing - Solar Energy Systems

The undersigned, being first duly sworn on oath, states that Iowa Information Media Group, a corporation duly

organized and existing under the laws of the State of Iowa, with its principal place of business in Sheldon,

Iowa, the publisher of newspapers of general circulation as identified below, and printed and published in the

city of Moville, Woodbury, Iowa, and that a legal notice, a printed copy of which is attached as Exhibit “A” and

made part of this affidavit, was printed and published in the publication(s) and editions dated as follows:

Daniel Priestly
Woodbury Co. Community & Economic Development
620 Douglas St. 6th Floor
Sioux City, IA  51101
dpriestley@woodburycountyiowa.gov

4/18/24 $130.67The Record

THIS IS NOT AN INVOICE

Myrna Wagner
Management, The Record

363136

Subscribed and sworn to before me by said
Myrna Wagner this 18th day of April, 2024

Lori Wiersma
Notary Public in and for State of Iowa



Page 11

LEGAL NEWS
Thursday, April 18, 2024 THERecord

Correctionville 
City Council

ORDINANCE NO. 745-2024
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING 

THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF 
THE CITY OF CORRECTIONVILLE, 
IOWA, BY ADDING A NEW 
SECTION REGARDING NON-
PUBLIC WELLS

BE IT ENACTED by the City 
Council of the City of Correctionville, 
Iowa:

SECTION 1.  NEW SECTION.  
The Code of Ordinances of the City of 
Correctionville, Iowa, is amended by 
adding a new Section 90.19, entitled 
NON-PUBLIC WELLS, which is here-
by adopted to read as follows: 

90.19 NON-PUBLIC WELLS. 
Beginning with the effective date of 
this ordinance, no new non-public 
well or water system shall be installed 
where a public water supply system is 
reasonably accessible to the land-
owner.  The City shall make the deter-
mination of accessibility.  In the event 
the City determines the property is 
not accessible to the public water 
supply system, or if there is clear and 
convincing evidence that the accessi-
ble public water supply is inadequate 
to meet the needs of the landowner, 
than a variance from this section may 
be obtained from the City Council, if a 
well permit has been obtained pursu-
ant to state law or county ordinance.

SECTION 2.  REPEALER.  All 
ordinances or parts of ordinances in 
conflict with the provisions of this 
ordinance are hereby repealed.

SECTION 3.  SEVERABILITY 
CLAUSE.  If any section, provision, or 
part of this ordinance shall be 
adjudged invalid or unconstitutional, 
such adjudication shall not affect the 
validity of the ordinance as a whole or 
any section, provision, or part thereof 
not adjudged invalid or unconstitu-
tional.

SECTION 4.  WHEN EFFECTIVE.
This ordinance shall be in effect from 
and after its final passage, approval, 
and publication as provided by law.

Passed by the Council the 8th 
day of April, 2024, and approved this 
8th day of April, 2024.

/s/ Kenneth Bauer
Mayor, Kenneth Bauer

ATTEST: /s/ April Putzier
City Clerk, April Putzier

First Reading:  April 8, 2024
Second Reading: waived
Third Reading:  waived

Published in The Record
Thursday, April 18, 2024
(#363130)

Correctionville 
City Council

ORDINANCE NO. 746-2024 
An Ordinance amending 

Chapter 160, subsections 160.01 
through 160.09 of the City of 
Correctionville Code. 

Be it enacted by the City Council 
of Correctionville, Iowa. 

Section 1. Chapter 160, subsec-
tions 160.01 through 160.09 are 
amended to read as follows:

CHAPTER 160 FLOOD PLAIN 
MANAGEMENT

160.01 Definitions
160.02 Statutory Authority, 

Findings of Fact and Purpose
160.03 General Provisions
160.04 Administration
160.05 Establishment of 

Zoning (Overlay) Districts
160.06 Floodway Fringe 

(Overlay) District (FF)
160.07 General Floodplain 

(Overlay) District) (GF)
160.08 Appointment and 

Duties of Board of Adjustment
160.09 Nonconforming Uses
160.10 Penalties for Violation
160.11 Amendments
160.01 DEFINITIONS.  Unless 

specifically defined below, words or 
phrases used in this chapter shall be 
interpreted so as to give them the 
meaning they have in common usage 
and to give this chapter its most rea-
sonable application. 

1. “Appurtenant structure” means 
a structure which is on the same 
parcel of the property as the principal 
structure to be insured and the use of 
which is incidental to the use of the 
principal structure 

2. “Base flood” means the flood 
having one percent chance of being 
equaled or exceeded in any given 
year and is also commonly referred to 
as the “100-year flood.”

3. “Base flood elevation” (BFE) 
means the elevation floodwaters 
would reach at a particular site during 
the occurrence of a base flood event.

4. “Basement” means any 
enclosed area of a building which has 
its floor or lowest level below ground 
level (subgrade) on all sides.  Also 
see “lowest floor.” 

5. “Development” means any 
man-made change to improved or 
unimproved real estate, including (but 
not limited to) buildings or other struc-
tures, mining, dredging, filling, grad-
ing, paving, excavation, drilling oper-
ations or storage of equipment or 
materials.  “Development” does not 
include minor projects or routine 
maintenance of existing buildings and 
facilities, as defined in this section.  It 
also does not include gardening, 
plowing, and similar practices that do 
not involve filling or grading.

160.10  PENALTIES FOR 
VIOLATION.  Violations of the provi-
sions of this chapter or failure to 
comply with any of the requirements 
(including violations of conditions and 
safeguards established in connection 
with grants of variances) shall consti-
tute a misdemeanor.  Any person who 
violates this chapter or fails to comply 
with any of its requirements shall 
upon conviction thereof be fined not 
more than $500.00 or imprisoned for 
not more than 30 days.  Each day 
such violation continues shall be con-
sidered a separate offense.  Nothing 
herein contained prevent the City of 
Correctionville from taking such other 
lawful action as is necessary to pre-
vent or remedy violation. 

160.11  AMENDMENTS.  The 
regulations and standards set forth in 
this chapter may from time to time be 
amended, supplemented, changed, 
or repealed.  No amendment, supple-
ment, change, or modification shall 
be undertaken without prior approval 
of the Department of Natural 
Resources. 

Section 2.  Repealer.   All ordi-
nances or parts of ordinances in 
conflict with the provisions of this 
ordinance are hereby repealed.

Section 3.  Effective Date.   This 
ordinance shall be in effect from and 
after its final passage, approval and 
publication as provided by law.

First Reading:  April 8, 2024
Second Reading: waived
Third Reading:  waived
Passed and approved by the 

Council on the 8th day of April, 2024.
By: /s/ Ken Bauer
Ken Bauer, Mayor
City of Correctionville

Attest: /s/ April Putzier
April Putzier, City Clerk 
City of Correctionville

This is a summary of the 
Ordinance adopted by the City 
Council on April 8, 2024.  Anyone 
wishing to review the entire Ordinance 
may view a copy at the City Hall, 312 
Driftwood Street, Correctionville, 
Iowa 51016 between the hours of 
8:30 a.m. and 4:30 p.m.

Published in The Record
Thursday, April 18, 2024
(#363131)

Correctionville 
City Council

ORDINANCE NO. 747-2024
An Ordinance Amending 

Chapter 56.02, regarding License 
Fees.

Be it enacted by the City Council 
of the City of Correctionville, Iowa.

Section 1.  Section Modified:  
Chapter 56.02, of the Code of 
Ordinances of the City of 
Correctionville, Iowa is repealed and 
the following adopted in lieu thereof:

56.02  LICENSE FEES. The 
annual license fee is five dollars 
($5.00) for each spayed and neu-
tered dog or cat.  The annual license 
fee is ten dollars ($10.00) for each 
un-spayed or un-neutered dog or cat.  
All license fees shall become delin-
quent on the first day of March of the 
year in which they are due and a 
delinquent penalty of five dollars 
($5.00) per month shall be added to 
each unpaid license on and after said 
date.

Section 2.  Repealer:  All 
Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in 
conflict with the provisions of this 
Ordinance are hereby repealed.

Section 3.  Effective Date:  This 
Ordinance shall be in effect from and 
after its final passage, approval and 
publication as provided by law.

Passed by the City Council of the 
City of Correctionville, Iowa the 8thth 
day of April, 2024, and approved this 
8th day of April, 2024.

First Reading: April 8, 2024
Second Reading:  waived
Third Reading:  waived

By: /s/ Kenneth Bauer
Kenneth Bauer, Mayor

Attest: /s/ April Putzier
April Putzier, City Clerk 

Published in The Record
Thursday, April 18, 2024
(#363132)

Notice Regarding 
Public Hearings
NOTICE REGARDING PUBLIC 

HEARINGS BEFORE THE 
WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS FOR THE 
CONSIDERATION OF THE DRAFT 
“WOODBURY COUNTY 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 2040”

The Woodbury County Board of 
Supervisors will hold public hearings 
on the following item of business, 
hereafter described in detail, on 
Tuesday, April 23, 2024 at 4:42 PM, 
Tuesday, April 30, 2024 at 4:42 PM 
and Tuesday, May 7, 2024 at 4:42 
PM or as soon as possible thereafter 
as the matter may be considered.  

Said hearings shall be held at the 
Woodbury County Courthouse, 620 
Douglas Street, Sioux City, Iowa, in 
the Board of Supervisors’ meeting 
room in the basement of the court-
house.  Persons wanting to partici-
pate in the public hearings may 
attend in person during the meetings 
to comment.

Copies of said item may now be 
examined in the Woodbury County 
Auditor’s office in said Courthouse by 
any interested persons.  A digital 
copy may also be accessed online at: 
h t t p s : / / t i n y u r l . c o m /
WoodburyCompPlan.   The digital 
version may also be accessed online 
at: https://www.woodburycountyiowa.
gov/community_economic_develop-
ment/woodbury_county_comprehen-
sive_plan_2040/

You may forward your written 
comments by mail or email to: 
Woodbury County Community and 
Economic Development, 6th Floor, 
Woodbury County Courthouse, 620 
Douglas St., Sioux City, IA 51101; 
Emails should be sent to Daniel 
Priestley at: dpriestley@woodbury-
countyiowa.gov.  Only signed com-
ments will be considered and should 
be received no later than 10:00 AM 
on Tue., Apr. 23, 2024.

All persons who wish to be heard 
in respect to this matter should 
appear to participate in the aforesaid 
hearing.

Item One (1)
WOODBURY COUNTY 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 2040 - 
SUMMARY: To consider a compre-
hensive plan pursuant to Iowa Code 
Chapter 335.5.  The proposed 
Woodbury County Comprehensive 
Plan 2040 is intended to serve as an 
advisory document that outlines the 
county’s vision. The purpose of this 
comprehensive plan is to provide a 
current inventory of community ser-
vices and resources and a thoughtful 
statement of the community’s vision 
and goals for the future. The compre-
hensive plan includes analysis of the 
following planning topics: Housing, 
Economic Development, 
Transportation, Public Infrastructure 
and Utilities, Community Facilities 
and Services, Land Use and Natural 
Resources, and Disaster Response, 
Recovery and Resiliency.  

The draft copy is available for 
inspection online at: https://tinyurl.
com/WoodburyCompPlan.  The digi-
tal version may also be accessed 
online at: https://www.woodburycoun-
tyiowa.gov/community_economic_
development/woodbury_county_
comprehensive_plan_2040/

Published in The Record
Thursday, April 18, 2024
(#363134)

Notice Regarding 
Public Hearings
NOTICE REGARDING PUBLIC 

HEARINGS BEFORE THE 
WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS FOR THE 
CONSIDERATION OF ZONING 
ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENTS 
TO ADDRESS THE REGULATIONS 
FOR “UTILITY-SCALE SOLAR 
ENERGY SYSTEMS (US-SES) 
CONDITIONAL USE” IN THE 
GENERAL INDUSTRIAL (GI) 
ZONING DISTRICT

The Woodbury County Board of 
Supervisors will hold public hearings 
on the following item of business, 
hereafter described in detail, on 
Tuesday, April 23, 2024 at 4:45 PM, 
Tuesday, April 30, 2024 at 4:50 PM 
and Tuesday, May 7, 2024 at 4:45 
PM or as soon as possible thereafter 
as the matter may be considered.  
Pursuant to Iowa Code Section 
331.302, the second and third public 
hearings may be waived by the Board 
of Supervisors.

Said hearings shall be held at the 
Woodbury County Courthouse, 620 
Douglas Street, Sioux City, Iowa, in 
the Board of Supervisors’ meeting 
room in the basement of the court-
house.  Persons wanting to partici-
pate in the public hearings may 
attend in person during the meetings 
to comment.

Copies of said item may now be 
examined in the Woodbury County 
Auditor’s office in said Courthouse by 
any interested persons.  You may 
forward your written comments by 
mail or email to: Woodbury County 
Community and Economic 
Development, 6th Floor, Woodbury 
County Courthouse, 620 Douglas St., 
Sioux City, IA 51101; Emails should 
be sent to Daniel Priestley at: dpriest-
ley@woodburycountyiowa.gov.  Only 
signed comments will be considered 
and should be received no later than 
10:00 AM on Tue., Apr. 23, 2024.

All persons who wish to be heard 
in respect to this matter should 
appear to participate in the aforesaid 
hearing.

Item One (1)
SUMMARY OF ZONING 

ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENTS 
FOR PROPOSED UTILITY-SCALE 
SOLAR ENERGY SYSTEMS 
(US-SES) CONDITIONAL USE IN 
THE WOODBURY COUNTY 
ZONING ORDINANCE.

SUMMARY: Amendment #1 – 
To add “Section 5.08. Utility-Scale 
Solar Energy Systems (US-SES) 
Conditional Use…83” on Page iii of 
the Woodbury County Zoning 
Ordinance in the “Table of Contents” 
under the “ARTICLE 5 
SUPPLEMENTAL REQUIREMENTS” 
heading after Section 5.07. Special 
Event – RAGBRAI and Special Event 
– RAGBRAI with Alcohol…81.”

SUMMARY: Amendment #2 – 
To add a new section to the Woodbury 
County Zoning Ordinance beginning 

on page 83 entitled “Section 5.08: 
Utility-Scale Solar Energy Systems 
(US-SES) Conditional Use” to regu-
late the conditional use permitting of 
“Utility-Scale Solar Energy Systems” 
within the General Industrial (GI) 
Zoning District.  The purpose of this 
Section is to regulate the construc-
tion, installation, and operation of 
Utility-Scale Solar Energy Systems 
(US-SES) in Woodbury County, in a 
manner that promotes economic 
development, protects property val-
ues, and ensures the protection of 
health, safety, and welfare while also 
avoiding adverse impacts to import-
ant areas such as agricultural lands, 
conservation lands, and other sensi-
tive lands.  This Ordinance and its 
provisions shall not apply to those 
properties or projects occurring within 
the incorporated cities of Woodbury 
County.  The ordinance sets the 
requirements for the conditional use 
permitting of the US-SES including 
subsections that include Applicability, 
Conditional Use Permit (CUP), 
Application Materials, Requirements, 
Permitting Process, US-SES Building 
Permit Requirement, Woodbury 
County Road Use and Repair 
Agreement, Woodbury County Public 
Drainage System Protection 
Agreement, Operation and 
Maintenance Plan, Decommissioning, 
Abandonment, Financial Security, 
and Site Restoration Plan, Soil 
Erosion and Sediment Control Plan, 
Emergency Response Plan, Future 
Operators, Enforcement, Penalty, 
Severability, and Effective Date.

SUMMARY: Amendment #3 –
Following the addition of Section 
5.08, to appropriately renumber the 
subsequent page numbers for the 
“ARTICLE 6. DEFINITIONS” and 
Section 6.01: Construction of Terms. 
and Section 6.02: Definitions and to 
appropriately change the page num-
bers in the Table of Contents on page 
iii to the correct page numbers.

ENFORCEMENT PROVISIONS:
Section 5.08
16. Enforcement
A. Violations 
(1) It shall be unlawful to locate, 

erect, construct, reconstruct, alter, 
repair, convert, or maintain any build-
ing, land, or structure, or use any 
land, building or sign in violation of 
any regulation in, or any provisions 
of, this Section, or any amendment or 
supplement thereto, lawfully adopted 
by the County Board of Supervisors; 
or to fail to comply with any require-
ment or condition imposed by the 
Board of Adjustment. 

(2) Any person, firm or corpora-
tion found to be in violation of any 
provision of this Section shall be 
served written notice by the Zoning 
Director or designee stating the 
nature of the violation and providing a 
reasonable time limit for the satisfac-
tory correction thereof. Such person 
shall, within the period of time stated 
in the notice, take all necessary 
action to correct the violation and 
shall permanently cease such viola-
tion. 

(3) Each day during which the 
violation continues shall be a sepa-
rate violation. 

(4) A Notice of Violation may be 
served as a first attempt to gain com-
pliance. If compliance is not met with 
the sending of a Notice of Violation 
then a Citation shall be served on the 
property owner. The offender shall be 
provided a reasonable time, (not to 
exceed) thirty (30) days in which to 
correct the violation. A violation which 
occurs for a short period of time is 
observed and there is no other rea-
sonable means for ensuring compli-
ance, be served a citation immediate-
ly upon observation of a violation. 

(5)  If the violation is not correct-
ed, Woodbury County may seek such 
remedies, civil or criminal as are 
authorized by law.

17. Penalty
A. The Zoning Director or desig-

nee may assess the maximum civil 
penalty per day for each violation 
allowed upon each violation, as out-
lined in the Woodbury County Zoning 
Ordinance that continues to exist.

B. Remedies
(1) If work is being done in viola-

tion of any provision of this Section 
and continues beyond the date of 
notice and the work is not being done 
to correct a violation, an immediate 
stop-work order shall be issued by 
the Zoning Director. Such order shall 
be given to the owner of the property, 
the authorized agent(s), or the per-
son or persons in charge of the activ-
ity on the property and shall be post-
ed upon the property. The stop work 
order shall state the conditions under 
which work may be resumed.

(2) Violations by an individual or 
property owner will prohibit any addi-
tional permits for that property or 
other properties to be issued unless 
said permits will remedy abatement 
of the violation. Stop work orders will 
be placed on any work on other prop-
erty in which the violator is operating 
or owns.

(3) If the Zoning Director deter-
mines that a violation is an immediate 
threat to public safety or welfare and 
the property owner or operator has 
failed to take corrective action within 
the time period stated in the notice 
provided, Woodbury County may 
take such remedial action as is nec-
essary to protect the public safety or 
welfare. Such remedial action may 
include entering the property where a 
violation is present, correcting the 
violation, and placing a lien on the 
property to secure payment and reim-
bursement of any and all expenses 
incurred by Woodbury County to cor-
rect such violation.

(4) Woodbury County may seek 
other such remedies, civil or criminal 
as are authorized by law.

EFFECTIVE DATE:
This Ordinance shall be in effect 

after its final passage, approval, and 
publication as provided by law.

Published in The Record
Thursday, April 18, 2024
(#363136)

Bronson City 
Council

AN ORDINANCE FIXING AND 
ADOPTING AMENDED SOLID 
WASTE COLLECTION RATES IN 
THE CITY OF BRONSON.

City Code Section 6-1.13 is here-
by amended increasing the per 
receptacle charge by two dollars and 
fifty cents per month per container as 
follows:

6-1.13 SCHEDULE OF FEES. 
There shall be collected by the city for 
its services in collecting garbage and 
rubbish, the following mandatory 
charges collected monthly following 
the period for which the charge is due 
from each property which has a dwell-
ing or commercial structure thereon 
unless exempted. The charge shall 
be paid by the property owner unless 
the occupant shall have paid the 
charge within three (3) months of due 
date.

Landfill fee for either a single 
large container or a single small con-

tainer shall be $6.00 per month. For 
any household with more than one 
container the fee shall be $6.00 per 
month times the number of contain-
ers.

The per receptacle costs:
Single receptacle Standard size: 

$14.50 per month. Single receptacle 
Large size: $16.50 per month.

Any combination of Standard and 
Large receptacles shall be charged 
as multiples of the above rates for the 
periods of time such services are 
required.

First Reading: February 13, 2024
Second Reading: March 12, 2024
Third Reading: April 9, 2024

MAYOR
/s/ Jason Garnand
Jason Garnand, Mayor

ATTEST: CITY CLERK
/s/ Lindy Jessen
Lindy Jenssen, City Clerk

Published in The Record
Thursday, April 18, 2024
(#363144)

(#363133)

Subscribe to The Record for $36 per yearSubscribe to The Record for $36 per year
Woodbury, Plymouth or Cherokee 

Counties • Single Issue Price: $1.50

Get The Record at the 
click of a mouse at

www.movillerecord.com



WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________         Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:       ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED:

   Approve Resolution         Approve Motion   Approve Ordinance

Public Hearing                Other:  Informational      Attachments    

04/26/24 04/30/24

John Malloy, WCICC-IT

Approval to Spend WCICC-IT FY2025 CIP Dollars. 
 

Our FY2025 approved CIP totals $530,000 for the following projects: 
Edge Switches - $140,000 
Law Enforcement Center Network Redundancy - $50,000 
iSeries/AS400 Upgrade - $40,000 
Scanner Standardization - $30,000 
Office 365 Backup - $25,000 
County PCs - $220,000 
Enterprise Vulnerability Management Software - $25,000 
 
WCICC-IT will have a student intern this summer to assist with set up and installation of PCs and laptops. 
Replacement costs are budgeted in our FY25 CIP. We would like to move this project ahead so that we can 
utilize the student intern's help during this project. 

Approval to Spend WCICC-IT FY2025 CIP Dollars

✔



FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 
PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

☐Yes     ☐            No       

RECOMMENDATION:  

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:  

Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016. 

Approval to Spend WCICC-IT FY2025 CIP Dollars.

Approval to Spend WCICC-IT FY2025 CIP Dollars. 

An estimated cost of $530,000 Funds are budgeted for FY25 CIP. WCICC-IT would like to move the PC 
Replacement project ahead and start purchasing equipment in FY24. 
  
  
 

✔



WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________     Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________  

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:  ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED: 

   Approve Resolution   ☐        Approve Motion   ☐ Approve Ordinance    ☐  

Public Hearing   ☐      Other:  Informational  ☐      Attachments   ☐ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 

PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:    

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:  

Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016. 

4/24/2024 4/30/2024

Kenny Schmitz

✔

✔

✔

County/ City 28th Street Development Project

Sioux City Engineering Co. has submitted Final Payment of the 28th Street Development Project. City of Sioux 
City (Engr. Dept) has reviewed. Pay Application #13 has been approved by Toth Engineering.

8/16/2022 CO #3 Approved 
8/02/2022 CO # 2 Approved 
7/26/2022- County/ City Letter of Understanding & CO #1 Approved 
7/27/2021- 28th St. Development Bid Contract Awarded- Sioux City Engineering Co. 
6/08/2021- Plans, Specifications, Form of Contract Approved 
11/03/2020- Toth & Associates Engineering Contract Approved 
6/02/2020- County/ City 28E- 28th Street Developmental Services Agreement Approved

Sioux City Engineering Co.- Contract Final- $3,179,176.19 
Sioux City Engineering Co.- C/O #4, C/O #5, & Pay Application #13 -Balance to Complete- $238,712.24 
County/City 28E Agreement (City Requested Improvements Pay App #13)- ($11,315.29) 
28th Street FY2023 CIP Project- $99,463.11 
FY2023 CIP (Other)- $127,933.84

Approve Motions completing project

Motion to Approve FY2023 CIP in the Amount of $127,933.84 
Motion to Approve Sioux City Engineering Co. Change Orders #4, #5, & Final Contract Pay Application #13 in 
the Amount of $238,712.24



























































































WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________     Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________  

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:  ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED: 

   Approve Resolution   ☐        Approve Motion   ☐ Approve Ordinance    ☐  

Public Hearing   ☐      Other:  Informational  ☐      Attachments   ☐ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 

PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:    

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:  

Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016. 

7/22/2021 7/27/2021

Kenny Schmitz Building Services Director

✔

✔

✔

28th Street Development Project (LEC Off-site Improvements)-
Award Contract to Lowest Responsive, Responsible Bidder

Award the Contract on the 28th Street Development Project (LEC Off-Site Improvements).

Plan's, specifications, & form of contract have been agreed upon by Woodbury County & the City of Sioux City
as required in the 28E agreement between parties.

Base Bid = $2,689,603.50
Gas Main- Additional (MidAmerican) = $26.004.67
Alternate #2 ($104,560.20 bid total) share 50% determined by County/City change order = $52,208.10
Project Contingency = $134,480.18
TOTAL= $2,954,648.55

Award the 28th Street Development Project (LEC Off-Site Improvements) to the lowest responsive, responsible
bidder.

Motion to Award the 28th Street Development Project (LEC Off-Site Improvements) to Sioux City Engineering
Company.
Motion to Approve Project Expenditures described under financial impact as necessary.



(July 26, 2021 - City Council Agenda) 
Page 1 

 

NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF SIOUX CITY, IOWA 

City Council agendas are also available on the Internet at www.sioux-city.org. 

 
You are hereby notified a meeting of the City Council of the City of Sioux City, Iowa, will be held 
Monday, July 26, 2021, 4:00 p.m., local time, in the Council Chambers, 5th Floor, City Hall,  
405 6th Street, Sioux City, Iowa, for the purpose of taking official action on the agenda items 
shown hereinafter and for such other business that may properly come before the Council.  

This is a formal meeting during which the Council may take official action on various items of 
business. If you wish to speak on an item, please follow the seven participation guidelines 
adopted by the Council for speakers: 

1. Anyone may address the Council on any agenda item. 
2. Speakers should approach the microphone one at a time and be recognized by the Mayor. 
3. Speakers should give their name, spell their name, give their address, and then their 

statement. 
4. Everyone should have an opportunity to speak. Therefore, please limit your remarks to 

three minutes on any one item. 
5. At the beginning of the discussion on any item, the Mayor may request statements in favor 

of an action be heard first followed by statements in opposition to the action. 
6. Any concerns or questions you may have which do not relate directly to a scheduled item 

on the agenda will also be heard under ‘Citizen Concerns’. 
7. For the benefit of all in attendance, please turn off all cell phones and other communication 

devices while in the City Council Chambers. 
 
 
1. Call of the Roll - Silent Prayer and Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag - Proclamations 
 
2. Interview for the Environmental Advisory Board: Alex Johnson 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Items 3 through 13D constitute a Consent Agenda. Items pass unanimously unless a 
separate roll call vote is requested by a Council Member. 
 
3. Reading of the City Council minutes of July 19, 2021. 
 
4. RIVERS LANDING - Resolution rejecting the bid received for the proposed construction of 

the Rivers Landing Parking Facility-Elevators Upgrade Project and ordering the return of 
the bid bond. (Project No. 7203-728-012) 

 
5. PAYMENT - Resolution accepting the work and authorizing final payment to Bainbridge 

Construction, LLC for the Leech Avenue Reconstruction (South Fairmount Street to South 
Rustin Street) Project. (Project No. 6988-719-287) 

 
6. PERSONNEL - Resolution amending the Position Classification Manual adopted by Resolu-

tion No. S-31050 and the Position Classification Manual adopted by Resolution No. 91/T-
9972 by approving and adopting updated job descriptions to change the driver’s license re-
quirement to coincide with the City residency requirement by requiring employees to pos-
sess the necessary driver’s license from their state of residency. 

http://www.sioux-city.org/


(July 26, 2021 - City Council Agenda) 
Page 2 

 
7. ACTIONS RELATING TO GRANTS 
 

A. GILCHRIST FOUNDATION - Resolution authorizing the Parks and Recreation De-
partment to accept a 2021 Gilchrist Foundation Project Grant in the amount of 
$100,000 to support the Chris Larsen Park Riverfront Development Project – Phase 2. 

 
B. ARGP OPERATIONS - Resolution authorizing the Sioux Gateway Airport/Brigadier 

General Bud Field to apply for funds in the amount of $1,232,219 under the American 
Rescue Plan Act 2021 (Public Law 117-2 (ARPA), administered by the Federal Avia-
tion Administration (FAA), an operating administration of the United States Department 
of Transportation, under the Airport Response Grant Program (ARGP) to provide eco-
nomic relief to airport operations. 

 
C. ARGP CONCESSIONS - Resolution authorizing the Sioux Gateway Airport/Brigadier 

General Bud Field to apply for funds in the amount of $40,364 under the American 
Rescue Plan Act 2021 (Public Law 117-2 (ARPA), administered by the Federal Avia-
tion Administration (FAA), an operating administration of the United States Department 
of Transportation, under the Airport Response Grant Program Concession Relief 
(ARGP) to provide economic relief to airport concessions. 

 
D. JAG - Resolution approving an Interlocal Agreement with Woodbury County to make 

application for 2021 Byrne Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) Program funds for the Sioux 
City Police Department. Application Number (Grant 13429229) 

 
8. CIVIL PENALTIES AND SUSPENSIONS 
 

A. SAM’S MINI MART - Resolution assessing a civil penalty of $500 against Sam’s Mini Mart 
Inc. doing business as Sam’s Mini Mart, 4218 Morningside Avenue, Sioux City, Iowa for 
violation of the Iowa beer/wine and liquor laws. 

 
B. TRANSIT GENERAL STORE - Resolution assessing a $1,500 civil penalty and suspend-

ing for sixty (60) days the liquor permit issued to Indigo LLC doing business as Transit 
General Store, 2324 Transit Avenue, Sioux City, Iowa for violation of the Iowa beer/wine 
and liquor laws. 

 
9. ACTIONS RELATING TO BONDS 
 

A. TAX EXEMPTION - Motion approving a form of Tax Exemption Certificate in connec-
tion with the $3,996,000 Water Revenue Capital Loan Note, Series 2021C. 

 
B. LOAN AND DISBURSEMENT - Resolution approving and authorizing a form of Loan 

and Disbursement Agreement by and between the City of Sioux City and the Iowa Fi-
nance Authority, and authorizing and providing for the issuance and securing the pay-
ment of $3,996,000 Water Revenue Capital Loan Note,Series 2021C, of the City of 
Sioux City, Iowa, under the provisions of the Code of Iowa, and providing for a method 
of payment of said note. 



(July 26, 2021 - City Council Agenda) 
Page 3 

 
10. ACTIONS RELATING TO AGREEMENTS AND CONTRACTS 
 

A. FIBERCOMM - Resolution granting a permit to FiberComm LC to own, operate and 
maintain underground cable commencing in the east right-of-way of Al Haynes Drive 
adjacent to 2800 Expedition Court, thence proceeding north in the east right-of-way for 
approximately 225 feet crossing Expedition Court, thence proceeding east in the north 
right-of-way of Expedition Court for approximately 415 feet and ending in the northwest 
corner of the intersection of Expedition Court and Harbor Drive. 

 
B. BAINBRIDGE CONSTRUCTION - Resolution awarding and approving a contract to Bain-

bridge Construction, LLC in the amount of $1,678,604.79 for the Andrew Avenue Paving 
and Utilities Improvement Project - 225th Street to Sully Road. (Project No. 7161-719-
347) (IDOT RISE RMX-7057(707)--9E-97) 

 
C. CRABB’S CAR RENTAL - Resolution approving a three-month lease extension with 

Crabb’s Car Rental, Inc. to allow additional time for negotiations and finalizing terms of 
a new tenant Lease Agreement for the building located at 6115 Mitchell Street at the 
Sioux Gateway Airport/Brigadier General Bud Day Field. 

 
D. SC ENGINEERING - Motion approving and concurring in the award of the Woodbury 

County Law Enforcement Center Offsite Improvements Project (3701 28th Street) by the 
Woodbury County Board of Supervisors (Project No. 7119-719-361) to Sioux City Engi-
neering Company. 

 
E. KNIFE RIVER MIDWEST 

 
1. RUNWAY 17-35 - Resolution approving Change Order No. 7 to the contract with 

Knife River Midwest, LLC in the amount of $27,612.90 for the threshold repairs 
needed in connection with the Runway 17-35 Reconstruction and Shift Project 
Phase I (Schedule A & B) Construction at the Sioux Gateway Airport/Brigadier 
General Bud Day Field. (AIP 53 City Project No. 749-114) 

 
2. TAXIWAY C - Resolution approving Change Order No. 1 to the contract with Knife 

River Midwest, LLC in the amount of $113,039.15 for two additional catch basins 
and hydro excavation to avoid the FAA owned cables in connection with the Taxi-
way C South Reconstruction Project (City Project No. 7056-749-120/FAA Grant No. 
03-19-0085-056-2019) at the Sioux Gateway Airport/Brigadier General Bud Day 
Field. 

 
11. PURCHASING 
 

A. UTILITY EQUIPMENT - Resolution awarding a purchase order to Utility Equipment 
Company of Sioux City, Iowa in the amount of $29,250 for the purchase of manhole 
frames and lids. (RFQ No. 268139) 

 
B. TIMBERLINE GSE - Resolution awarding a purchase order to Timberline GSE of Rich-

field, Utah in the amount of $52,550.50 for the purchase of a portable passenger 
boarding ramp at the Sioux Gateway Airport/Brigadier General Bud Day Field. 



(July 26, 2021 - City Council Agenda) 
Page 4 

 
12. APPLICATIONS FOR BEER AND LIQUOR LICENSES 
 

A. ON-PREMISE SALES 
1. CLASS C LIQUOR LICENSE (liquor/wine/beer/wine coolers/carry-out) 

a. Famous Dave’s B.B.Q., 201 Pierce Street (Renewal) 
b. Pounders, 1742 Riverside Boulevard (New 6 Month License) 

2. SPECIAL CLASS C LIQUOR LICENSE (wine/beer/wine coolers/carry-out) 
a. Holy Trinity Greek Orthodox Church, 900 6th Street (New 5 Day License for 

GreekFest; August 19-23, 2021) 
 
13. BOARD, COMMISSION, AND COMMITTEE MINUTES 
 

A. Active Transportation Advisory Committee – February 17, March 17, April 21, and  
May 19, 2021 

B. Airport Board of Trustees – April 22, 2021 
C. Parks and Recreation Advisory Board – July 7, 2021 
D. Yamanashi City Sister City Committee – July 15, 2021 

 
- End of Consent Agenda - 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS OF PLANNING AND ZONING 
 
14. Hearing and Ordinance rezoning a 10.653 acre tract of land immediately north of 2600 Glen 

Ellen Road from Zone Classification NC.1 (Neighborhood Conservation, 1 acre per unit 
minimum) to Zone Classification SR (Suburban Residential, 6,000 square feet per unit 
minimum). (Petitioner: BMT Inc (Todd Sapp)) The Planning and Zoning Commission rec-
ommends approval of this rezoning. (File No. 2021-0049) 

 
15. Resolution accepting and approving the “Final Plat of Royal Highlands, 5th Addition, a Mi-

nor Subdivision to Sioux City, Woodbury County, Iowa” (A seven lot 10.653-acre residential 
subdivision located immediately north of, and east of, 2600 Glen Ellen Road). (Petitioner: 
BMT Inc (Todd Sapp)) The Planning and Zoning Commission recommends approval of this 
final plat. (File No. 2021-0050) 

 
HEARINGS 
 
16. Hearing and Resolution approving proposal to sell certain real property and authorizing a 

City Deed. (A portion of 1702 George Street) (Petitioner: Braun Nancy L. Revocable Trust) 
(Purchase price: $585.94 plus costs) (Motion requested to delete this item) 

 
17. Resolution proposing to sell certain real property and rescinding Resolution No. 2021-0646. 

(A portion of 1702 George Street) (Petitioner: Nancy L. Braun, Trustee of the Nancy L. Braun 
Revocable Trust) (Purchase price: $585.94 plus costs) 

 
18. Hearing and Resolution accepting the proposal of Oracle Aviation, LLC for the lease of certain 

land in the Donner Park Urban Renewal Area and authorizing a Development Agreement with 
exhibits, including a Lease Agreement for said property. (A portion of 2403 Aviation Boule-
vard, specifically a 100,000 square foot section of land, an existing 20,400 square foot 
hangar, and an approximately 39,400 square foot hangar to be constructed at the Sioux 
Gateway Airport/Brigadier General Bud Day Field Terminal Building) 



(July 26, 2021 - City Council Agenda) 
Page 5 

 
DISCUSSION  
 
19. Resolution amending Resolution No. 2021-0045 relating to the Hearing on Manager’s re-

port on demolition of and Resolution declaring a certain structure to be dangerous or dilapi-
dated as defined by the Municipal Code and authorizing the City Manager to carry out such 
order to demolish said structure by authorizing a 90-day delay in demolition. (Address: 1803 
South Cedar Street) (Property Owner: Caboet Properties LLC) 

 
20. Resolution amending Resolution No. 2021-0040 relating to the Hearing on Manager’s re-

port on demolition of and Resolution declaring a certain structure to be dangerous or dilapi-
dated as defined by the Municipal Code and authorizing the City Manager to carry out such 
order to demolish said structure by authorizing a 90-day delay in demolition. (Address: 2203 
South Oleander Street) (Property Owner: John Scott Dwyer) 

 
21. Resolution accepting and approving the “Final Plat of The Residence at Elk Creek, First 

Filing, an Addition to the City of Sioux City, Woodbury County, Iowa.” (Petitioner: Elk Creek 
Development, LLC) (File No. 2021-0057) 

 
22. Resolution approving a Subdivision Improvement Installation Agreement with Elk Creek 

Development, LLC in connection with The Residence at Elk Creek, First Filing, an Addition 
to the City of Sioux City, Woodbury County, Iowa. (Petitioner: Elk Creek Development, LLC) 

 
23. Resolution approving an Agreement for Maintenance of Storm Water Detention System 

with Elk Creek Development, LLC in connection with the Final Plat of The Residence at Elk 
Creek, First Filing, an Addition to the City of Sioux City, Woodbury County, Iowa. (Petition-
er: Elk Creek Development, LLC) 

 
PRESENTATIONS 
 
24. State CLG Grant and Intensive Downtown Survey 
 
25. Housing Inventory Study 
 
26. CITIZEN CONCERNS 
 
27. COUNCIL CONCERNS 
 
28. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
City Council agendas are also available at www.sioux-city.org. 
 
The City of Sioux City does not discriminate on the basis of disability in admission to, access to, or operations of its programs, ser-
vices, or activities.  Individuals who need auxiliary aids for effective communication in programs and services of the City of Sioux 
City are invited to make their needs and preferences known to the ADA Compliance Officer, City Hall, 405 6th Street, Room 204, 
(712) 279-6200.  This notice is provided as required by Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. 

U:\City Agenda\Agendas and Minutes\Council Agendas\2021\072621a 

http://www.sioux-city.org/




WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________     Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________  

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:  ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED: 

   Approve Resolution   ☐        Approve Motion   ☐ Approve Ordinance    ☐  

Public Hearing   ☐      Other:  Informational  ☐      Attachments   ☐ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 

PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:    

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:  

Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016. 

7/15/2021 7/20/2021

Kenny Schmitz Building Services Director

✔

28th Street Development Project (LEC Off-site Improvements)-
Discuss & Act upon Project Bid Alternates

Bids for the project include 3 alternates to be decided upon; Alt #1 -Remove Curbs, Gutters, Storm Sewer, Alt.
#2 -Mill & Overlay Asphalt Hwy. 75 to Mobile Park, & Alt. #3 -Install Asphalt vs Concrete

Competitive bids were submitted by three Contracting firms & then officially received by the Board of
Supervisors on July 13th, 2021.

Alternate #1- Project Bid Deduct (-$235,280.00)
Alternate #2- Project Bid Add ($104,560.00)
Alternate #3- Project Bid Deduct (-$67,824.40)

Discuss & take action on each alternate.
Alternate #1- do not accept. Alternate #2- requires discussion Building Services, Baker Group, & Toth Engineering,
would recommend accepting stipulating in good faith effort Woodbury County would equally share costs with City
of Sioux City. Alternate #3- Reject & do not accept.

Motion to Act upon Project Alternate #1
Motion to Act upon Project Alternate #2
Motion to Act upon Project Alternate #3



Woodbury County / Auth Disclosure Policies & Procedures 

-1- 
DORSEY & WHITNEY LLP, ATTORNEYS, DES MOINES, IOWA 

MINUTES AUTHORIZING ADOPTION OF 

AMENDED AND RESTATED POLICIES AND 

PROCEDURES REGEARDING MUNICIPAL 

SECURITIES DISCLOSURE 

424093 

Sioux City, Iowa 

July 20, 2021 

The Board of Supervisors of Woodbury County, Iowa, met on July 20, 2021, at _____ o’clock __.m. at 

the _________________, Sioux City, Iowa.   

[If the Board of Supervisors is meeting electronically, please complete the 

following two paragraphs.  Otherwise, strike through] 

The Board of Supervisors met electronically via ___________________________, which was 

accessible at the following:  

[Insert electronic access information] 

The Board of Supervisors conducted this meeting electronically due to federal and state 

government recommendations in response to COVID-19 pandemic conditions.  Electronic access 

information was included in the posted agenda of this public meeting. 

The Chairperson presided and the roll was called showing the following members of the Board present 

and absent: 

Present:    

Absent:   . 

 

Board Member ____________________________ introduced the resolution hereinafter next set out and 

moved its adoption, seconded by Board Member _______________________; and after due consideration 

thereof by the Board of Supervisors, the Chairperson put the question upon the adoption of the said resolution 

and the roll being called, the following named Board Members voted: 

Ayes:    

Nays:   . 

Whereupon, the Chairperson declared the resolution duly adopted as hereinafter set out. 

 



Woodbury County / Auth Disclosure Policies & Procedures 

-2- 
DORSEY & WHITNEY LLP, ATTORNEYS, DES MOINES, IOWA 

RESOLUTION NO. _______ 

Resolution Authorizing Adoption of Amended and Restated Policies and Procedures Regarding 

Municipal Securities Disclosure 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the laws of the State of Iowa, Woodbury County, Iowa (the “County”) has 

publicly offered, and likely will issue and publicly offer in the future, its notes, bonds or other obligations (the 

“Bonds”); and  

WHEREAS, as a result of certain changes in federal law, the County has determined that any Policies 

and Procedures Regarding Municipal Securities Disclosure that may have been adopted in the past to be 

followed in connection with the issuance and on-going administration of publicly offered Bonds (the “Prior 

Policy”) shall be overridden and replaced by a new policy; and 

WHEREAS, the proposed Amended and Restated Policies and Procedures Regarding Municipal 

Securities Disclosure are attached hereto as Exhibit A (the “Disclosure Policies and Procedures”);  

NOW, THEREFORE, Be It Resolved by the Board of Supervisors of Woodbury County, Iowa, as 

follows: 

Section 1. The Disclosure Policies and Procedures attached hereto as Exhibit A are hereby adopted 

and shall be dated as of the date hereof.   

Section 2. The Prior Policy, if any, is hereby overridden and replaced by the Disclosure Policies 

and Procedures.   

Section 3. All resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby repealed to the 

extent of such conflict. 

Passed and approved July 20, 2021. 

  

Chairperson 

Attest: 

  

County Auditor 

• • • • • 

At the conclusion of the meeting, and upon motion and vote, the Board of Supervisors adjourned. 

  

Chairperson 

Attest: 

       

County Auditor  



Woodbury County / Auth Disclosure Policies & Procedures 

-3- 
DORSEY & WHITNEY LLP, ATTORNEYS, DES MOINES, IOWA 

ATTESTATION CERTIFICATE: 

STATE OF IOWA 

 SS: 

COUNTY OF WOODBURY 

I, the undersigned, County Auditor of Woodbury County, Iowa, do hereby certify that attached hereto is 

a true and correct copy of the proceedings of the Board of Supervisors relating to the County’s adoption of the 

Policies and Procedures Regarding Municipal Securities Disclosure. 

WITNESS MY HAND this _____________ day of ________________, 2021. 

  

County Auditor 

 



Woodbury County / Auth Disclosure Policies & Procedures 

A-1 
DORSEY & WHITNEY LLP, ATTORNEYS, DES MOINES, IOWA 

Exhibit A 

AMENDED AND RESTATED 

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES RE: MUNICIPAL SECURITIES DISCLOSURE 

[see attached] 

 



Woodbury County / Disclosure Policies and Procedures 

-1- 

DORSEY & WHITNEY LLP, ATTORNEYS, DES MOINES, IOWA 

Woodbury County, Iowa  

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES RE: MUNICIPAL SECURITIES DISCLOSURE 

As an issuer of municipal securities (bonds and/or notes, referred to herein as “Bonds”), Woodbury County (the 

“Issuer”) has adopted the policies and procedures set forth herein (collectively, the “Disclosure Policy”) to guide 

the Issuer’s actions with respect to complying with (1) the disclosure document (often referred to as the “official 

statement”) for publicly-offered bond transactions and (2) ongoing continuing disclosures associated with 

outstanding contractual obligations resulting from bond issues (also known as “continuing disclosure”).  This 

Disclosure Policy is designed to provide the necessary policy framework and accompanying procedures for 

compliance by the Issuer with its disclosure responsibilities.  It should be noted, however, issuers of municipal 

securities are primarily responsible for the content of their disclosure documents including on-going compliance 

with respect to continuing disclosure. 

This Disclosure Policy includes the following elements: (1) disclosure training for officials responsible for 

producing, reviewing and approving disclosure; (2) establishment of procedures for review of relevant disclosure, 

and (3) ensuring that any procedures established are followed. 

Background 

The anti-fraud provisions of federal securities laws apply to municipal securities such as the Issuer’s Bonds.  The 

U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) can bring enforcement actions against the Issuer, 

members of its governing body, government employees and elected officials, and professionals working on the 

bond transaction.  Government employees and elected officials can be, and have been, held personally liable 

with respect to securities laws violations related to the issuance of Bonds.  Issuers and members of the governing 

body can mitigate risks related to SEC enforcement by relying on professionals such as disclosure counsel.  

Issuers may also seek affirmative assurances of compliance with the receipt of a legal opinion from disclosure 

counsel. 

When bonds are issued and publicly offered, an official statement will be prepared on behalf of the Issuer.  The 

official statement is the disclosure document that sets forth the terms associated with the bond issue.  The official 

statement will be used to market and sell the Issuer’s bonds.1  In addition, for transactions larger than $1 million 

in size that include an official statement, the Issuer enters into a continuing disclosure certificate, agreement or 

undertaking (the “CDC”).  The CDC is a contractual obligation of the Issuer, pursuant to which the Issuer agrees 

to provide certain financial information filings (at least annually) and material event notices to the public.  The 

CDC is necessary to allow the bond underwriters to comply with SEC Rule 15c2-12, as amended (the “Rule”).  

As noted below, filings under the CDC must be made electronically at the Electronic Municipal Market Access 

(EMMA) portal (www.emma.msrb.org). 

Accordingly, this Disclosure Policy addresses the following three aspects of disclosure:  (1) preparation and 

approval of official statements in connection with new (“primary”) bond issues; (2) on-going continuing 

disclosure requirements under a CDC; and (3) education of staff and elected officials with respect to disclosure 

matters.   

                                                           
1 Under federal law issuers of municipal securities are primarily responsible for the content of their disclosure documents (the 

official statement), regardless of who prepared the document.  An issuer does not discharge its disclosure obligations by 

hiring professionals to prepare the official statement. An issuer has “an affirmative obligation” to know the contents of its 

official statement, including the financial statements. Finally, executing an official statement without first reading the 

document to ascertain whether it is accurate may be reckless (the basis for certain anti-fraud causes of action by the SEC). 



Woodbury County / Disclosure Policies and Procedures 

-2- 

DORSEY & WHITNEY LLP, ATTORNEYS, DES MOINES, IOWA 

1. Primary (New) Offerings of Bonds – Official Statements of the Issuer  

In connection with the issuance of its publicly-offered Bonds (Bonds sold via the public market, through a broker-

dealer known as an “underwriter”), the Issuer will cause its hired professionals to prepare a disclosure document 

commonly known as an “official statement.”  The official statement is the document that describes the issuance of 

the Bonds to the marketplace and as such, under federal law, the official statement cannot contain any untrue 

statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements therein, in the 

light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading.    

To ensure the Issuer’s official statements are properly prepared and reviewed, the Issuer adopts the procedures set 

forth in Appendix I hereto.   

2. Continuing Disclosure Compliance (CDC Compliance) 

The Issuer has entered into, or may in the future enter into, CDCs in connection with its bond issues.  Under these 

contractual agreements, the Issuer has agreed to provide to the marketplace certain financial information and 

notices of material events.  The Issuer will file, or cause to be filed, necessary items under the CDCs in a 

searchable electronic format at the Electronic Municipal Market Access (EMMA) portal (www.emma.msrb.org).  

The determination of whether a material event has occurred will be made pursuant to the Rule and SEC Release 

No. 34-83885, in conjunction with disclosure counsel and other members of the Issuer’s external bond finance 

working group. 

To ensure compliance with its contractual continuing disclosure obligations, the Issuer adopts the procedures set 

forth in Appendix II hereto.   

3. Systematic Training of Staff and Governing Body Members 

In addition to the specific procedures adopted under this Disclosure Policy, the Issuer understands that on-going 

training of both staff and members of the governing body is essential to successful compliance with the Issuer’s 

disclosure obligations.  The training noted below may be accomplished by various methods, including in-person 

webinars or other electronic means, or through review of written materials.  Accordingly, the Issuer has 

implemented the following training procedures:   

A.  Annual Training.  The Finance/Budget Director is responsible for scheduling annual training of Issuer 

employees regarding disclosure and financial reporting requirements of the federal securities laws.  Such training 

shall include a complete review of this Disclosure Policy, Rule 15c2-12 and the material events required to be 

reported pursuant to such Rule, and a complete overview of the Issuer’s obligations under the federal securities 

laws.   

B.  Specific Training.  When appropriate, the Finance/Budget Director shall conduct (or cause to be conducted) 

training with individuals on those persons’ specific roles and responsibilities in the disclosure and financial 

reporting process. 

C.  Governing Body Training.  Not less than once every two years, the Finance/Budget Director shall schedule a 

training session for the Issuer’s governing body on this Disclosure Policy and the disclosure and financial 

reporting requirements of the federal securities laws.    



Woodbury County / Disclosure Policies and Procedures 

I-1 

DORSEY & WHITNEY LLP, ATTORNEYS, DES MOINES, IOWA 

Appendix I 

Written Procedures for Preparing Official Statements 

1.  At the commencement of a financing, the Finance/Budget Director shall develop or cause the County’s 

Finance Team to develop a plan for preparation of the official statement and a schedule that allows sufficient time 

for all required work, including appropriate review and participation by members of the Finance Team. 

2.  The Finance/Budget Director shall be responsible for managing the preparation process for the official 

statement, and shall obtain the assistance of other participants within the Issuer and engage legal and financial 

professionals, as necessary and appropriate.  

3.  The Finance/Budget Director shall be responsible for developing a program for coordinating staff 

review of the disclosure information, as necessary, and obtaining formal sign-off from staff on the disclosure 

documents. 

4.  The Finance/Budget Director shall ensure that any previous failure to fully comply with continuing 

disclosure obligations during the prior five-year period is disclosed in the official statement by reviewing 

compliance with all outstanding continuing disclosure agreements, reviewing continuing disclosure review 

documentation prepared by independent parties and contacting disclosure counsel to discuss any questions or 

concerns. 

5.  The Issuer’s governing body shall be given not less than 7 days to review an official statement prior to 

being asked to vote on its approval, absent extenuating circumstances.  Elected representatives on the governing 

body shall be directed to contact the Finance/Budget Director during the review period to discuss potential issues, 

concerns or comments on the official statement. 

 

 

 



Woodbury County / Disclosure Policies and Procedures 

II-1 

DORSEY & WHITNEY LLP, ATTORNEYS, DES MOINES, IOWA 

Appendix II 

Written Procedures Re: Continuing Disclosure 

1. The Finance/Budget Director shall be responsible for compliance with the Issuer’s obligations 

under continuing disclosure agreements, undertakings or certificates (the “CDC”), including without limitation 

annual filings, material event notice filings, voluntary filings and other filings required by the CDC. 

2.  Prior to execution of a CDC in connection with a bond issue, the CDC shall be discussed with 

disclosure counsel, the underwriter and municipal advisor, if any, to ensure a full understanding of issuer 

obligations. 

3. The Finance/Budget Director shall have the primary responsibility to confer with the finance 

team and County staff bi-weekly to monitor compliance with respect to “material events” as defined in the Rule.   

The Finance/Budget Director shall be responsible for (i) determining whether any of the following “material  

events” has taken place (questions regarding their interpretation shall be directed to disclosure counsel), (ii) 

gathering information material to making that determination from other departments, and (iii) if a material event 

has occurred, discussing the same with disclosure counsel to determine the form of notice of material event and 

causing the filing of notice to be made on EMMA within ten (10) business days of the occurrence of the event: 

1. Principal and interest payment delinquencies;   

2. Non-payment related defaults, if material;  

3. Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties;  

4. Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties;  

5. Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform;  

6. Adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of proposed or final 

determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-TEB) or other 

material notices or determinations with respect to the tax status of the security, or other 

material events affecting the tax status of the security;  

7. Modifications to rights of security holders, if material; 

8. Bond calls, if material, and tender offers; 

9. Defeasances; 

10. Release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the securities, if material;  

11. Rating changes, including rating upgrades and downgrades;  

12. Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the obligated person;  

13. The consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving an obligated 

person or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the obligated person, other 

than in the ordinary course of business, the entry into a definitive agreement to undertake 

such an action or the termination of a definitive agreement relating to any such actions, 

other than pursuant to its terms, if material;  

14. Appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of name of a trustee, if 

material; 

15. Incurrence of a financial obligation of the obligated person, if material, or agreement to 

covenants, events of default, remedies, priority rights, or other similar terms of a financial 

obligation2 of the obligated person, any of which affect security holders, if material; and 

                                                           
2 “Financial obligation” is to mean a (i) debt obligation; (ii) derivative instrument entered into in connection with, or 

pledged as security or a source of payment for, an existing or planned debt obligation; or (iii) a guarantee of (i) or (ii). 



Woodbury County / Disclosure Policies and Procedures 

II-2 

DORSEY & WHITNEY LLP, ATTORNEYS, DES MOINES, IOWA 

16. Default, event of acceleration, termination event, modification of terms, or other similar 

events under the terms of a financial obligation of the obligated person, any of which 

reflect financial difficulties.  

The determination of whether a material event has occurred will be made pursuant to the Rule and SEC Release 

No. 34-83885, in conjunction with disclosure counsel. 

4. The Finance/Budget Director shall have primary responsibility for ensuring that statements or 

releases of information relating to the Issuer’s finances to the public that are reasonably expected to reach 

investors and the financial markets, including website updates, press releases and market notices, are accurate and 

not misleading in any material respect.  The Finance/Budget Director shall work together to ensure that all public 

statements and information released by the Issuer are accurate and not misleading in all material respects. 

5. The Finance/Budget Director shall be responsible for compiling and maintaining a list of all 

outstanding bond issues subject to continuing disclosure, noting the applicable filing dates (see attached table 

format, Part I, for an example to be used by staff in tracking this information (the “Disclosure Table”)). 

6. The Finance/Budget Director shall be responsible for assembling and maintaining copies of the 

final CDC and final Official Statements for each applicable bond issue, together with any third-party 

Dissemination Agent Agreements, if applicable. 

7. The Finance/Budget Director shall document and track the required information to be filed, 

including dates such information is filed (see attached Disclosure Table, Part II, for a form of table to be used by 

staff).   

8. The Finance/Budget Director shall be responsible for registering for continuing disclosure filing 

email reminders from the “EMMA” website, or for ensuring the County’s dissemination agent will remind the 

County of applicable deadlines (http://emma.msrb.org). 

9. At least 60 days prior to the earliest filing deadline listed on the Disclosure Table, the 

Finance/Budget Director shall begin the process of compiling necessary information required by the CDCs (and 

coordinate with outside professionals hired to compile this information, if applicable).  

10. At least 30 days prior to each filing deadline, the Finance/Budget Director shall determine 

whether all necessary items have been compiled for filing pursuant to the CDC requirements, (including review 

with disclosure counsel or the County’s dissemination agent).   

11. Prior to each filing deadline, the Finance/Budget Director shall file (or cause any Dissemination 

Agent to file) the necessary items on the EMMA website in a word-searchable PDF configured to be saved, 

printed, and retransmitted by electronic means.  After filing, the Finance/Budget Director shall confirm that all 

items have, in fact, been filed on EMMA as required, and shall note the filing date on the Disclosure Table.  

12.  The Finance/Budget Director shall be responsible for coordinating and filing any voluntary 

information with EMMA, after consultation with the Issuer’s legal and financial professionals. 

13. The Finance/Budget Director may contact the Issuer’s disclosure counsel with any disclosure-

related questions or concerns.  



Woodbury County / Disclosure Policies and Procedures 

DORSEY & WHITNEY LLP, ATTORNEYS, DES MOINES, IOWA 

Form of Disclosure Table 

[Note this is only a form; County staff will update and maintain the Tables separate from this Policy; the 

current Table can be obtained from the Finance/Budget Director] 

Part I – Master Tracking Table (list of deadlines for all bond issues) 

Name of Bond Issue Date of Issue Final Maturity 

Date 

Dissemination 

Agent?   

CUSIP for Final 

Maturity 

Deadline for 

Annual Report 

$[9,685,000] General 

Obligation Urban 

Renewal County Road 

Improvement Bonds, 

Series 2021 

[08/24/2021] [06/01/2032]  [979064 ___] Not later than 

June 30 of each 

year 

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      



Woodbury County / Disclosure Policies and Procedures 

DORSEY & WHITNEY LLP, ATTORNEYS, DES MOINES, IOWA 

Part II – Separate Table for Each Bond Issue (tracks details of filings for each issue) 

[Note this is only a form; County staff will update and maintain the Tables separate from this Policy; the 

current Table can be obtained from the Finance/Budget Director] 

$[9,685,000] General Obligation 

Urban Renewal County Road 

Improvement Bonds, Series 

2021 

Reporting Periods 

[inset date info was filed on EMMA] 

Description of Financial 

Information / Operating Data to 

file on EMMA 

FY2021 FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025 FY2026 

Audited Financials       

Unaudited financials, if audit not 

available by deadline 

      

Operating Data: Population Trend       

Operating Data: Principal 

Taxpayers 

      

Operating Data: Schedule of 

Receipts and Disbursements 

(General Funds) 

      

Operating Data: Property 

Valuations and Tax Collection 

Procedures 

      

Operating Data: Current Fund 

Balances (as of June 30) 

      

Operating Data: Tax Rate Per 

$1,000 of Taxable Valuation 

      

Operating Data: Tax Collection 

Trend 

      

Operating Data: Valuation by 

Property Classification 

      

Operating Data: Valuation Trend       

Operating Data: Taxable Retail 

Sales Trend 

      

Operating Data: Outstanding Debt 

– Fiscal Year General Obligation 

Debt Payments 

      

Operating Data: Debt Limit 

Calculation 

      

Operating Data: Debt Ratios       

Operating Data: Financial 

Summary 

      

 



Overview of Municipal Securities Disclosure
Governmental issuers (“Issuers”) of municipal bonds are subject to several important legal provisions under federal 
securities laws.  This overview serves as a starting point for understanding the federal securities law framework surrounding 
issuance of municipal bonds.  In recent years, the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) has expanded its 
regulation of the municipal securities market, bringing civil and criminal enforcement actions against issuers, elected 
officials, and employees for violations of the anti-fraud or continuing disclosure provisions described below. 

This overview should be reviewed in connection with the Issuer’s policies and procedures (the “Disclosure Policy”), 
which relate to (1) the disclosure document (often referred to as the “official statement” or “OS”) for publicly-offered 
bond transactions and (2) ongoing continuing disclosure associated with outstanding bond issues (also known as 
“continuing disclosure”).

Overview of Legal Duties Under Federal Securities Law
Issuers of municipal securities are regulated by the Securities Act of 1933 and the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and 
various rules promulgated under those acts by the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”).  Of particular 
importance are Rule 10b-5 (which prohibits fraud) and Rule 15c2-12 (which generates an issuer’s ongoing disclosure 
obligations).  Taken together, these rules impose primary disclosure duties (i.e. accuracy and forthrightness in the 
preparation of an official statement for new bond issues) and secondary disclosure duties (i.e. timely filing financial and 
other data under a continuing disclosure certificate (“CDC”) for outstanding bond issues).  

How Do the Anti-Fraud Provisions of SEC Rule 10b-5 Affect Issuers?
Various provisions of federal securities law including SEC Rule 10b-5 prohibit fraud in the issuance, purchase, or sale of 
municipal securities.  These provisions generally prohibit “material” misstatements or omissions to investors, potential 
investors, or the general public.  Violation of these provisions can result in civil or criminal liability.

Who Is Responsible for the Content of an OS?
When bonds are issued and publicly offered, an official statement will be prepared on behalf of the Issuer.  The official 
statement is the disclosure document that sets forth the terms associated with the bond issue and is used to market and 
sell the Issuer’s bonds.  Issuers (including elected officials and staff) are primarily responsible for the accuracy of an official 
statement.  Hiring a professional to assist with the preparation of an OS does not discharge an Issuer’s responsibility.  The 
elected officials and relevant employees of an issuer have an affirmative obligation to ensure the accuracy of the contents 
of the financial and other information in an OS— delivery of an OS without first reading it to gauge its accuracy may be 
reckless and the basis for an SEC enforcement action.

What Ongoing Requirements Are Imposed by SEC Rule 15c2-12?
SEC Rule 15c2-12 ensures that Issuers contractually agree to provide certain financial and operating information to 
investors and the public on an ongoing basis.  The type of information that must be reported is generally (i) annual financial 
reports and (ii) material event notices.

www.dorsey.com
This handout is not legal advice, but contains general information not applicable to specific matters.  
We are not acting as your legal counsel unless separately retained in a written agreement signed by us.



www.dorsey.com

What Are the Annual Filing Requirements?
Issuers must file updated financial information and operating data on an annual or other regular basis, as specified in their 
CDC.  Generally, the information that must be reported includes audited financial statements, annual financial or operating 
data, of the type included in the OS for the related bonds. 

What Material Event Notices Must Be Filed and When?
Issuers must notify investors (via a specific filing on the “EMMA” website, at https://emma.msrb.org/) within 10 business 
days if certain events occur while a bond is outstanding.  Generally, those events are items that impact an Issuer’s ability 
to pay or timely pay amounts owed on outstanding debt, rating changes, defaults, and the incurrence of material financial 
obligations (debt obligations of the Issuer).  At present, there are 16 events that can trigger reporting obligations.  The 
Issuer’s Disclosure Policy will detail the events and the procedures intended to enable timely identification and disclosure.  

What Is Addressed by the Disclosure Policy?
The Disclosure Policy is designed to assist Issuers with fulfilling both primary and secondary disclosure responsibilities.  It 
sets forth procedures that govern preparation of official statements for new bond offerings (see Appendix I of the policy), 
compliance with continuing disclosure requirements under a CDC (see Appendix II of the policy), and systematic training of 
key staff members and elected officials.  

Where Can I Find Additional Information?
As always, you and your staff can contact us with any questions about your responsibilities under federal securities law, to 
address specific items, and for annual training seminars (Dorsey & Whitney LLP provides an annual securities law training 
for issuers during the first quarter of each year, to satisfy one of the requirements of the Disclosure Policy). 

Contacts

John P. Danos
(515) 699-3275
danos.john@dorsey.com

David D. Grossklaus
(515) 699-3287
grossklaus.david@dorsey.com

Robert E. Josten
(515) 699-3264
Josten.robert@dorsey.com

Cristina Kuhn
(515) 699-3272
kuhn.cristina@dorsey.com

James H. Smith
(515) 699-3276
smith.james@dorsey.com

This handout is not legal advice, but contains general information not applicable to specific matters.  
We are not acting as your legal counsel unless separately retained in a written agreement signed by us.



WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________     Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________  

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:  ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED: 

   Approve Resolution   ☐        Approve Motion   ☐ Approve Ordinance    ☐  

Public Hearing   ☐      Other:  Informational  ☐      Attachments   ☐ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 

PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:    

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:  

Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016. 

07/07/2021 07/13/2021

Kenny Schmitz, Building Services Director

✔

28th Street Development Project (LEC Off-site Improvements)-
Receive Competitive Bid Submissions at Set Time 4:45pm

Receive competitive bids relating to the 28th Street Development.

Competitive bids were opened on 7/08/2021.
A Hearing was Published and Conducted on 6/22/2021.
Plan's, specifications, & form of contract have been agreed upon by Woodbury County & the City of Sioux City
as required in the 28E agreement between parties.

To be determined by the competitive bid process.
Engineers Estimate (pre-bid)= $3,330,000.00 (excluding fiber & contingency)

Receive competitive bids

Motion to "Receive" competitive bids



WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________     Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________  

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:  ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED: 

   Approve Resolution   ☐        Approve Motion   ☐ Approve Ordinance    ☐  

Public Hearing   ☐      Other:  Informational  ☐      Attachments   ☐ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 

PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:    

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:  

Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016. 

6/02/2021 6/08/2021

Kenny Schmitz

✔

✔

✔

28th Street Development Project (LEC Off-Site Improvements)-
Approve Plans, Specifications, & Form of Contract

Formal Approval per Iowa Bid Law is required on the Plan's, Specifications, & Form of contract to be utilized in
the competitive bid process for the 28th Street Development Project.

A (28E) between Woodbury County & the City of Sioux City for the Development of 28th Street known as the
LEC Off-site Improvements 28th Street Development has been drafted and agreed upon by both parties.

Pre-bid Estimate $3,630,000.00

Approval of plans, specifications, and form of contract.

Motion to Approve Plans, Specifications, & Form of Contract for the 28th Street Development (LEC Off-site
Improvements) Project.



WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________         Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:       ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED:

   Approve Resolution         Approve Motion   Approve Ordinance

Public Hearing                Other:  Informational      Attachments    

10/29/2020 11/03/2020

Kenny Schmitz/ Dennis Butler

Toth and Associates Inc. have provided an engineering contract for development / paving for 28th Street construction.
Services and contract provisions were reviewed by the Woodbury County Secondary Roads Director, Building Services Director,
Goldberg Group Architects (LEC Design Architect), and Baker Group (LEC Authority Project Owners Representative).
Costs and expenses were reviewed by the Woodbury County Finance Director, and Woodbury County Building Services Director.

Factors determining the final recommendation included total over-all costs, synergies incorporated by utilizing the same firm on the
LEC Project and the 28th St Project, and positives/ negatives of local vs non-local business. Toth and Associates Inc. of Springfield
Missouri is recommended for the Woodbury County 28th Street improvement project. The decision weighed heavily on total cost
and other synergies which are expected to result from utilizing the same firm on both projects.

The County/ City 28E agreement for the development services for 28th Street Woodbury County offsite Jail improvements requires
Woodbury County to select and hire an Engineering firm to provide survey, design, bidding, engineering, and construction services.

28th Street Development Engineering Services Contract

✔

✔

#9



FINANCIAL IMPACT:   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 
PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016.  

✔

$348,000.00 Plus Reimbursable Expenses

Approve agreement with Toth and Associates Inc.

Motion to approve Toth and Associates Inc. Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional
Services for development of 28th Street.



Page 1 of 6 

 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN OWNER AND ENGINEER FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
 

THIS IS AN AGREEMENT between      Woodbury County, Iowa                             (“Owner”)  

and   Toth and Associates, Inc.       (“Engineer”).  

Project Name:  Woodbury County Jail – Offsite Improvements    (“Project”) 
 
 
Owner and Engineer further agree as follows:   
 
ARTICLE 1 –  SERVICES OF ENGINEER 
 
1.01 Scope 
 
A. Engineer shall provide, or cause to be provided, the services set forth herein 
and in Exhibit A. 
 
ARTICLE 2 –  OWNER’S RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
2.01 General 
 
A. Owner shall have the responsibilities set forth herein and in Exhibit B. 
 
B. Owner shall pay Engineer as set forth in Article 4 and Exhibit C. 

 
C. Owner shall be responsible for all requirements and instructions that it 
furnishes to Engineer pursuant to this Agreement, and for the accuracy and 
completeness of all programs, reports, data, and other information furnished by 
Owner to Engineer pursuant to this Agreement.  Engineer may use and rely upon 
such requirements, programs, instructions, reports, data, and information in 
performing or furnishing services under this Agreement, subject to any express 
limitations or reservations applicable to the furnished items. 
 
D. Owner shall give prompt written notice to Engineer whenever Owner 
observes or otherwise becomes aware of:  
 
1.  any development that affects the scope or time of performance of 
Engineer’s services;  
 
2. the presence at the Site of any Constituent of Concern; or  
 
3. any relevant, material defect or nonconformance in: (a) Engineer’s services, 
(b) the Work, (c) the performance of any Constructor, or (d) Owner’s performance 
of its responsibilities under this Agreement. 
 
ARTICLE 3 –  SCHEDULE FOR RENDERING SERVICES 
 
3.01 Commencement 
 
A. Engineer is authorized to begin rendering services as of the Effective Date. 
 
3.02 Time for Completion 
 
A. The Parties agree that time is of the essence in performance of this contract.  
Engineer shall complete its obligations within a reasonable time.  Specific periods 
of time for rendering services, or specific dates by which services are to be 
completed, are provided in Exhibit A, and are hereby agreed to be reasonable. 
 
B. In no event shall the Engineer be responsible or liable for any failure or delay 
in the performance of its obligations hereunder arising out of or caused by, directly 
or indirectly, forces beyond its control, including, without limitation, strikes, work 
stoppages, accidents, acts of war or terrorism, civil or military disturbances, nuclear 
or natural catastrophes or acts of God, and interruptions, loss or malfunctions of 
utilities, communications or computer (software and hardware) services; it being 
understood that the Engineer shall use reasonable efforts which are consistent with 
accepted practices in the engineering industry to resume performance as soon as 
practicable under the circumstances. 

 
C. If, through no fault of Engineer, such periods of time or dates are changed, 
or the orderly and continuous progress of Engineer’s services is impaired, or 
Engineer’s services are delayed or suspended, then the time for completion of 
Engineer’s services, and the rates and amounts of Engineer’s compensation, shall 
be adjusted equitably by mutual agreement of the parties.   
 
D. If Owner authorizes changes in the scope, extent, or character of the Project 
or Engineer’s services, then the time for completion of Engineer’s services, and the 
rates and amounts of Engineer’s compensation, shall be adjusted equitably. 
 
E. Owner shall make decisions and carry out its other responsibilities in a 
timely manner so as not to delay the Engineer’s performance of its services.   

 
F. If Engineer fails, through its own fault, to complete the performance required 
in this Agreement within the time set forth, as duly adjusted, then Owner shall be 
entitled, as its sole remedy, to the recovery of direct damages, if any, resulting from 
such failure. 
 
ARTICLE 4 –  INVOICES AND PAYMENTS 
 
4.01 Invoices 
 
Preparation and Submittal of Invoices:  Engineer shall prepare invoices in 
accordance with its standard invoicing practices and the terms of Exhibit C.  
Engineer shall submit its invoices to Owner on a monthly basis.  Invoices are due 
and payable within 30 days of receipt.  
  
4.02 Payments 
 
A. Application to Interest and Principal:  Payment will be credited first to any 
interest owed to Engineer and then to principal.   
 
B. Failure to Pay:  If Owner fails to make any payment due Engineer for 
services and expenses within 30 days after receipt of Engineer’s invoice, then: 
 
1. amounts due Engineer will be increased at the rate of 1.0% per month (or 
the maximum rate of interest permitted by law, if less) from said thirtieth day; and 
 
2. Engineer may, after giving seven days written notice to Owner, suspend 
services under this Agreement until Owner has paid in full all amounts due for 
services, expenses, and other related charges.  Owner waives any and all claims 
against Engineer for any such suspension. 
 
C. Disputed Invoices:  If Owner disputes an invoice, either as to amount or 
entitlement, then Owner shall promptly advise Engineer in writing of the specific 
basis for doing so, may withhold only that portion so disputed, and must pay the 
undisputed portion subject to the terms of Paragraph 4.01.   
 
D. Sales or Use Taxes:  If after the Effective Date any governmental entity 
takes a legislative action that imposes additional sales or use taxes on Engineer’s 
services or compensation under this Agreement, then Engineer may invoice such 
additional sales or use taxes for reimbursement by Owner. Owner shall reimburse 
Engineer for the cost of such invoiced additional sales or use taxes; such 
reimbursement shall be in addition to the compensation to which Engineer is 
entitled under the terms of Exhibit C. 
 
ARTICLE 5 –  OPINIONS OF COST 
 
5.01 Opinions of Probable Construction Cost 
 
A. Engineer’s opinions (if any) of probable Construction Cost are to be made 
on the basis of Engineer’s experience, qualifications, and general familiarity with 
the construction industry.  However, because Engineer has no control over the cost 
of labor, materials, equipment, or services furnished by others, or over contractors’ 
methods of determining prices, or over competitive bidding or market conditions, 
Engineer cannot and does not guarantee that proposals, bids, or actual 
Construction Cost will not vary from opinions of probable Construction Cost 
prepared by Engineer.  If Owner requires greater assurance as to probable 
Construction Cost, then Owner agrees to obtain an independent cost estimate.  
 
5.02 Designing to Construction Cost Limit 
 
A. If a Construction Cost limit is established between Owner and Engineer, 
such Construction Cost limit and a statement of Engineer’s rights and 
responsibilities with respect thereto will be specifically set forth in Exhibit F to this 
Agreement. 
 
5.03 Opinions of Total Project Costs 
 
A. The services, if any, of Engineer with respect to Total Project Costs shall be 
limited to assisting the Owner in tabulating the various categories that comprise 
Total Project Costs.  Engineer assumes no responsibility for the accuracy of any 
opinions of Total Project Costs. 
 



Page 2 of 6 

 

ARTICLE 6 –  GENERAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 
6.01 Standards of Performance 
 
A. Standard of Care:  The standard of care for all professional engineering and 
related services performed or furnished by Engineer under this Agreement will be 
the care and skill ordinarily used by members of the subject profession practicing 
under similar circumstances at the same time and in the same locality.  Engineer 
makes no warranties, express or implied, under this Agreement or otherwise, in 
connection with any services performed or furnished by Engineer.  
 
B. Technical Accuracy:  Owner shall not be responsible for discovering 
deficiencies in the technical accuracy of Engineer’s services.  Engineer shall 
correct deficiencies in technical accuracy without additional compensation, unless 
such corrective action is directly attributable to deficiencies in Owner-furnished 
information. 
 
C. Consultants:  Engineer may retain such Consultants as Engineer deems 
necessary to assist in the performance or furnishing of the services, subject to 
reasonable, timely, and substantive objections by Owner.   
 
D. Reliance on Others:  Subject to the standard of care set forth in 
Paragraph 6.01.A, Engineer and its Consultants may use or rely upon design 
elements and information ordinarily or customarily furnished by others, including, 
but not limited to, specialty contractors, manufacturers, suppliers, and the 
publishers of technical standards.   
 
E. Compliance with Laws and Regulations, and Policies and Procedures: 
 
1. Engineer and Owner shall comply with applicable Laws and Regulations. 
 
2. Engineer shall comply with any and all policies, procedures, and instructions 
of Owner that are applicable to Engineer's performance of services under this 
Agreement and that Owner provides to Engineer in writing, subject to the standard 
of care set forth in Paragraph 6.01.A, and to the extent compliance is not 
inconsistent with professional practice requirements. 
 
3. This Agreement is based on Laws and Regulations and Owner-provided 
written policies and procedures as of the Effective Date.  The following may be 
the basis for modifications to Owner’s responsibilities or to Engineer’s scope of 
services, times of performance, or compensation:  
 
a.  changes after the Effective Date to Laws and Regulations; 
 
b.  the receipt by Engineer after the Effective Date of Owner-provided written 
policies and procedures;  
 
c. changes after the Effective Date to Owner-provided written policies or 
procedures.  
 
F. Engineer shall not be required to sign any document, no matter by whom 
requested, that would result in the Engineer having to certify, guarantee, or warrant 
the existence of conditions whose existence the Engineer cannot ascertain.  Owner 
agrees not to make resolution of any dispute with the Engineer or payment of any 
amount due to the Engineer in any way contingent upon the Engineer signing any 
such document. 
 
G. The general conditions for any construction contract documents prepared 
hereunder are to be EJCDC® C-700 “Standard General Conditions of the 
Construction Contract” (2013 Edition), prepared by the Engineers Joint Contract 
Documents Committee, unless expressly indicated otherwise in Exhibit J or 
elsewhere in this Agreement. 
 
H. Engineer shall not at any time supervise, direct, control, or have authority 
over any Constructor’s work, nor shall Engineer have authority over or be 
responsible for the means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures of 
construction selected or used by any Constructor, or the safety precautions and 
programs incident thereto, for security or safety at the Site, nor for any failure of a 
Constructor to comply with Laws and Regulations applicable to that Constructor’s 
furnishing and performing of its work. Engineer shall not be responsible for the acts 
or omissions of any Constructor. 
 
I. Engineer neither guarantees the performance of any Constructor nor 
assumes responsibility for any Constructor’s, failure to furnish and perform the 
Work in accordance with the Construction Contract Documents. 
  
J. Engineer shall not be responsible for any decision made regarding the 
Construction Contract Documents, or any application, interpretation, clarification, 
or modification of the Construction Contract Documents, other than those made by 
Engineer or its Consultants. 
 
K. Engineer is not required to provide and does not have any responsibility for 
surety bonding or insurance-related advice, recommendations, counseling, or 

research, or enforcement of construction insurance or surety bonding 
requirements. 
 
L. Engineer’s services do not include providing legal advice or representation.   
 
M. Engineer’s services do not include (1) serving as a “municipal advisor” for 
purposes of the registration requirements of Section 975 of the Dodd-Frank Wall 
Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act (2010) or the municipal advisor 
registration rules issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission, or (2) 
advising Owner, or any municipal entity or other person or entity, regarding 
municipal financial products or the issuance of municipal securities, including 
advice with respect to the structure, timing, terms, or other similar matters 
concerning such products or issuances. 
 
N. While at the Site, Engineer, its Consultants, and their employees and 
representatives shall comply with the applicable requirements of Contractor's and 
Owner's safety programs of which Engineer has been informed in writing. 
 
6.02 Design Without Construction Phase Services 
 
A. Engineer shall be responsible only for those Construction Phase services 
expressly required of Engineer in Exhibit A.  With the exception of such expressly 
required services, Engineer shall have no design, Shop Drawing review, or other 
obligations during construction, and Owner assumes all responsibility for the 
application and interpretation of the Construction Contract Documents, review and 
response to Contractor claims, Construction Contract administration, processing of 
Change Orders and submittals, revisions to the Construction Contract Documents 
during construction, construction observation and review, review of Contractor’s 
payment applications, and all other necessary Construction Phase administrative, 
engineering, and professional services.  Owner waives all claims against the 
Engineer that may be connected in any way to Construction Phase administrative, 
engineering, or professional services except for those services that are expressly 
required of Engineer in Exhibit A. 
 
6.03 Use of Documents 
 
A. Owner acknowledges the Engineer’s completed contract documents as 
instruments of professional services.  Nevertheless, the completed contract 
documents prepared under this Agreement shall become the property of the Owner 
whether the Project for which they are prepared is executed or not.  The Engineer 
shall deliver to the Owner updated contract documents upon final completion of the 
Project in usable electronic form, as well as reproducible copies of same as they 
exist at the date of final completion or termination, whichever occurs earlier.  
Engineer shall be permitted to retain reproducible copies of the contract documents 
for information, reference or other uses, as it deems appropriate without written 
authorization of the Owner.  Owner agrees to make no claims against the Engineer 
for losses arising out of any reuse of the contract documents. 

6.04 Electronic Transmittals  
 
A. Owner and Engineer may transmit, and shall accept, Project-related 
correspondence, Documents, text, data, drawings, information, and graphics, in 
electronic media or digital format. 
 
6.05 Insurance 
 
A. Engineer shall procure and maintain insurance as set forth in Exhibit G. 
Engineer shall cause Owner to be listed as an additional insured on any applicable 
general liability insurance policy carried by Engineer.   
 
B. Owner shall require Contractor to purchase and maintain policies of 
insurance covering workers' compensation, general liability, motor vehicle damage 
and injuries, and other insurance necessary to protect Owner's and Engineer's 
interests in the Project.  Owner shall require Contractor to cause Engineer and its 
Consultants to be listed as additional insureds with respect to such liability 
insurance purchased and maintained by Contractor for the Project. 
 
C. Engineer shall deliver to the Owner certificates of insurance evidencing the 
coverages indicated in Exhibit G.  Such certificates shall be furnished prior to 
commencement of Engineer’s services and at renewals thereafter during the life of 
the Agreement. 
 
D. All policies of property insurance relating to the Project, including but not 
limited to any builder’s risk policy, shall allow for waiver of subrogation rights and 
contain provisions to the effect that in the event of payment of any loss or damage 
the insurers will have no rights of recovery against any insured thereunder or 
against Engineer or its Consultants. Owner and Engineer waive all rights against 
each other, Contractor, the Consultants, and the respective officers, directors, 
members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, and subcontractors of each 
and any of them, for all losses and damages caused by, arising out of, or resulting 
from any of the perils or causes of loss covered by any builder’s risk policy and any 
other property insurance relating to the Project. Owner and Engineer shall take 



Page 3 of 6 

 

appropriate measures in other Project-related contracts to secure waivers of rights 
consistent with those set forth in this paragraph.  
 
E. All policies of insurance shall contain a provision or endorsement that the 
coverage afforded will not be canceled or reduced in limits by endorsement, and 
that renewal will not be refused, until at least 10 days prior written notice has been 
given to the primary insured. Upon receipt of such notice, the receiving party shall 
promptly forward a copy of the notice to the other party to this Agreement.  
 
F. At any time, Owner may request that Engineer or its Consultants, at Owner’s 
sole expense, provide additional insurance coverage, increased limits, or revised 
deductibles that are more protective than those specified in Exhibit G.  If so 
requested by Owner, and if commercially available, Engineer shall obtain and shall 
require its Consultants to obtain such additional insurance coverage, different 
limits, or revised deductibles for such periods of time as requested by Owner, and 
Exhibit G will be supplemented to incorporate these requirements. 
 
6.06 Suspension and Termination 
 
A. Suspension: 
 
1. By Owner:  Owner may suspend the Project for up to 90 days upon seven 
days written notice to Engineer.  
 
2. By Engineer:  Engineer may, after giving seven days written notice to 
Owner, suspend services under this Agreement if Owner has failed to pay 
Engineer for invoiced services and expenses, as set forth in Paragraph 4.02.B, or 
in response to the presence of Constituents of Concern at the Site, as set forth in 
Paragraph 6.10.D.  
 
B. Termination:  The obligation to provide further services under this 
Agreement may be terminated: 
 
1. For cause, 
 
a. by either party upon 30 days written notice in the event of substantial failure 
by the other party to perform in accordance with the terms hereof through no fault 
of the terminating party. 
 
b. by Engineer: 
 
1) upon seven days written notice if Owner demands that Engineer furnish or 
perform services contrary to Engineer’s responsibilities as a licensed professional; 
or  
 
2) upon seven days written notice if the Engineer’s services for the Project are 
delayed or suspended for more than 90 days for reasons beyond Engineer’s 
control, or as the result of the presence at the Site of undisclosed Constituents of 
Concern, as set forth in Paragraph 6.10.D. 
 
3) Engineer shall have no liability to Owner on account of such termination. 
 
c. Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Agreement will not terminate under 
Paragraph 6.06.B.1.a if the party receiving such notice begins, within seven days 
of receipt of such notice, to correct its substantial failure to perform and proceeds 
diligently to cure such failure within no more than 30 days of receipt thereof; 
provided, however, that if and to the extent such substantial failure cannot be 
reasonably cured within such 30 day period, and if such party has diligently 
attempted to cure the same and thereafter continues diligently to cure the same, 
then the cure period provided for herein shall extend up to, but in no case more 
than, 60 days after the date of receipt of the notice. 
 
2. For convenience, by Owner effective upon Engineer’s receipt of notice from 
Owner.  
  
C. Effective Date of Termination:  The terminating party under Paragraph 
6.06.B may set the effective date of termination at a time up to 30 days later than 
otherwise provided to allow Engineer to demobilize personnel and equipment from 
the Site, to complete tasks whose value would otherwise be lost, to prepare notes 
as to the status of completed and uncompleted tasks, and to assemble Project 
materials in orderly files. 
 
D. Payments Upon Termination: 
 
1. In the event of any termination under Paragraph 6.06, Engineer will be 
entitled to invoice Owner and to receive full payment for all services performed or 
furnished in accordance with this Agreement and all Reimbursable Expenses 
incurred through the effective date of termination.  Upon making such payment, 
Owner shall have the right to the use of Documents, at Owner’s sole risk, subject 
to the provisions of Paragraph 6.03. 
 

6.07 Controlling Law 
 
A. This Agreement is to be governed by the Laws and Regulations of the state 
of Iowa.   It is agreed the Circuit Court of Woodbury County, Iowa is the exclusive 
venue for any legal action arising out this Agreement or the performance of 
services thereunder.  

6.08 Successors, Assigns, and Beneficiaries 
 
A. Owner and Engineer are hereby bound and the successors, executors, 
administrators, and legal representatives of Owner and Engineer (and to the extent 
permitted by Paragraph 6.08.B the assigns of Owner and Engineer) are hereby 
bound to the other party to this Agreement and to the successors, executors, 
administrators and legal representatives (and said assigns) of such other party, in 
respect of all covenants, agreements, and obligations of this Agreement. 
 
B. Neither Owner nor Engineer may assign, sublet, or transfer any rights under 
or interest (including, but without limitation, money that is due or may become due) 
in this Agreement without the written consent of the other party, except to the extent 
that any assignment, subletting, or transfer is mandated by law.  Unless specifically 
stated to the contrary in any written consent to an assignment, no assignment will 
release or discharge the assignor from any duty or responsibility under this 
Agreement. 
 
C. Unless expressly provided otherwise in this Agreement: 
 
1. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to create, impose, or give rise 
to any duty owed by Owner or Engineer to any Constructor, other third-party 
individual or entity, or to any surety for or employee of any of them. 
 
2. All duties and responsibilities undertaken pursuant to this Agreement will be 
for the sole and exclusive benefit of Owner and Engineer and not for the benefit of 
any other party. 
   
6.09 Dispute Resolution 
 
A. Owner and Engineer agree to negotiate all disputes between them in good 
faith for a period of 30 days from the date of notice prior to invoking the procedures 
of Exhibit H or other provisions of this Agreement, or exercising their rights at law.   
 
B. If the parties fail to resolve a dispute through negotiation under 
Paragraph 6.09.A, then either or both may invoke the procedures of Exhibit H.  If 
Exhibit H is not included, or if no dispute resolution method is specified in Exhibit H, 
then the parties may exercise their rights at law.   
 
6.10 Environmental Condition of Site 
 
A. Owner represents to Engineer that as of the Effective Date to the best of 
Owner’s knowledge no Constituents of Concern, other than those disclosed in 
writing to Engineer, exist at or adjacent to the Site.   
 
B. If Engineer encounters or learns of an undisclosed Constituent of Concern 
at the Site, then Engineer shall notify (1) Owner and (2) appropriate governmental 
officials if Engineer reasonably concludes that doing so is required by applicable 
Laws or Regulations. 
 
C. It is acknowledged by both parties that Engineer’s scope of services does 
not include any services related to unknown or undisclosed Constituents of 
Concern.  If Engineer or any other party encounters, uncovers, or reveals an 
undisclosed Constituent of Concern, then Owner shall promptly determine whether 
to retain a qualified expert to evaluate such condition or take any necessary 
corrective action. 
 
D. If investigative or remedial action, or other professional services, are 
necessary with respect to undisclosed Constituents of Concern, or if investigative 
or remedial action beyond that reasonably contemplated is needed to address a 
disclosed or known Constituent of Concern, then Engineer may, at its option and 
without liability for consequential or any other damages, suspend performance of 
services on the portion of the Project affected thereby until such portion of the 
Project is no longer affected.  
 
E. If the presence at the Site of undisclosed Constituents of Concern adversely 
affects the performance of Engineer’s services under this Agreement, then the 
Engineer shall have the option of (1) accepting an equitable adjustment in its 
compensation or in the time of completion, or both; or (2) terminating this 
Agreement for cause on seven days notice. 
 
F. Owner acknowledges that Engineer is performing professional services for 
Owner and that Engineer is not and shall not be required to become an "owner," 
“arranger,” “operator,” “generator,” or “transporter” of hazardous substances, as 
defined in the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and 
Liability Act (CERCLA), as amended, which are or may be encountered at or near 
the Site in connection with Engineer’s activities under this Agreement. 



Page 4 of 6 

 

 
6.11 Indemnification and Mutual Waiver 
 
A. Indemnification by Engineer:  To the fullest extent permitted by Laws and 
Regulations, Engineer shall indemnify and hold harmless Owner, and Owner’s 
officers, directors, members, partners, agents, consultants, and employees, from 
losses, damages, and judgments (including reasonable consultants’ and attorneys’ 
fees and expenses) arising from third-party claims or actions relating to the Project, 
provided that any such claim, action, loss, damages, or judgment is attributable to 
bodily injury, sickness, disease, or death, or to injury to or destruction of tangible 
property (other than the Work itself), including the loss of use resulting therefrom, 
but only to the extent caused by any negligent act or omission of Engineer or 
Engineer’s officers, directors, members, partners, agents, employees, or 
Consultants.  
 
B. Indemnification by Owner:  Owner shall indemnify and hold harmless 
Engineer and its officers, directors, members, partners, agents, employees, and 
Consultants as required by Laws and Regulations and to the extent (if any) 
required in Exhibit I, “Limitations of Liability.” 
 
C. Environmental Indemnification:  To the fullest extent permitted by Laws and 
Regulations, Owner shall indemnify and hold harmless Engineer and its officers, 
directors, members, partners, agents, employees, and Consultants from all claims, 
costs, losses, damages, actions, and judgments (including reasonable consultants’ 
and attorneys fees and expenses) caused by, arising out of, relating to, or resulting 
from a Constituent of Concern at, on, or under the Site, provided that (1) any such 
claim, cost, loss, damages, action, or judgment is attributable to bodily injury, 
sickness, disease, or death, or to injury to or destruction of tangible property (other 
than the Work itself), including the loss of use resulting therefrom, and (2) nothing 
in this paragraph shall obligate Owner to indemnify any individual or entity from 
and against the consequences of that individual's or entity's own negligence or 
willful misconduct. 
 
D. No Defense Obligation:  The indemnification commitments in this 
Agreement do not include a defense obligation by the indemnitor unless such 
obligation is expressly stated. 
 
E. Percentage Share of Negligence:  To the fullest extent permitted by Laws 
and Regulations,  a party’s total liability to  the other party and anyone claiming by, 
through, or under the other party for any  cost, loss, or damages caused in part by 
the negligence of the party and in part by the negligence of  the other party or any 
other negligent entity or individual, shall not exceed the percentage share that the 
party’s negligence bears to the total negligence of Owner, Engineer, and all other 
negligent entities and individuals. 
 
F. Mutual Waiver:  To the fullest extent permitted by Laws and Regulations, 
Owner and Engineer waive against each other, and the other’s employees, 
officers, directors, members, agents, insurers, partners, and consultants, any and 
all claims for or entitlement to special, incidental, indirect, or consequential 
damages arising out of, resulting from, or in any way related to this Agreement or 
the Project, from any cause or causes.   
 
6.12 Records Retention 
 
A. Engineer shall maintain on file in legible form, for a period of five years 
following completion or termination of its services, all Documents, records 
(including cost records), and design calculations related to Engineer’s services or 
pertinent to Engineer’s performance under this Agreement.  Upon Owner’s 
request, Engineer shall provide a copy of any such item to Owner at cost. 
 
6.13 Miscellaneous Provisions  
 
A. Notices:  Any notice required under this Agreement will be in writing, 
addressed to the appropriate party at its address on the signature page and given 
personally, by registered or certified mail postage prepaid, or by a commercial 
courier service.  All notices shall be effective upon the date of receipt. 
 
B. Survival:  All express representations, waivers, indemnifications, and 
limitations of liability included in this Agreement will survive its completion or 
termination for any reason. 
 
C. Severability:  Any provision or part of the Agreement held to be void or 
unenforceable under any Laws or Regulations shall be deemed stricken, and all 
remaining provisions shall continue to be valid and binding upon Owner and 
Engineer. which agree that the Agreement shall be reformed to replace such 
stricken provision or part thereof with a valid and enforceable provision that comes 
as close as possible to expressing the intention of the stricken provision. 
 
D. Waiver:  A party’s non-enforcement of any provision shall not constitute a 
waiver of that provision, nor shall it affect the enforceability of that provision or of 
the remainder of this Agreement. 
 

E. Accrual of Claims:  To the fullest extent permitted by Laws and Regulations, 
all causes of action arising under this Agreement shall be deemed to have accrued, 
and all statutory periods of limitation shall commence, no later than the date of 
Substantial Completion. 
 
ARTICLE 7 –  DEFINITIONS 
 
7.01 Defined Terms 
 
A. Wherever used in this Agreement (including the Exhibits hereto) terms 
(including the singular and plural forms) printed with initial capital letters have the 
meanings indicated in the text above, in the exhibits, or in the following definitions: 
 
1. Addenda—Written or graphic instruments issued prior to the opening of bids 
which clarify, correct, or change the bidding requirements or the proposed 
Construction Contract Documents. 
 
2. Additional Services—The services to be performed for or furnished to 
Owner by Engineer in accordance with Exhibit A of this Agreement. 
 
3. Agreement—This written contract for professional services between Owner 
and Engineer, including all exhibits identified in Paragraph 8.01 and any duly 
executed amendments. 
 
4. Application for Payment—The form acceptable to Engineer which is to be 
used by Contractor during the course of the Work in requesting progress or final 
payments and which is to be accompanied by such supporting documentation as 
is required by the Construction Contract. 
 
5. Basic Services—The services to be performed for or furnished to Owner by 
Engineer in accordance with Exhibit A of this Agreement. 
 
6. Change Order—A document which is signed by Contractor and Owner and 
authorizes an addition, deletion, or revision in the Work or an adjustment in the 
Construction Contract Price or the Construction Contract Times, or other revision 
to the Construction Contract, issued on or after the effective date of the 
Construction Contract.  
 
7. Change Proposal—A written request by Contractor, duly submitted in 
compliance with the procedural requirements set forth in the Construction Contract, 
seeking an adjustment in Construction Contract Price or Construction Contract 
Times, or both; contesting an initial decision by Engineer concerning the 
requirements of the Construction Contract Documents or the acceptability of Work 
under the Construction Contract Documents; challenging a set-off against 
payments due; or seeking other relief with respect to the terms of the Construction 
Contract. 
 
8. Constituent of Concern—Asbestos, petroleum, radioactive material, 
polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs), hazardous waste, and any substance, product, 
waste, or other material of any nature whatsoever that is or becomes listed, 
regulated, or addressed pursuant to (a) the Comprehensive Environmental 
Response, Compensation and Liability Act, 42 U.S.C. §§9601 et seq. (“CERCLA”); 
(b) the Hazardous Materials Transportation Act, 49 U.S.C. §§5501 et seq.; (c) the 
Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, 42 U.S.C. §§6901 et seq. (“RCRA”); 
(d) the Toxic Substances Control Act, 15 U.S.C. §§2601 et seq.; (e) the Clean 
Water Act, 33 U.S.C. §§1251 et seq.; (f) the Clean Air Act, 42 U.S.C. §§7401 et 
seq.; or (g) any other federal, State, or local statute, law, rule, regulation, ordinance, 
resolution, code, order, or decree regulating, relating to, or imposing liability or 
standards of conduct concerning, any hazardous, toxic, or dangerous waste, 
substance, or material. 
 
9. Construction Contract—The entire and integrated written contract between 
the Owner and Contractor concerning the Work. 
 
10. Construction Contract Documents—Those items designated as “Contract 
Documents” in the Construction Contract, and which together comprise the 
Construction Contract.   
 
11. Construction Contract Price—The money that Owner has agreed to pay 
Contractor for completion of the Work in accordance with the Construction Contract 
Documents. 
 
12. Construction Contract Times—The number of days or the dates by which 
Contractor shall:  (a) achieve milestones, if any, in the Construction Contract; 
(b) achieve Substantial Completion; and (c) complete the Work.  
 
13. Construction Cost—The cost to Owner of the construction of those portions 
of the entire Project designed or specified by or for Engineer under this Agreement, 
including construction labor, services, materials, equipment, insurance, and 
bonding costs, and allowances for contingencies.  Construction Cost does not 
include costs of services of Engineer or other design professionals and 
consultants; cost of land or rights-of-way, or compensation for damages to 
property; Owner’s costs for legal, accounting, insurance counseling, or auditing 



Page 5 of 6 

 

services; interest or financing charges incurred in connection with the Project; or 
the cost of other services to be provided by others to Owner. Construction Cost is 
one of the items comprising Total Project Costs. 
 
14. Constructor—Any person or entity (not including the Engineer, its 
employees, agents, representatives, and Consultants), performing or supporting 
construction activities relating to the Project, including but not limited to 
Contractors, Subcontractors, Suppliers, Owner’s work forces, utility companies, 
other contractors, construction managers, testing firms, shippers, and truckers, and 
the employees, agents, and representatives of any or all of them.  
 
15. Consultants—Individuals or entities having a contract with Engineer to 
furnish services with respect to this Project as Engineer’s independent professional 
associates and consultants; subcontractors; or vendors.  
 
16. Contractor—The entity or individual with which Owner enters into a 
Construction Contract. 
 
17. Documents—Data, reports, Drawings, Specifications, Record Drawings, 
building information models, civil integrated management models, and other 
deliverables, whether in printed or electronic format, provided or furnished in 
appropriate phases by Engineer to Owner pursuant to this Agreement. 
 
18. Drawings—That part of the Construction Contract Documents that 
graphically shows the scope, extent, and character of the Work to be performed by 
Contractor.   
 
19. Effective Date—The date indicated in this Agreement on which it becomes 
effective, but if no such date is indicated, the date on which this Agreement is 
signed and delivered by the last of the parties to sign and deliver. 
 
20. Engineer—The individual or entity named as such in this Agreement. 
 
21. Field Order—A written order issued by Engineer which requires minor 
changes in the Work but does not change the Construction Contract Price or the 
Construction Contract Times. 
 
22. Laws and Regulations; Laws or Regulations—Any and all applicable laws, 
statutes, rules, regulations, ordinances, codes, and orders of any and all 
governmental bodies, agencies, authorities, and courts having jurisdiction. 
 
23. Owner—The individual or entity named as such in this Agreement and for 
which Engineer's services are to be performed.  Unless indicated otherwise, this is 
the same individual or entity that will enter into any Construction Contracts 
concerning the Project. 
 
24. Project—The total undertaking to be accomplished for Owner by engineers, 
contractors, and others, including planning, study, design, construction, testing, 
commissioning, and start-up, and of which the services to be performed or 
furnished by Engineer under this Agreement are a part. 
 
25. Record Drawings—Drawings depicting the completed Project, or a specific 
portion of the completed Project, prepared by Engineer and based on Contractor's 
record copy of all Drawings, Specifications, Addenda, Change Orders, Work 
Change Directives, Field Orders, and written interpretations and clarifications, as 
delivered to Engineer and annotated by Contractor to show changes made during 
construction. 
 
26. Reimbursable Expenses—The expenses incurred directly by Engineer in 
connection with the performing or furnishing of Basic Services and Additional 
Services for the Project.  
 
27. Resident Project Representative—The authorized representative of 
Engineer assigned to assist Engineer at the Site during the Construction Phase.  
As used herein, the term Resident Project Representative or "RPR" includes any 
assistants or field staff of Resident Project Representative. The duties and 
responsibilities of the Resident Project Representative, if any, are as set forth in 
Exhibit D.  
 
28. Samples—Physical examples of materials, equipment, or workmanship that 
are representative of some portion of the Work and that establish the standards by 
which such portion of the Work will be judged. 
 
29. Shop Drawings—All drawings, diagrams, illustrations, schedules, and other 
data or information that are specifically prepared or assembled by or for Contractor 
and submitted by Contractor to illustrate some portion of the Work. Shop Drawings, 
whether approved or not, are not Drawings and are not Construction Contract 
Documents. 
 
30. Site—Lands or areas to be indicated in the Construction Contract 
Documents as being furnished by Owner upon which the Work is to be performed, 
including rights-of-way and easements, and such other lands furnished by Owner 
which are designated for the use of Contractor. 

 
31. Specifications—The part of the Construction Contract Documents that 
consists of written requirements for materials, equipment, systems, standards, and 
workmanship as applied to the Work, and certain administrative requirements and 
procedural matters applicable to the Work.  
 
32. Subcontractor—An individual or entity having a direct contract with 
Contractor or with any other Subcontractor for the performance of a part of the 
Work.  
 
33. Substantial Completion—The time at which the Work (or a specified part 
thereof) has progressed to the point where, in the opinion of Engineer, the Work 
(or a specified part thereof) is sufficiently complete, in accordance with the 
Construction Contract Documents, so that the Work (or a specified part thereof) 
can be utilized for the purposes for which it is intended. The terms “substantially 
complete” and “substantially completed” as applied to all or part of the Work refer 
to Substantial Completion thereof. 
 
34. Supplier—A manufacturer, fabricator, supplier, distributor, materialman, or 
vendor having a direct contract with Contractor or with any Subcontractor to furnish 
materials or equipment to be incorporated in the Work by Contractor or a 
Subcontractor. 
 
35. Total Project Costs—The total cost of planning, studying, designing, 
constructing, testing, commissioning, and start-up of the Project, including 
Construction Cost and all other Project labor, services, materials, equipment, 
insurance, and bonding costs, allowances for contingencies, and the total costs of 
services of Engineer or other design professionals and consultants, together with 
such other Project-related costs that Owner furnishes for inclusion, including but 
not limited to cost of land, rights-of-way, compensation for damages to properties, 
Owner’s costs for legal, accounting, insurance counseling, and auditing services, 
interest and financing charges incurred in connection with the Project, and the cost 
of other services to be provided by others to Owner.  
 
36. Work—The entire construction or the various separately identifiable parts 
thereof required to be provided under the Construction Contract Documents.  Work 
includes and is the result of performing or providing all labor, services, and 
documentation necessary to produce such construction; furnishing, installing, and 
incorporating all materials and equipment into such construction; and may include 
related services such as testing, start-up, and commissioning, all as required by 
the Construction Contract Documents. 
 
37. Work Change Directive—A written directive to Contractor issued on or after 
the effective date of the Construction Contract, signed by Owner and 
recommended by Engineer, ordering an addition, deletion, or revision in the Work. 
 
B. Day: 
 
1. The word “day” means a calendar day of 24 hours measured from midnight 
to the next midnight. 
 
ARTICLE 8 –  EXHIBITS AND SPECIAL PROVISIONS 
 
8.01 Exhibits Included: 
 
A. Exhibit A, Engineer’s Services.  
B. Exhibit B, Owner’s Responsibilities.  
C. Exhibit C, Payments to Engineer for Services & Reimbursable Expenses.  
D. Exhibit D, Duties, Responsibilities & Limitations of Authority of RPR.  
E. Exhibit E, Notice of Acceptability of Work.  
F. Exhibit F, Construction Cost Limit.  
G. Exhibit G, Insurance.  
H. Exhibit H, Dispute Resolution. NOT USED  
I. Exhibit I, Limitations of Liability. NOT USED 
J. Exhibit J, Special Provisions. NOT USED  
K. Exhibit K, Amendment to Owner-Engineer Agreement.   
L. Exhibit L, Project Limits Map  NOT USED 
 
8.02 Total Agreement 
 
A. This Agreement, (together with the exhibits included above) constitutes the 
entire agreement between Owner and Engineer and supersedes all prior written or 
oral understandings.  This Agreement may only be amended, supplemented, 
modified, or canceled by a written instrument duly executed by both parties. 
Amendments should be based whenever possible on the format of Exhibit K to this 
Agreement. 
 
8.03 Designated Representatives 
 
A. With the execution of this Agreement, Engineer and Owner shall designate 
specific individuals to act as Engineer’s and Owner’s representatives with respect 
to the services to be performed or furnished by Engineer and responsibilities of 
Owner under this Agreement.  Such an individual shall have authority to transmit 





Exhibit A - Page 1 of 3 

 

EXHIBIT A – ENGINEER’S SERVICES 
 

This is Exhibit A, referred to in and part of the Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services 

 
 
Article 1 of the Agreement is supplemented to include the following agreement of 
the parties.   
 
Engineer shall provide Basic and Additional Services as set forth below. 
 
PART 1 – BASIC SERVICES 
 
A1.01 Surveying  

 
A. Design Survey 

Engineer will perform a topographic survey for the proposed project that 
includes the following: 

a. Establish horizontal and vertical control for the project. 
b. Topographic survey within the limits of the project.  The topographic 

survey shall include contours at an interval of one-foot, existing site 
improvements including buildings, walks, drives, and known utilities that 
are visible at the time of the survey. Local One-Call will be contacted 
prior to topographic survey for utility locations. 

c. Property pin search to determine right-of-way and property lines 
necessary for the preparation of easements. 

d. Collection of property pin location and establishment of property lines in 
locations necessary for the preparation of easements. 

B. Prepare Temporary and Permanent Easements 

Engineer will prepare temporary and permanent easements for the project 
as required.  The Engineer will prepare exhibits that show the location of the 
proposed infrastructure on the individual properties.  The Engineer will also 
prepare metes and bounds legal descriptions for the easement locations.   

An ownership and encumbrance report will be obtained on all properties 
requiring an easement.  The Owner will be responsible to pay for all 
ownership and encumbrance reports performed by the Engineer as a 
reimbursable expense.  Additionally, title searches for each property 
requiring an easement may be necessary.  Title searches will be performed 
on an as needed basis.  The Owner will be responsible to pay for all title 
searches performed by the Engineer as a reimbursable expense. 

As per the 28E Agreement for Developmental Services entered into 
between the City of Sioux City, Iowa (City) and Woodbury County, Iowa, 
dated June 8, 2020, the City shall be responsible for easement acquisition 
(permanent and temporary) from adjacent property owners including, but 
not limited to, utility installation of gravity sanitary sewer main.    

A1.02 28th Street Improvements 

A. Construction Documents 

The Engineer will prepare construction documents consisting of 
construction drawings and technical specifications for the proposed 
improvements to 28th Street.  It is anticipated that these improvements will 
consist of the following: 

a. Paving of the unpaved portion of 28th Street,  
b. Sight distance improvements at the east end of the existing paving. 
c. Widening of the curve east of Outer Drive. 
d. The addition of a northbound left turn lane to Outer Drive on to 28th 

Street. 
e. Review of sight distance at the intersection of 28th Street and Outer Drive 

and any necessary improvements. 
f. Striping of centerline and edge of pavement markings along the entirety 

of 28th Street.  
g. Water main extension from existing dead end to 16” main in Outer Drive. 
h. Review of stormwater culvert capacity and any necessary improvements.   

 
Construction drawings are anticipated to consist of the following: 
 
a. Roadway Plan and Profiles 
b. Roadway Cross Sections (if required) 
c. Roadway Intersection Details 
d. Stormwater Plan and Profiles (if required) 
e. Water Main Extension Plan 
f. Typical Details 

 
B. Utility Coordination 

The Engineer will coordinate with fiber, gas, and electric service providers 
as necessary to extend service to the jail site. 

A1.03 Gravity Sewer Main Improvements 

A. Construction Documents  

The Engineer will prepare construction documents consisting of 
construction drawings and technical specifications for the proposed gravity 
sewer main improvements to serve the jail site.  It is anticipated that these 
improvements will consist of the following: 

a. Gravity sewer main extension from the existing 10” line along Highway 
75 North between the properties of 3000 Highway 75 North and 2900 
and 2830 Highway 75 North, across the City owned property of 3500 28th 
Street and the proposed jail site at 3701 28th Street to a location on the 
south side of 28th Street across from the jail site.   
 

Construction drawings are anticipated to consist of the following: 
 
a. Sanitary Sewer Plan and Profiles 
b. Typical Details 

 
A1.04 Design Schedule 

A. Design Schedule 

Parts A1.01 – A1.03, as outlined above, will follow the same design 
schedule as the proposed Woodbury County Jail Site Improvements 
Project.   

A1.05 Bidding 

A. Public Bidding of the Project 

In compliance with Iowa Public Bidding Laws, the Engineer will publicly 
advertise the project for bids and issue interested contractors electronic 
contract documents.  The contract documents will include bidding 
documents, construction drawings, technical specifications, temporary and 
permanent easements. The Engineer will keep an updated planholder’s list 
during the bidding phase. The Engineer will answer questions from 
contractor(s) during the bidding process. 

B. Bidding and Contract Documents 

Bidding and contract documents (front-end documents) to be utilized for 
publicly bidding the project will be provided by the Engineer and approved 
by the Owner.  Engineer will incorporate the front-end documents into the 
bidding package. 

C. Pre-Bid Meeting 

The Engineer will schedule and hold a pre-bid meeting for the project to 
answer questions from interested contractors and provide interested parties 
with important information specific to the project.   

D. Addenda 

The Engineer will issue addenda to the contract documents as required 
during bidding. 

E. Bid Opening 

The Engineer will schedule and conduct a bid opening for the project. 

F. Review of Bids 

In compliance with Iowa Public Bidding Laws, the Engineer will review the 
bids submitted by the interested parties, prepare a bid tabulation, and 
formulate a recommendation to the Owner. 

 



Exhibit A - Page 2 of 3 

 

A1.06 Engineering During Construction 

A. Shop Drawings 

Shop drawings provided by the contractor(s) on the project will be reviewed 
by the Engineer for conformance with the contract documents. 

B. Pay Requests 

Pay Requests provided by the contractor(s) on the project will be reviewed 
by the Engineer for conformance with the contract documents.  The 
Engineer will make recommendations to the Owner regarding payment. 

C. Change Orders 

The Engineer will review and process change orders on the project as 
required. 

D. Questions During Construction 

The Engineer will answer questions from the Owner and the contractor(s) 
regarding the project, design, and construction of the project during 
construction. 

E. Meetings 

The Engineer will attend meetings with the Owner and their staff, property 
owners, regulatory bodies, and the contractor(s) as necessary during 
construction. 

F. Construction Staking 

The Engineer will provide construction staking for the contractor(s) on the 
project.  The Engineer’s scope of services and fees will be determined upon 
completion of the contract documents.  The fees for construction staking 
services will be included on the bid form for the project.  The Owner will 
review and approve the summary of services and fees prior to bidding of the 
project. 

A1.07 Construction Observation 

A. Resident Project Representative 

The Engineer will provide one Resident Project Representative in 
accordance with Exhibit D of the Agreement on an intermittent basis during 
the construction of the project.   

A1.08 Construction Testing 

A. Construction Testing  

The Engineer will provide construction testing for the improvements to 28th 
Street. 

PART 2 – ADDITIONAL SERVICES 
 
A2.01 Additional Services Requiring Owner’s Written Authorization 
 
A. If authorized in writing by Owner, Engineer shall provide Additional 
Services of the types listed below. Unless specifically described as part of Basic 
Services, these services are not included and will be paid for by Owner as 
indicated in Exhibit C. 
 
1. Preparation of applications and supporting documents (in addition to those 
furnished under Basic Services) for private or governmental grants, loans, or 
advances in connection with the Project; preparation or review of environmental 
assessments and impact statements; review and evaluation of the effects on the 
design requirements for the Project of any such statements and documents 
prepared by others; and assistance in obtaining approvals of authorities having 
jurisdiction over the anticipated environmental impact of the Project. 
 
2. Services to make measured drawings of existing conditions or facilities, to 
conduct tests or investigations of existing conditions or facilities, or to verify the 
accuracy of drawings or other information furnished by Owner or others. 

 
3. Services resulting from significant changes in the scope, extent, or 
character of the portions of the Project designed or specified by Engineer, or the 
Project’s design requirements, including, but not limited to, changes in size, 
complexity, Owner’s schedule, character of construction, or method of financing; 
and revising previously accepted studies, reports, Drawings, Specifications, or 
Construction Contract Documents when such revisions are required by changes 
in Laws and Regulations enacted subsequent to the Effective Date or are due to 
any other causes beyond Engineer’s control. 

 

4. Services resulting from Owner’s request to evaluate additional Study and 
Report Phase alternative solutions beyond those agreed to in Basic Services. 

 
5. Services required as a result of Owner’s providing incomplete or incorrect 
Project information to Engineer. 
 
6. Providing renderings or models for Owner’s use, including services in 
support of building information modeling or civil integrated management. 

 
7. Undertaking investigations and studies including, but not limited to: 

 
a. detailed consideration of operations, maintenance, and overhead expenses; 
b. the preparation of feasibility studies (such as those that include projections 

of output capacity, utility project rates, project market demand, or project 
revenues) and cash flow analyses, provided that such services are based 
on the engineering and technical aspects of the Project, and do not include 
rendering advice regarding municipal financial products or the issuance of 
municipal securities; 

c. preparation of appraisals; 
d. evaluating processes available for licensing, and assisting Owner in 

obtaining process licensing;  
e. detailed quantity surveys of materials, equipment, and labor; and 
f. audits or inventories required in connection with construction performed or 

furnished by Owner. 
 

8. Furnishing services of Consultants for other than Basic Services. 
 
9. Providing data or services of the types described in Exhibit B, when Owner 
retains Engineer to provide such data or services instead of Owner furnishing the 
same.  

 
10. Providing the following services: 

 
a. Services attributable to more prime construction contracts than specified in 

Paragraph A1.03.D. 
b. Services to arrange for performance of construction services for Owner by 

contractors other than the principal prime Contractor, and administering 
Owner’s contract for such services. 

 
11. Services during out-of-town travel required of Engineer, other than for 
visits to the Site or Owner’s office as required in Basic Services (Part 1 of Exhibit 
A). 
 
12. Preparing for, coordinating with, participating in and responding to 
structured independent review processes, including, but not limited to, 
construction management, cost estimating, project peer review, value 
engineering, and constructibility review requested by Owner; and performing or 
furnishing services required to revise studies, reports, Drawings, Specifications, 
or other documents as a result of such review processes. 

 
13. Preparing additional bidding-related documents (or requests for proposals 
or other construction procurement documents) or Construction Contract 
Documents for alternate bids or cost estimates requested by Owner for the Work 
or a portion thereof. 

 
14. Assistance in connection with bid protests, rebidding, or renegotiating 
contracts for construction, materials, equipment, or services, except when such 
assistance is required to complete services required by Paragraph 5.02.A and 
Exhibit F. 

 
15. Preparing conformed Construction Contract Documents that incorporate 
and integrate the content of all Addenda and any amendments negotiated by 
Owner and Contractor. 

 
16. Providing Construction Phase services beyond the original date for 
completion and readiness for final payment of Contractor, but only if such 
services increase the total quantity of services to be performed in the 
Construction Phase, rather than merely shifting performance of such services to 
a later date. 

 
17. Preparing Record Drawings, and furnishing such Record Drawings to 
Owner. 

 
18. Supplementing Record Drawings with information regarding the completed 
Project, Site, and immediately adjacent areas obtained from field observations, 
Owner, utility companies, and other reliable sources. 

 
19. Conducting surveys, investigations, and field measurements to verify the 
accuracy of Record Drawing content obtained from Contractor, Owner, utility 
companies, and other sources; revise and supplement Record Drawings as 
needed. 

 
 



Exhibit A - Page 3 of 3 

 

 
20. Preparation of operation, maintenance, and staffing manuals. 

 
21. Protracted or extensive assistance in refining and adjusting of Project 
equipment and systems (such as initial startup, testing, and balancing). 

 
22. Assistance to Owner in training Owner’s staff to operate and maintain 
Project equipment and systems. 

 
23. Assistance to Owner in developing systems and procedures for (a) control 
of the operation and maintenance of Project equipment and systems, and (b) 
related recordkeeping. 

 
24. Preparing to serve or serving as a consultant or witness for Owner in any 
litigation, arbitration, lien or bond claim, or other legal or administrative 
proceeding involving the Project. 

 
25. Overtime work requiring higher than regular rates. 

 
26. Providing construction surveys and staking to enable Contractor to perform 
its work other than as required under Paragraph A1.05.A.8; any type of property 
surveys or related engineering services needed for the transfer of interests in real 
property; and providing other special field surveys. 

 
27. Providing more extensive services required to enable Engineer to issue 
notices or certifications requested by Owner. 

 
28. Extensive services required during any correction period, or with respect to 
monitoring Contractor’s compliance with warranties and guarantees called for in 
the Construction Contract (except as agreed to under Basic Services). 

 
29. Other additional services performed or furnished by Engineer not 
otherwise provided for in this Agreement. 

 
A2.02 Additional Services Not Requiring Owner’s Written Authorization 
 
A. Engineer shall advise Owner that Engineer is commencing to perform or 
furnish the Additional Services of the types listed below.  For such Additional 
Services, Engineer need not request or obtain specific advance written 
authorization from Owner.  Engineer shall cease performing or furnishing such 
Additional Services upon receipt of written notice to cease from Owner. 

 
1. Services in connection with Work Change Directives and Change Orders 
to reflect changes requested by Owner. 
 
2. Services in making revisions to Drawings and Specifications occasioned 
by the acceptance of substitute materials or equipment other than “or equal” 
items; services after the award of the Construction Contract in evaluating and 
determining the acceptability of a proposed "or equal" or substitution which is 
found to be inappropriate for the Project; evaluation and determination of an 
excessive number of proposed "or equals" or substitutions, whether proposed 
before or after award of the Construction Contract. 

 
3. Services resulting from significant delays, changes, or price increases 
occurring as a direct or indirect result of materials, equipment, or energy 
shortages. 

 
4. Additional or extended services arising from (a) the presence at the Site of 
any Constituent of Concern or items of historical or cultural significance, (b) 
emergencies or acts of God endangering the Work, (c) damage to the Work by 
fire or other causes during construction, (d) a significant amount of defective, 
neglected, or delayed Work, (e) acceleration of the progress schedule involving 
services beyond normal working hours, or (f) default by Contractor. 

 
5. Services (other than Basic Services during the Post-Construction Phase) 
in connection with any partial utilization of the Work by Owner prior to Substantial 
Completion. 

 
6. Evaluating unreasonable or frivolous requests for interpretation or 
information (RFIs), Change Proposals, or other demands from Contractor or 
others in connection with the Work, or an excessive number of RFIs, Change 
Proposals, or demands. 

 
7. Reviewing a Shop Drawing or other Contractor submittal more than three 
times, as a result of repeated inadequate submissions by Contractor. 

 
8. While at the Site, compliance by Engineer and its staff with those terms of 
Owner's or Contractor's safety program provided to Engineer subsequent to the 
Effective Date that exceed those normally required of engineering personnel by 
federal, State, or local safety authorities for similar construction sites. 
 



Exhibit B - Page 1 of 1 

 

EXHIBIT B – OWNER’S RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

This is Exhibit B, referred to in and part of the Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services 

 
 
Article 2 of the Agreement is supplemented to include the following agreement of 
the parties.   
 
B2.01 In addition to other responsibilities of Owner as set forth in this Agreement, 
Owner shall at its expense: 
 
A. Provide Engineer with all criteria and full information as to Owner’s 
requirements for the Project, including design objectives and constraints, space, 
capacity and performance requirements, flexibility, and expandability, and any 
budgetary limitations.  
 
B. Give instructions to Engineer regarding Owner’s procurement of 
construction services (including instructions regarding advertisements for bids, 
instructions to bidders, and requests for proposals, as applicable), Owner’s 
construction contract practices and requirements, insurance and bonding 
requirements, electronic transmittals during construction, and other information 
necessary for the finalization of Owner’s bidding-related documents (or requests 
for proposals or other construction procurement documents), and Construction 
Contract Documents.  Furnish copies (or give specific directions requesting 
Engineer to use copies already in Engineer’s possession) of all design and 
construction standards, Owner’s standard forms, general conditions (if other than 
EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract, 2013 
Edition), supplementary conditions, text, and related documents and content for 
Engineer to include in the draft bidding-related documents (or requests for 
proposals or other construction procurement documents), and draft Construction 
Contract Documents, when applicable.  Owner shall have responsibility for the 
final content of (1) such bidding-related documents (or requests for proposals or 
other construction procurement documents), and (2) those portions of any 
Construction Contract other than the design (as set forth in the Drawings, 
Specifications, or otherwise), and other engineering or technical matters; and 
Owner shall seek the advice of Owner’s legal counsel, risk managers, and 
insurance advisors with respect to the drafting and content of such documents. 
 
C. Furnish to Engineer any other available information pertinent to the Project 
including reports and data relative to previous designs, construction, or 
investigation at or adjacent to the Site. 
 
D. Following Engineer’s assessment of initially-available Project information 
and data and upon Engineer’s request, obtain, furnish, or otherwise make 
available (if necessary through title searches, or retention of specialists or 
consultants) such additional Project-related information and data as is reasonably 
required to enable Engineer to complete its Basic and Additional Services.  Such 
additional information or data would generally include the following: 
 
1. Property descriptions. 
 
2. Zoning, deed, and other land use restrictions. 
 
3. Utility and topographic mapping and surveys. 
 
4. Property, boundary, easement, right-of-way, and other special surveys or 
data, including establishing relevant reference points. 
 
5. Explorations and tests of subsurface conditions at or adjacent to the Site; 
geotechnical reports and investigations; drawings of physical conditions relating 
to existing surface or subsurface structures at the Site; hydrographic surveys, 
laboratory tests and inspections of samples, materials, and equipment; with 
appropriate professional interpretation of such information or data.  
 
6. Environmental assessments, audits, investigations, and impact 
statements, and other relevant environmental, historical, or cultural studies 
relevant to the Project, the Site, and adjacent areas. 
 
7. Data or consultations as required for the Project but not otherwise 
identified in this Agreement. 
 
E. Arrange for safe access to and make all provisions for Engineer to enter 
upon public and private property as required for Engineer to perform services 
under the Agreement. 
 
F. Recognizing and acknowledging that Engineer's services and expertise do 
not include the following services, provide, as required for the Project: 
 
1. Accounting, bond and financial advisory (including, if applicable, “municipal 
advisor” services as described in Section 975 of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street 
Reform and Consumer Protection Act (2010) and the municipal advisor 

registration rules issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission), 
independent cost estimating, and insurance counseling services. 
 
2. Legal services with regard to issues pertaining to the Project as Owner 
requires, Contractor raises, or Engineer reasonably requests. 
 
3. Such auditing services as Owner requires to ascertain how or for what 
purpose Contractor has used the money paid. 
 
G. Provide the services of an independent testing laboratory to perform all 
inspections, tests, and approvals of samples, materials, and equipment required 
by the Construction Contract Documents (other than those required to be 
furnished or arranged by Contractor), or to evaluate the performance of materials, 
equipment, and facilities of Owner, prior to their incorporation into the Work with 
appropriate professional interpretation thereof. Provide Engineer with the findings 
and reports generated by testing laboratories, including findings and reports 
obtained from or through Contractor. 
 
H. Provide reviews, approvals, and permits from all governmental authorities 
having jurisdiction to approve all phases of the Project designed or specified by 
Engineer and such reviews, approvals, and consents from others as may be 
necessary for completion of each phase of the Project. 
 
I. Advise Engineer of the identity and scope of services of any independent 
consultants employed by Owner to perform or furnish services in regard to the 
Project, including, but not limited to, cost estimating, project peer review, value 
engineering, and constructibility review. 
 
J. If Owner designates a construction manager or an individual or entity other 
than, or in addition to, Engineer to represent Owner at the Site, define and set 
forth as an attachment to this Exhibit B the duties, responsibilities, and limitations 
of authority of such other party and the relation thereof to the duties, 
responsibilities, and authority of Engineer. 
 
K. If more than one prime contract is to be awarded for the Work designed or 
specified by Engineer, then designate a person or entity to have authority and 
responsibility for coordinating the activities among the various prime Contractors, 
and define and set forth the duties, responsibilities, and limitations of authority of 
such individual or entity and the relation thereof to the duties, responsibilities, and 
authority of Engineer as an attachment to this Exhibit B that is to be mutually 
agreed upon and made a part of this Agreement before such services begin. 
 
L. Inform Engineer in writing of any specific requirements of safety or security 
programs that are applicable to Engineer, as a visitor to the Site. 
 
M. Examine all alternative solutions, studies, reports, sketches, Drawings, 
Specifications, proposals, and other documents presented by Engineer (including 
obtaining advice of an attorney, risk manager, insurance counselor, 
financial/municipal advisor, and other advisors or consultants as Owner deems 
appropriate with respect to such examination) and render in writing timely 
decisions pertaining thereto. 
 
N. Inform Engineer regarding any need for assistance in evaluating the 
possible use of Project Strategies, Technologies, and Techniques, as defined in 
Exhibit A. 
 
O. Advise Engineer as to whether Engineer’s assistance is requested in 
identifying opportunities for enhancing the sustainability of the Project. 
 
P. Furnish to Engineer data as to Owner’s anticipated costs for services to be 
provided by others (including, but not limited to, accounting, bond and financial, 
independent cost estimating, insurance counseling, and legal advice) for Owner 
so that Engineer may assist Owner in collating the various cost categories which 
comprise Total Project Costs. 
 
Q. Attend and participate in the pre-bid conference, bid opening, pre-
construction conferences, construction progress and other job related meetings, 
and Site visits to determine Substantial Completion and readiness of the 
completed Work for final payment.   
 
R. Authorize Engineer to provide Additional Services as set forth in Part 2 of 
Exhibit A of the Agreement, as required. 
 
S. Perform or provide the following: [  N/A  ] 
 



Exhibit C - Page 1 of 4 

 

EXHIBIT C – PAYMENTS TO ENGINEER FOR SERVICES AND REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES 
 

This is Exhibit C, referred to in and part of the Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services 

 
 
Article 2 of the Agreement is supplemented to include the following agreement of 
the parties.   
 
C2.01  Compensation For Basic Services– Lump Sum Method of Payment 
 
A. Owner shall pay Engineer for Basic Services set forth in Exhibit A, as follows: 

1. A lump sum fee of $348,000.00 based on the following estimated distribution 
of compensation: 

a. Surveying (A1.01)  $30,000.00 

b. 28th Street Improvements (A1.02)                                 $107,000.00 

c. Gravity Sewer Main Improvements (A.1.03)                         $39,000.00 

d. Bidding (A1.04)                                      $7,000.00 

e. Engineering During Construction (A1.05) $100,000.00 

f. Construction Observation (A1.06) $45,000.00 

g. Construction Testing (A1.07) $20,000.00 

2. Engineer may alter the distribution of compensation between individual 
phases of the work noted herein to be consistent with services actually 
rendered, but shall not exceed the total estimated compensation amount 
unless approved in writing by Owner. See also C2.03.C.2 below. 

3. The total estimated compensation for Engineer’s services included in the 
breakdown by phases as noted in Paragraph C2.01.A.1 incorporates all labor 
costs, overhead, and profit.  Reimbursable Expenses will be billed as outlined 
in Paragraph C2.02 below.   

4. Engineer’s Reimbursable Expenses Schedule and Standard Hourly Rates 
are attached to this Exhibit C as Appendices 1 and 2. 

5. The Standard Hourly Rates and Reimbursable Expenses Schedule will be 
adjusted annually (as of January 1 of each calendar year) to reflect equitable 
changes in the compensation payable to Engineer. 

C2.02 Compensation For Reimbursable Expenses 
 
A. Owner shall pay Engineer for all Reimbursable Expenses at the rates set 

forth in Appendix 1 to this Exhibit C. 

B. Reimbursable Expenses include the expenses identified in Appendix 1 and 
the following:  transportation (including mileage), lodging, and subsistence 
incidental thereto; providing and maintaining field office facilities including 
furnishings and utilities; toll telephone calls, mobile phone charges, and 
courier charges; reproduction of reports, Drawings, Specifications, bidding-
related or other procurement documents, Construction Contract Documents, 
and similar Project-related items; and Consultants’ charges.  In addition, if 
authorized in advance by Owner, Reimbursable Expenses will also include 
expenses incurred for the use of highly specialized equipment. 

C. The amounts payable to Engineer for Reimbursable Expenses will be the 
Project-related internal expenses actually incurred or allocated by Engineer, 
plus all invoiced external Reimbursable Expenses allocable to the Project. 

C2.03 Other Provisions Concerning Payment 
 
A. Whenever Engineer is entitled to compensation for the charges of Engineer’s 

Consultants, those charges shall be the amounts billed by Engineer’s 
Consultants to Engineer. 

B. Factors:  The external Reimbursable Expenses and Engineer’s Consultants' 
factors include Engineer’s overhead and profit associated with Engineer’s 
responsibility for the administration of such services and costs. 

C. Estimated Compensation Amounts: 

1. Engineer’s estimate of the amounts that will become payable for specified 
services are only estimates for planning purposes, are not binding on the 
parties, and are not the minimum or maximum amounts payable to Engineer 
under the Agreement.   

2. When estimated compensation amounts have been stated herein and it 
subsequently becomes apparent to Engineer that the total compensation 
amount thus estimated will be exceeded, Engineer shall give Owner written 
notice thereof, allowing Owner to consider its options, including suspension 
or termination of Engineer's services for Owner's convenience.  Upon notice, 
Owner and Engineer promptly shall review the matter of services remaining 
to be performed and compensation for such services.  Owner shall either 
exercise its right to suspend or terminate Engineer's services for Owner's 
convenience, agree to such compensation exceeding said estimated amount, 
or agree to a reduction in the remaining services to be rendered by Engineer, 
so that total compensation for such services will not exceed said estimated 
amount when such services are completed.  If Owner decides not to suspend 
the Engineer's services during the negotiations and Engineer exceeds the 
estimated amount before Owner and Engineer have agreed to an increase in 
the compensation due Engineer or a reduction in the remaining services, 
then Engineer shall be paid for all services rendered hereunder. 

D. To the extent necessary to verify Engineer’s charges and upon Owner’s 
timely request, Engineer shall make copies of such records available to 
Owner at cost. 

C2.04 Compensation for Additional Services – Standard Hourly Rates 
Method of Payment 

A. Owner shall pay Engineer for Additional Services, if any, as follows: 

1. General:  For services of Engineer’s personnel engaged directly on the 
Project pursuant to Paragraph A2.01 or A2.02 of Exhibit A, except for 
services as a consultant or witness under Paragraph A2.01.A.20, (which if 
needed shall be separately negotiated based on the nature of the required 
consultation or testimony) an amount equal to the cumulative hours charged 
to the Project by each class of Engineer’s personnel times Standard Hourly 
Rates for each applicable billing class for all Additional Services performed 
on the Project, plus related Reimbursable Expenses and Engineer’s 
Consultant’s charges, if any. 

B. Compensation For Reimbursable Expenses: 

1. For those Reimbursable Expenses that are not accounted for in the 
compensation for Basic Services under Paragraph C2.01 and are directly 
related to the provision of Additional Services, Owner shall pay Engineer at 
the rates set forth in Appendix 1 to this Exhibit C. 

2. Reimbursable Expenses include the expenses identified in Appendix 1 and 
the following categories:  transportation (including mileage), lodging, and 
subsistence incidental thereto; providing and maintaining field office facilities 
including furnishings and utilities; toll telephone calls, mobile phone charges, 
and courier charges; reproduction of reports, Drawings, Specifications, 
bidding-related or other procurement documents, Construction Contract 
Documents, and similar Project-related items; and Consultants’ charges. In 
addition, if authorized in advance by Owner, Reimbursable Expenses will 
also include expenses incurred for the use of highly specialized equipment. 

3. The amounts payable to Engineer for Reimbursable Expenses, if any, will be 
the Additional Services-related internal expenses actually incurred or 
allocated by Engineer, plus all invoiced external Reimbursable Expenses 
allocable to such Additional Services. 

4. The Reimbursable Expenses Schedule will be adjusted annually (as of [            
]) to reflect equitable changes in the compensation payable to Engineer.   

C. Other Provisions Concerning Payment for Additional Services: 

1. Whenever Engineer is entitled to compensation for the charges of Engineer’s 
Consultants, those charges shall be the amounts billed by Engineer’s 
Consultants to Engineer. 



Exhibit C - Page 2 of 4 

 

2. Factors:  The external Reimbursable Expenses and Engineer’s Consultant’s 
Factors include Engineer’s overhead and profit associated with Engineer’s 
responsibility for the administration of such services and costs. 

3. To the extent necessary to verify Engineer’s charges and upon Owner’s 
timely request, Engineer shall make copies of such records available to 
Owner at cost. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

  



Exhibit C - Page 3 of 4 

 

APPENDIX 1 TO EXHIBIT C 
 

This is Appendix 1 to Exhibit C, referred to in and part of the Agreement between Owner and Engineer for 
Professional Services 
 
Reimbursable Expenses Schedule 

 
Reimbursable Expenses are subject to review and adjustment per Exhibit C.  Rates and charges for Reimbursable 
Expenses as of the date of the Agreement are:  
 
 
 
Item  Rate  
Mileage  IRS Rate 
Lodging  Actual Cost 
Special Postage or Shipping  Actual Cost 
Printing  Actual Cost 
Surveying Materials  Actual Cost 
Subcontract Specialty Services  Actual Cost 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Exhibit C - Page 4 of 4 

 

APPENDIX 2 TO EXHIBIT C 
 

This is Appendix 2 to Exhibit C, referred to in and part of the Agreement between Owner and Engineer for 
Professional Services 
 
Standard Hourly Rates Schedule 

 
A. Standard Hourly Rates: 

Standard Hourly Rates are set forth in this Appendix 2 to this Exhibit C and include salaries and wages paid to 
personnel in each billing class plus the cost of customary and statutory benefits, general and 
administrative overhead, non-project operating costs, and operating margin or profit. 

The Standard Hourly Rates apply only as specified in Article C2. 

Schedule: 

 Hourly rates for services performed on or after the date of the Agreement are: 
 

 
Principal $158.50 
Engineer PE-3 $136.50  
Engineer PE-2 $125.50  
Engineer PE-1 $114.50  
Engineer 3 $115.00 
Engineer 2 $109.00 
Engineer 1 $93.50 
CAD Technician-3 $98.00 
CAD Technician-2 $87.50 
CAD Technician-1 $76.00 
Certified Floodplain Manager $136.50 
Professional Land Surveyor $115.00 
Two-Man Survey Crew $149.50 
One-Man Survey Crew $131.00 
Survey Technician $98.50 
GIS Technician-3 $93.00 
GIS Technician-2 $82.00 
GIS Technician-1 $71.00 
Construction Review-2 $82.50 
Construction Review-1 $64.50 
R-O-W Specialist $109.00 
Clerical $54.50 

 



Exhibit D - Page 1 of 2 

 

EXHIBIT D – DUTIES, RESPONSIBILITIES, AND LIMITATIONS OF AUTHORITY  
OF RESIDENT PROJECT REPRESENTATIVE 

 

This is Exhibit D, referred to in and part of the Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services 

 
 
Article 1 of the Agreement is supplemented to include the following agreement of 
the parties.   

ARTICLE 1 - SERVICES OF ENGINEER 

D1.01 Resident Project Representative 
 
A. Engineer shall furnish a Resident Project Representative (“RPR”) to assist 

Engineer in observing progress and quality of the Work.  The RPR shall 
provide intermittent observation at the assumed rate of one day every other 
week. RPR is Engineer’s representative at the Site, will act as directed by 
and under the supervision of Engineer, and will confer with Engineer 
regarding RPR’s actions. 

B. Through RPR's observations of the Work, including field checks of materials 
and installed equipment, Engineer shall endeavor to provide further 
protection for Owner against defects and deficiencies in the Work.  
However, Engineer shall not, as a result of such RPR observations of the 
Work, supervise, direct, or have control over the Work, nor shall Engineer 
(including the RPR) have authority over or responsibility for the means, 
methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction selected or 
used by any Constructor, for security or safety at the Site, for safety 
precautions and programs incident to the Work or any Constructor’s work in 
progress, for the coordination of the Constructors’ work or schedules, or for 
any failure of any Constructor to comply with Laws and Regulations 
applicable to the performing and furnishing of its work.  The Engineer 
(including RPR) neither guarantees the performances of any Constructor 
nor assumes responsibility for any Constructor’s failure to furnish and 
perform the Work, or any portion of the Work, in accordance with the 
Construction Contract Documents.  In addition, the specific terms set forth 
in Exhibit A, Paragraph A1.05, of this Agreement are applicable. 

C. The duties and responsibilities of the RPR are as follows: 

1. General:  RPR’s dealings in matters pertaining to the Work in general shall 
be with Engineer and Contractor.  RPR’s dealings with Subcontractors shall 
only be through or with the full knowledge and approval of Contractor.  RPR 
shall generally communicate with Owner only with the knowledge of and 
under the direction of Engineer. 

2. Schedules:  Review the progress schedule, schedule of Shop Drawing and 
Sample submittals, schedule of values, and other schedules prepared by 
Contractor and consult with Engineer concerning acceptability of such 
schedules. 

3. Conferences and Meetings:  Attend meetings with Contractor, such as 
preconstruction conferences, progress meetings, job conferences, and 
other Project-related meetings (but not including Contractor’s safety 
meetings), and as appropriate prepare and circulate copies of minutes 
thereof. 

4. Safety Compliance:  Comply with Site safety programs, as they apply to 
RPR, and if required to do so by such safety programs, receive safety 
training specifically related to RPR’s own personal safety while at the Site. 

5. Liaison: 

a. Serve as Engineer’s liaison with Contractor.  Working principally through 
Contractor’s authorized representative or designee, assist in providing 
information regarding the provisions and intent of the Construction Contract 
Documents. 

b. Assist Engineer in serving as Owner’s liaison with Contractor when 
Contractor’s operations affect Owner’s on-Site operations. 

c. Assist in obtaining from Owner additional details or information, when 
required for proper execution of the Work. 

6. Clarifications and Interpretations:  Receive from Contractor submittal of any 
matters in question concerning the requirements of the Construction 

Contract Documents (sometimes referred to as requests for information or 
interpretation—RFIs), or relating to the acceptability of the Work under the 
Construction Contract Documents. Report to Engineer regarding such RFIs. 
Report to Engineer when clarifications and interpretations of the 
Construction Contract Documents are needed, whether as the result of a 
Contractor RFI or otherwise. Transmit Engineer’s clarifications, 
interpretations, and decisions to Contractor.  

7. Shop Drawings and Samples: 

a. Record date of receipt of Samples and Contractor-approved Shop 
Drawings.   

b. Receive Samples that are furnished at the Site by Contractor, and notify 
Engineer of availability of Samples for examination. 

c. Advise Engineer and Contractor of the commencement of any portion of the 
Work requiring a Shop Drawing or Sample submittal, if RPR believes that 
the submittal has not been received from Contractor, or has not been 
approved by Contractor or Engineer. 

8. Proposed Modifications:  Consider and evaluate Contractor’s suggestions 
for modifications to the Drawings or Specifications, and report such 
suggestions, together with RPR’s recommendations, if any, to Engineer.  
Transmit Engineer’s response (if any) to such suggestions to Contractor.  

9. Review of Work; Defective Work: 

a. Report to Engineer whenever RPR believes that any part of the Work is 
defective under the terms and standards set forth in the Construction 
Contract Documents, and provide recommendations as to whether such 
Work should be corrected, removed and replaced, or accepted as provided 
in the Construction Contract Documents.  

b. Inform Engineer of any Work that RPR believes is not defective under the 
terms and standards set forth in the Construction Contract Documents, but 
is nonetheless not compatible with the design concept of the completed 
Project as a functioning whole, and provide recommendations to Engineer 
for addressing such Work. ; and  

c. Advise Engineer of that part of the Work that RPR believes should be 
uncovered for observation, or requires special testing, inspection, or 
approval. 

10. Inspections, Tests, and System Start-ups: 

a. Consult with Engineer in advance of scheduled inspections, tests, and 
systems start-ups. 

b. Verify that tests, equipment, and systems start-ups and operating and 
maintenance training are conducted in the presence of appropriate Owner’s 
personnel, and that Contractor maintains adequate records thereof. 

c. Observe, record, and report to Engineer appropriate details relative to the 
test procedures and systems start-ups.  

d. Observe whether Contractor has arranged for inspections required by Laws 
and Regulations, including but not limited to those to be performed by public 
or other agencies having jurisdiction over the Work. 

e. Accompany visiting inspectors representing public or other agencies having 
jurisdiction over the Work, record the results of these inspections, and 
report to Engineer. 

11. Records: 

a. Maintain at the Site orderly files for correspondence, reports of job 
conferences, copies of Construction Contract Documents including all 



Exhibit D - Page 2 of 2 

 

Change Orders, Field Orders, Work Change Directives, Addenda, 
additional Drawings issued subsequent to the execution of the Construction 
Contract, RFIs, Engineer’s clarifications and interpretations of the 
Construction Contract Documents, progress reports, approved Shop 
Drawing and Sample submittals, and other Project-related documents. 

b. Prepare a daily report or keep a diary or log book, recording Contractor’s 
hours on the Site, Subcontractors present at the Site, weather conditions, 
data relative to questions of Change Orders, Field Orders, Work Change 
Directives, or changed conditions, Site visitors, deliveries of equipment or 
materials, daily activities, decisions, observations in general, and specific 
observations in more detail as in the case of observing test procedures; and 
send copies to Engineer. 

c. Upon request from Owner to Engineer, photograph or video Work in 
progress or Site conditions. 

d. Record and maintain accurate, up-to-date lists of the names, addresses, fax 
numbers, e-mail addresses, websites, and telephone numbers (including 
mobile numbers) of all Contractors, Subcontractors, and major Suppliers of 
materials and equipment. 

e. Maintain records for use in preparing Project documentation. 

f. Upon completion of the Work, furnish original set of all RPR Project 
documentation to Engineer. 

12. Reports: 

a. Furnish to Engineer periodic reports as required of progress of the Work 
and of Contractor’s compliance with the progress schedule and schedule of 
Shop Drawing and Sample submittals. 

b. Draft and recommend to Engineer proposed Change Orders, Work Change 
Directives, and Field Orders.  Obtain backup material from Contractor. 

c. Furnish to Engineer and Owner copies of all inspection, test, and system 
start-up reports. 

d. Immediately inform Engineer of the occurrence of any Site accidents, 
emergencies, acts of God endangering the Work, possible force majeure or 
delay events, damage to property by fire or other causes, or the discovery 
of any potential differing site condition or Constituent of Concern.  

13. Payment Requests:  Review applications for payment with Contractor for 
compliance with the established procedure for their submission and forward 
with recommendations to Engineer, noting particularly the relationship of the 
payment requested to the schedule of values, Work completed, and 
materials and equipment delivered at the Site but not incorporated in the 
Work. 

14. Certificates, Operation and Maintenance Manuals:  During the course of the 
Work, verify that materials and equipment certificates, operation and 
maintenance manuals and other data required by the Contract Documents 
to be assembled and furnished by Contractor are applicable to the items 
actually installed and in accordance with the Contract Documents, and have 
these documents delivered to Engineer for review and forwarding to Owner 
prior to payment for that part of  the Work. 

15. Completion: 

a. Participate in Engineer’s visits to the Site regarding Substantial Completion, 
assist in the determination of Substantial Completion, and prior to the 
issuance of a Certificate of Substantial Completion submit a punch list of 
observed items requiring completion or correction.   

b. Participate in Engineer’s visit to the Site in the company of Owner and 
Contractor, to determine completion of the Work, and prepare a final punch 
list of items to be completed or corrected by Contractor. 

c. Observe whether all items on the final punch list have been completed or 
corrected, and make recommendations to Engineer concerning acceptance 
and issuance of the Notice of Acceptability of the Work (Exhibit E). 

D. Resident Project Representative shall not: 

1. Authorize any deviation from the Construction Contract Documents or 
substitution of materials or equipment (including “or-equal” items). 

2. Exceed limitations of Engineer’s authority as set forth in this Agreement. 

3. Undertake any of the responsibilities of Contractor, Subcontractors, or 
Suppliers, or any Constructor. 

4. Advise on, issue directions relative to, or assume control over any aspect of 
the means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures of the Work, by 
Contractor or any other Constructor.  

5. Advise on, issue directions regarding, or assume control over security or 
safety practices, precautions, and programs in connection with the activities 
or operations of Owner or Contractor. 

6. Participate in specialized field or laboratory tests or inspections conducted 
off-site by others except as specifically authorized by Engineer. 

7. Accept Shop Drawing or Sample submittals from anyone other than 
Contractor. 

8. Authorize Owner to occupy the Project in whole or in part. 

 



Exhibit E - Page 1 of 1 

 

EXHIBIT E – NOTICE OF ACCEPTABILITY OF WORK 
 

This is Exhibit E, referred to in and part of the Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services 

 
 

PROJECT:  
 
OWNER: 
 
CONTRACTOR: 
 
OWNER’S CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT IDENTIFICATION: 
 
EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT:  
 
ENGINEER: 
 
NOTICE DATE: 

 
To:          
  Owner  
 
And  To:        
  Contractor 
 
From:           
  Engineer 
 
The Engineer hereby gives notice to the above Owner and Contractor that Engineer has recommended final payment of 
Contractor, and that the Work furnished and performed by Contractor under the above Construction Contract is acceptable, 
expressly subject to the provisions of the related Contract Documents, the Agreement between Owner and Engineer for 
Professional Services dated ______, and the following terms and conditions of this Notice: 

 
CONDITIONS OF NOTICE OF ACCEPTABILITY OF WORK 

 
The Notice of Acceptability of Work (“Notice”) is expressly made subject to the following terms and conditions to which all 
those who receive said Notice and rely thereon agree: 
 
1. This Notice is given with the skill and care ordinarily used by members of the engineering profession practicing under 

similar conditions at the same time and in the same locality. 
2. This Notice reflects and is an expression of the Engineer’s professional opinion. 
3. This Notice is given as to the best of Engineer’s knowledge, information, and belief as of the Notice Date.  
4. This Notice is based entirely on and expressly limited by the scope of services Engineer has been employed by Owner 

to perform or furnish during construction of the Project (including observation of the Contractor’s work) under Engineer’s 
Agreement with Owner, and applies only to facts that are within Engineer’s knowledge or could reasonably have been 
ascertained by Engineer as a result of carrying out the responsibilities specifically assigned to Engineer under such 
Agreement. 

5. This Notice is not a guarantee or warranty of Contractor’s performance under the Construction Contract, an acceptance 
of Work that is not in accordance with the related Contract Documents, including but not limited to defective Work 
discovered after final inspection, nor an assumption of responsibility for any failure of Contractor to furnish and perform 
the Work thereunder in accordance with the Construction Contract Documents, or to otherwise comply with the 
Construction Contract Documents or the terms of any special guarantees specified therein. 

6. This Notice does not relieve Contractor of any surviving obligations under the Construction Contract, and is subject to 
Owner’s reservations of rights with respect to completion and final payment. 
 

 
By (Signature):        Date:      
 
Name & Title:        
 



Exhibit F - Page 1 of 1 

 

EXHIBIT F – CONSTRUCTION COST LIMIT 
 

This is Exhibit F, referred to in and part of the Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services 

 
 

Paragraph 5.02 of the Agreement is supplemented to include the following agreement of the parties: 
 
F5.02 Construction Cost Limit 

 

A. Owner and Engineer hereby agree to a Construction Cost limit in the amount of $2,800,000. 
 

B. The Construction Cost limit shall include off-site infrastructure improvements along 28th Street (except fiber 
infrastructure improvements) and along the drainage way though and northwest of the site for gravity sanitary 
sewer main installation, including professional fees (survey, design, construction services including material 
testing) and the cost of any easements.   

 
C. As per the 28E Agreement for Developmental Services entered into between the City of Sioux City, Iowa (City) 

and Woodbury County, Iowa, dated June 8, 2020, the Construction Cost limit shall not be exceeded unless 
mutually agreed upon by the both the City and County. 

 
D. Engineer will be permitted to determine what types and quality of materials, equipment and component systems 

are to be included in the Drawings and Specifications.  Engineer may make reasonable adjustments in the scope, 
extent, and character of the Project to the extent consistent with the Project requirements and sound engineering 
practices, to bring the Project within the Construction Cost limit 

 
E. If the Bidding or Negotiating Phase has not commenced within three months after completion of the Final Design, 

or if industry-wide prices are changed because of unusual or unanticipated events affecting the general level of 
prices or times of delivery in the construction industry, the established Construction Cost limit will not be binding 
on Engineer.  In such cases, Owner shall consent to an adjustment in the Construction Cost limit commensurate 
with any applicable change in the general level of prices in the construction industry between the date of 
completion of the Final Design and the date on which proposals or Bids are sought. 

 
F. If the lowest bona fide proposal or Bid exceeds the established Construction Cost limit, Owner shall (1) give 

written approval to increase such Construction Cost limit, or (2) authorize negotiating or rebidding the Project 
within a reasonable time, or (3) cooperate in revising the Project's scope, extent, or character to the extent 
consistent with the Project’s requirements and with sound engineering practices.  In the case of (3), Engineer 
shall modify the Contract Documents as necessary to bring the Construction Cost within the Construction Cost 
Limit.  Owner shall pay Engineer’s cost to provide such modification services, including the costs of the services 
of its Consultants, all overhead expenses reasonably related thereto, and Reimbursable Expenses, but without 
profit to Engineer on account of such services.  The providing of such services will be the limit of Engineer’s 
responsibility in this regard and, having done so, Engineer shall be entitled to payment for services and expenses 
in accordance with this Agreement and will not otherwise be liable for damages attributable to the lowest bona 
fide proposal or bid exceeding the established Construction Cost limit. 
 



Exhibit G - Page 1 of 1 

 

EXHIBIT G – INSURANCE 
 

This is Exhibit G, referred to in and part of the Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services 

 
 

Paragraph 6.05 of the Agreement is supplemented to include the following agreement of the parties: 
 
G6.05 Insurance 

 
A. The limits of liability for the insurance required by Paragraph 6.05.A and 6.05.B of the Agreement are as 

follows: 

By Engineer: 

Workers’ Compensation:  Statutory  

Employer’s Liability -- 

Bodily injury, each accident: $1,000,000.00 
Bodily injury by disease, each employee: $1,000,000.00 
Bodily injury/disease, aggregate: $1,000,000.00 

 
General Liability -- 

Each Occurrence (Bodily Injury/Property Damage): $1,000,000.00 
General Aggregate: $2,000,000.00 

 
Excess or Umbrella Liability --   

Per Occurrence: $2,000,000.00 
General Aggregate: $2,000,000.00 
 

Automobile Liability --Combined Single Limit (Bodily Injury and Property Damage): 

 $1,000,000.00 
 

Professional Liability – 

Each Claim Made $2,000,000.00 
Annual Aggregate $4,000,000.00 

 
Additional Insureds: 

The Owner shall be listed on Engineer’s general liability policy as provided in Paragraph 6.05.A. 

 



Exhibit K - Page 1 of 1 

 

EXHIBIT K – AMENDMENT TO OWNER-ENGINEER AGREEMENT 
 

This is Exhibit K, referred to in and part of the Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services 

 
 

Amendment No. _____ 
 

The Effective Date of this Amendment is: ______. 
 

Background Data  
  
 Effective Date of Owner-Engineer Agreement:  
 
 Owner: 
 
 Engineer: 
 
 Project: 
   
Nature of Amendment: [Check those that are applicable and delete those that are inapplicable.] 
 

____ Additional Services to be performed by Engineer 

____ Modifications to services of Engineer 

____ Modifications to responsibilities of Owner 

____ Modifications of payment to Engineer 

____ Modifications to time(s) for rendering services 

____ Modifications to other terms and conditions of the Agreement 

Description of Modifications: Here describe the modifications, in as much specificity and detail as needed.   
 
Agreement Summary: 
 
     Original agreement amount:   $_____________ 
     Net change for prior amendments:  $_____________ 
     This amendment amount:   $_____________ 
     Adjusted Agreement amount:              $_____________ 
 
     Change in time for services (days or date, as applicable): ______ 
 

The foregoing Agreement Summary is for reference only and does not alter the terms of the Agreement, including those set 
forth in Exhibit C. 
 
Owner and Engineer hereby agree to modify the above-referenced Agreement as set forth in this Amendment.  All provisions 
of the Agreement not modified by this or previous Amendments remain in effect.   
 
OWNER:  ENGINEER: 
 
 

  

 
By: 

 
 

 
By: 

 
 

Print 
name: 

  Print 
name: 

 

 
Title: 

 
 

  
Title: 

 
 

 
Date Signed: 

 
 

  
Date Signed: 

 
 

 



28E AGREEMENT FOR DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES 

This Agreement is made this -3.!! day of June , 2020 by and between the City of 
Sioux City, Iowa, a municipal corporation organized and existing pursuant to the laws of the 
State of Iowa ("City") and Woodbury County, State of Iowa ("County"). 

WHEREAS, City and County have agreed to work together in the spirit of cooperation in 
developing each other's interests in meeting the greater public good; 

WHEREAS, County desires assistance in the development of real estate located in the 
vicinity of 3701 28th Street, Sioux City, Woodbury County, Iowa for the proposed Woodbury 
County Jail Site Improvements Project ("Project") - See attached Exhibit A; 

WHEREAS, City desires to facilitate such development, including offsite infrastructure 
improvements. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

A. COUNTY SHALL 

1. Select and hire an engineering firm to provide survey, design, bidding, 
engineering, and construction services, including administration, observation, 
Sections 2, 3 and 4 herein, and material testing and staking regarding the 
construction of the infrastructure improvements for the Project. The selected 
engineering firm shall be responsible for developing a project scope and design 
for off-site improvements and infrastructure within a total project budget that shall 
not exceed $2,800,000 unless mutually agreed upon by both City and County. 
The maximum $2,800,000 City reimbursement shall cover off-site infrastructure 
improvements along 28th Street (except fiber infrastructure improvements) and 
along the drainage way through and northwest of the site for gravity sanitary 
sewer main installation, including professional fees (survey, design, construction 
services including material testing and cost of any easements). 

2. With regard to 281h Street from US Highway 75 North to Outer Drive 
(approximately 6,600 LF): 

a. If recommended by project traffic engineer, construct a maximum of four (4) 
turn lanes at various locations including, but not limited to, on 28th Street at 
Highway 75 North and Outer Drive, two (2) proposed driveways to 3701 28th 
Street (Jail site), and Outer Drive (westbound left turn lane onto 28th Street). 

b. If recommended by traffic engineer, make modifications to the existing traffic 
signal at Highway 75 North intersection if turn lanes are to be added. 

c. Grading, Paving (street and driveway approaches) and Erosion Control. 

i. West portion (approximately 3,100 LF) is currently paved (HMA/PCC 
section) as a two-lane roadway. It is a combination of a rural section 
(with ditches) and urban section (with curb and gutter). Width varies. 
Anticipate to mostly Use as Constructed (UAC) with potential for HMA 
mill/overlay due to condition issues. Exception is at the east end of 
existing paving (top of hill) that will need to be removed/replaced with 



the grade lowered to improve ride and sight distance to proposed jail 
driveways. 

ii. Middle gravel portion (approximately 2,800 LF) to be paved as a two
lane roadway (plus any recommended dedicated turn lanes to jail site). 
City requests to bid out PCC and HMA paving options. Each with 
granular subbase and subdrains. Rural or Urban typical section to be 
further reviewed with City and County. Pavement and typical section to 
be mutually agreed upon by City and County. 

iii. East portion (700 LF) is paved as a two-lane roadway however it is 
narrow around the curve (approximately 25 feet wide) and is expected 
to be impacted by the need to extend water main through this area (and 
potentially adding a turn lane) so this section is expected to be removed 
and replaced with a wider two-lane section (plus any recommended 
turn lanes for jail traffic). 

iv. No sidewalk is to be required as part of this project. 

v. No additional street lighting poles are to be required as part of this 
project, however luminaires on existing MEC poles will be added. 

vi. Erosion Control. All areas disturbed by construction that are not 
paved will be seeded and stabilized to keep sediment from 
moving offsite. 

d. Utility Improvements. 

i. Water main - Extend existing 8" water main (installed in 1960) from 
dead end at west edge of existing paving with a new water main, size 
to be determined by mutual City and County consent, and to connect 
to the existing 16" stub just west of Outer Drive. 

ii. Storm Sewer - There is an existing 72" RCP culvert under 28th Street 
at the low point. Review capacity and model hydrology to review if an 
additional culvert is needed to keep major storm event flows from 
topping the roadway. Any additional roadway culverts and/or extension 
of culverts into the site of 3701 28th Street to be City owned within a 
City easement, only if deemed necessary by the County's LEC Jail 
Project Engineer. 

iii. Fiber line - County reserves right to determine the fiber line route, 
provider, and shared access. 

iv. Gas and electric service to the site will be coordinated with 
MidAmerican Energy. 

3. With regard to Gravity Sanitary Sewer Main Improvements to the Project Site 
Location: 

a. Gravity Sanitary Sewer Main Improvements. Since the property at 3701 28th 
Street is located in the valley, gravity sanitary sewer will need to be provided 
from a lower point along Highway 75 North northwest of the site. There is an 
existing 1 O" sanitary sewer main along Highway 75 North that gravity flows 



south. The sanitary sewer main will run along the existing drainage way 
between properties of 3000 Highway 75 North; and 2900 and 2830 Hwy 75 
North and then across the City owned property of 3500 28th Street and the 
proposed jail site property at 3701 281h Street to ultimately a location on the 
south side of 28th Street across from the jail site. This sewer will then be 
available to serve the many acres of currently undeveloped property south of 
28th Street. The distance of new sanitary sewer main is approximately 4,700 
LF. Any new piping through the site of 3701 28th Street to be City owned within 
a City easement. 

b. Granular Access Roads along Gravity Sanitary Sewer Main Improvements. 
City and County to review if access roads are necessary along sewer main 
route for future maintenance. 

c. Erosion Control. All areas disturbed by construction that are not paved or 
gravel surfaced, will be seeded and stabilized to keep sediment from moving 
offsite 

4. With regard to City owned property located at 3500 28th Street (west of subject 
property at 3701 28th Street): 

a. Grading work, including borrowing or wasting of soil material, as well as 
temporary use, including staging or stockpiling of materials, of adjacent City 
owned property located at 3500 28th Street is allowed during construction of 
off-site and on-site (LEC jail project) improvements. Any disturbed areas are 
to be restored following construction to existing or better condition at County 
costs. 

5. Review and approve for compliance with City code, state law, and the contract 
documents all plans and specifications for the public improvements on the Project. 

6. Review and approve for compliance with City code, state law, and the contract 
documents construction of the infrastructure improvements when complete. 

7. Retain all rights to Civil documents for use on the LEC Jail Project and development. 

B. CITY SHALL 

1. Review and approve all plans and specifications for the public improvements on 
the Project. 

2. Review bids taken by County and provide staff concurrence in award for the 
public improvements on the Project. 

3. Review and approve construction of the infrastructure improvements when 
complete. 

4. Upon completion of the construction of the infrastructure improvements and 
City's and County's approval of same, City shall at all times thereafter own, 
operate, maintain, repair, and replace all off-site infrastructure improvements and 
all on-site infrastructure located within any easements granted to the City, with 
the exception of the fiber infrastructure. 



5. Convey by City Deed to the LEC Authority real estate land located at 3701 28th 
Street totaling approximately 38.27 acres for a sum of $900,000.00, funded by 
Issuance of Public Bonds. 

6. Acquire, within a timely manner, as to not delay the progress of the LEC jail 
project all necessary easements (permanent and temporary) from adjacent 
property owners including, but not limited to, utility installation of gravity sanitary 
sewer main. A clear and unobstructed access to the on-site LEC jail project is to 
be available at all times during the LEC jail project. 

7. Reimburse County for all off-site infrastructure improvements along 28th Street 
(except fiber infrastructure improvements) and along the drainage way through 
and northwest of the site for gravity sanitary sewer main installation, including 
professional fees (survey, design, construction services including material testing 
and cost of any easements) with a maximum reimbursement of $2,800,000. City 
staff will be responsible to contact property owners, negotiate cost of any 
easements and prepare legal agreements to be filed at the County Courthouse. 

8. Invoices will be submitted and paid as expenses are incurred. Payment of 
reimbursement shall be made by City to County within thirty (30) days of an 
invoice submitted by County in accordance with the terms and conditions of the 
Agreement and with City's customary billing procedures. 

C. OTHER PROVISIONS 

1. No separate administrative entity or organization shall be created by this 
Agreement. 

2. This Agreement is entered into pursuant to the authority of Chapter 28E of the 
2019 Code of Iowa, as amended. 

3. This Agreement shall be administered jointly by a representative appointed by 
the City Council and a representative appointed by the County. 

4. The purpose of this Agreement is to achieve the goals and objectives set forth in 
the preamble hereof. 

5. This Agreement shall terminate on the happening of either the determination that 
all of the transactions contemplated have been completed or by delivery of a 
thirty (30) day written notice of termination by either party to the other (in which 
case termination shall be effective automatically upon the expiration of the thirty 
(30) day period). Payment obligations for work completed or under contract at 
the time of termination shall survive termination of the Agreement. 

6. Time is of the essence in this Agreement. 

7. County shall transfer the Contractor's warranty and its rights under any 
maintenance bonds for all City improvements located within public right of way to 
the City following date of substantial completion. 

8. All contract documents shall be made available the County and City for use in the 
on-site development of the new County LEC jail facility and any future 
developments to the adjacent properties. 



9. All notices to be given by either party to the other shall be in writing and deemed 
to have been given when delivered personally or when deposited in the United 
States mail, addressed as follows: 

To County: 

Woodbury County, Iowa 
ATTN: Board Chairman 
620 Douglas Street Rm 104 
Sioux City, Iowa 51101 

To City: 

City of Sioux City, Iowa 
ATTN: City Clerk 
405 Sixth Street 
P.O. Box 447 
Sioux City, Iowa 51102 

10. City and County agree to jointly select the project engineer. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement the date first above 
written. 

WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA 



1000 L\000 lar- - .....I 

- - SCALE 

~ ... _a«a 

j 

EXHIBIT 

DGR ENGINEERING 
6115 Whl1perln9 CrHk Drive, Sioux City, IA. 
Tel. 712-266-1554 Fox. 712-266-1707 

A 

~ CITY LANO TO BE 
~ CONVEYED TO COUNTY 

DATE: 3/17/2020 

DRAWN BY:DJR APPROVEO:BNW 

PROJECT NO. 
270025 
SHEET 
EX.A 



WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________     Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________  

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:  ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED: 

   Approve Resolution   ☐        Approve Motion   ☐ Approve Ordinance    ☐  

Public Hearing   ☐      Other:  Informational  ☐      Attachments   ☐ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 

PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:    

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:  

Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016. 

04/25/2024 04/30/2024

Chairman Matthew Ung

✔ ✔

Presentation of missing context related to Supervisor Taylor's following items, and the harmful impact caused by a lack of patience 
causing incomplete information being conveyed to the public about the Law Enforcement Center's property insurance premium

See attached email. Supervisor Taylor implies there are only two options. But in fact, nothing needs to be 
"reallocated" away from the FY25 budget because the FY25 expense will be paid within FY25.

On April 23, 4 of 5 supervisors stated they would vote against further reducing the maintenance budget for 
building services director Kenny Schmitz, given the legitimate expenses it funds. Supervisor Taylor has 
submitted his item for "action" and I have changed it to "information." If Taylor wants to move a reduction that 
fails, or vote against the budget on May 7, he can still do so.

The $177,000 property insurance premium for the LEC is covered in full by the increase of $400,000 to the 
self-liability fund in the FY25 budget, which the board already did. The Building Services LEC maintenance budget 
covers utilities, cleaning supplies, tools, inspections, permits, HVAC programming, etc.

The above advice on the liability fund from the budget director was received by calling the budget director and 
asking, rather than a lengthy agenda item by Supervisor Taylor causing needless concern. In my opinion, the 
fact that Taylor causes needless concern may be a reason he is the only supervisor who has not been invited 
to tour the jail construction site.

Supervisor Taylor also submitted his agenda item regarding the LEC lease as "action" and I have changed it to 
"information." There is no action required to "receive into the record" anything published in the board's 
agendas, as everything submitted is already published online. Taylor is well aware of this. A vote to receive 
already-submitted information is, again, needless.



���������	
��	������	�������������������� �����!"##� ��$%#���$�#"&'(#)*+,��-./0./1/-�21345�67+#3�7&��,�"�6'�8�(��9&��,�"��(!"##� ��$%#���$�#"&'(#)*�:#'�;�������#�����%����<=�/0�"��,�9�>���?���##@�A#��6���#��BCDEF�GHIJKL�MN�OPQ�RSHIJKLTPQULVVWXTYZ[VTP\Z]VLHNQV̂_àbcF�dJTYeWHZf�MgY]h�ijf�ikil�mnomnlm�MGpDF�qKPP]e�rT\hKY�RWXT\hKYULVVWXTYZ[VTP\Z]VLHNQV̂_s̀tuavcF�wxy�zYVgKY\Z�{PeTYHP[K�|}~~�������������}~��~��������~�}������~���������~�~�������}�����~}������}���}�����}��~������}�����������~�������}�~}�������~����}�}~���}~�}��������}�����~����~�}���������}��������}����������  �¡¢��~~���£���}��������������~�����������}~���}�����¤���������}������}���������}���~����}��}���}�¥�������¡¦¡����}��������������������}���}������~�§�¡��������}~������}����������}���~�}����������}�}��}����~�����������������������}����~�����������������}���~������}���}���~}��̈�~���}�����}�©��¤����������~����������~������~�������}������~�������������}�}��}���¤��}}ª�����������}�����}�����¤����������}���}����}���}������}�������}���~����}�����}����}��¥�������¡¦¡���~��������������~�����~���}����}�����}�~����}���}������������}����~����}���}��~�~}����}�����§�¡ ����}������}�����~�§�¡���«}���������}�����}��~����~�}�������~�������~���}��}����~������}�}�����~������~����}��������}���~����}��~������£����}��������}~���������}���}������~�¬¦�����������~��~���§������~���������~�}��~���}�}������}������}�����~����}������������}���������~��}���}������~��������~����~�}��}���������������}��}��������������~���§���§�¡ �������}����}~�}��~����}��������������}����}�}��}��~��~��}��}��~������§�¡ �����}����������������~���������������~��®���}��}��}���~����}���~�����}��������}����}���������������������������}���~��������~�����¦¦�¦¦¦�����������~}���}����������������������}�������  �¡¢��~����~�}���}������¤�����������������~~�~�����}�����~���£���}��~���~�}������}�������}���~����}������}�����~�����~����}�������~������~����}�������}���~����}��®���}�������������}��}}~��������������~���}�����~������}��~�§�¡��ª~���~����������������~�}�����������}�§�¡ �����}���}�~�����}������}����}������ª��������������}���}���������~����}���~����}����������~������}�§�¡ �����}���̄}���}���}�¤�����¡¬����}}��~����������°��}�������±����������������}���}������}���}�}~������~����}�¤�����¬¦���}}��~�������������������}~�����}���}�����~���}��������~����~��~��������������������}�������~������ª}�����}��������}������~�����������~�����������������}�����}������������}�}~����~��}�����������~���~}��}}ª������������}���~�������}�������}��}���}��~����}�������������}���}���}�}~�}���~�¤�����¡¬�����~�������������²~���~���������������}�����}������ª�������£�}����~��̄}��}}~���������~������������������~��~������§�¡��}�}��}�����§�¡ ������}����~��}��}���~����~�}�����}�������°��}�������±��������ª����������~�����������}³�́µ¶¶·̧¹�º»¼½�́¾¿¾À¾½�́¾Á·¾ÂÃÄÅÆÇÄÈÉ�ÊËËÌÍÎÆÏ�ÂËÎÈÐÏ�ÑËÄÆÌÒ/1��#�(�&��Ó�'Ó�#�Ô�Õ��$Ö�×6�02212Õ���3�ØÙ2/Ú�-51ÛÙÜ0/�










	Insert from: "4-30-24_Yockey_Farm_Addition_Minor_Subdivsion_Report_1.pdf"
	Barker_Addition_Minor_Subdivsion_Report.pdf
	Barker Subdivision.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Barker Subdivision-Final Plat-22.5x24.5-01
	Barker Subdivision-Final Plat-22.5x24.5-02
	Barker Subdivision-Final Plat-22.5x24.5-03



	Bookmarks from final plat-yockey 4-4-24.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Model

	FINAL PLAT-SHT 2.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Model




	Insert from: "4-30-24_Public_Hearing_Floodplain_Management_Ordinance.pdf"
	Barker_Addition_Minor_Subdivsion_Report.pdf
	Barker Subdivision.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Barker Subdivision-Final Plat-22.5x24.5-01
	Barker Subdivision-Final Plat-22.5x24.5-02
	Barker Subdivision-Final Plat-22.5x24.5-03




	Insert from: "4-30-24_Public_Hearing_Comprehensive_Plan.pdf"
	Barker_Addition_Minor_Subdivsion_Report.pdf
	Barker Subdivision.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Barker Subdivision-Final Plat-22.5x24.5-01
	Barker Subdivision-Final Plat-22.5x24.5-02
	Barker Subdivision-Final Plat-22.5x24.5-03




	Insert from: "4-30-24_Public_Hearing_Utility-Scale-Solar.pdf"
	Barker_Addition_Minor_Subdivsion_Report.pdf
	Barker Subdivision.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Barker Subdivision-Final Plat-22.5x24.5-01
	Barker Subdivision-Final Plat-22.5x24.5-02
	Barker Subdivision-Final Plat-22.5x24.5-03




	Insert from: "BS11 TothContract11032020.pdf"
	Insert from: "11-3-20 Petersen Addition.pdf"
	Insert from: "Anderson's Country Estates Final Plat (09.28.20).pdf"
	Sheets and Views
	201434_ANDERSON-Final Plat-22.5x24.5-01
	201434_ANDERSON-Final Plat-22.5x24.5-02



	Item #3
	Item #5a
	Item #5b
	Item #5c
	Item #6a,b
	Item #6c
	Item #7a
	Item #7b
	Item #7c
	Item #8
	Item #9
	Item #10a
	Item #10b
	Item #10c

	Insert from: "04-25 (Missing Context from Taylor Items).pdf"
	04-25 (Missing Context from Taylor Items)
	01-31 (Nature Center)
	01-24 (CF Revenues)
	Item 1 (1-3-23)
	Agenda Form (1-page)




	Mail - Matthew A

	Insert from: "04-25 (Missing Context from Taylor Items).pdf"
	04-25 (Missing Context from Taylor Items)
	01-31 (Nature Center)
	01-24 (CF Revenues)
	Item 1 (1-3-23)
	Agenda Form (1-page)




	Mail - Matthew A

	Insert from: "(04-30-24) Approval to Spend FY25 CIP BOS.pdf"
	
	Advanced Touch Screen Control
	Custom-Programmable Virtual Buttons
	Dynamic User Interfaces
	Voice Recognition
	Streaming Video
	Rava SIP Intercom
	Sonos App
	Crestron Room Scheduling App
	Third-Party Scheduling Apps
	Zoom Rooms App
	Microsoft Teams App
	Crestron Home OS Control
	Bluetooth Beacon
	Web Browsing
	Wired and Wi-Fi Connectivity
	Power over Ethernet
	High-Speed USB Port
	Enterprise-Grade Security
	XiO Cloud Service
	Crestron One™ App Support
	Optional Mounting Accessories
	Specifications
	Models
	Available Accessories



